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Introduction and Executive Summary

The King County Housing Authority (KCHA) is one of 32 public housing authorities participating in HUD’s Moving to Work Demonstration (MTW) Program.  The MTW Demonstration Program is a Congressionally mandated initiative designed to provide high-performing housing authorities with the flexibility to develop their own approaches to meeting housing needs in their local jurisdictions.  The intent of the demonstration is to determine whether greater regulatory and financial flexibility will enable local housing authorities to increase the efficiency and effectiveness of their programs. 

Under KCHA’s agreement with HUD, the Authority is allowed to develop policies and programs that are consistent with local needs and circumstances in lieu of HUD rules and regulations and select provisions of the 1937 Housing Act.  The agreement requires KCHA to submit Annual MTW Plans that are adopted by its Board of Commissioners after receiving resident and public input through a public hearing process.  KCHA has renamed its local demonstration to better reflect the intention of the program - Making Transition Work.  This is a summary of KCHA’s MTW Annual Plan for Fiscal Year 2007, which begins on July 1, 2006, and ends on June 30, 2007.  FY 2007 will mark KCHA’s third full year of participation in the MTW Program.

MTW Objectives
KCHA has agreed to pursue the following objectives over the course of the MTW demonstration program:

· Expand clients’ program, location, and other housing choices.  Increasingly, the communities they choose will be or will become more economically integrated and will offer the support services they need to be successful.

· Increase the ability of KCHA’s clients to become self-sufficient with the goal of more clients becoming employed, retaining employment longer, and experiencing significant income progression and asset development.  This will increase positive transitions out of assisted housing, including transition to homeownership.

· Ensure that KCHA’s operations become more efficient and effective through simplifying and streamlining, decentralizing management, increasing program user-friendliness, and increasing the financial stability of KCHA programs. 

· Preserve and increase affordable housing opportunities (including both vouchers and dedicated affordable units), while continuing to focus on those in greatest need.

Challenges
Driven by a robust economy, the gap between housing costs and income for the region’s poorest households continues to widen.  Rising sales prices and higher interest rates are placing homeownership out of reach for the working poor.  At the same time, due in part to condominium conversions, there was a net decrease in the number of rental units in King County in 2005.  New rental  units coming on line are primarily higher-end units. 

As the market tightens, rents are increasing and vacancy rates are dropping.  There are roughly 65,000 renter households in King County earning under 30% of Area Median Income (AMI).  There are presently no market rate rentals affordable to this population at 30% of income; and an increasing number of poor families and elderly and disabled households on fixed incomes are paying over 50% of their income for rent and utilities. 

Current and proposed Federal funding reductions pose significant obstacles to the achievement of some of the Authority’s MTW objectives, and at the same time, make the flexibility offered by this program absolutely essential.  KCHA, like housing authorities around the country, is experiencing multimillion-dollar funding cuts affecting virtually all of its federally funded programs - including Section 8 rent subsidies and administrative fees, Public Housing Operating and Capital Funds, and grant funding for resident services programs.  These reductions are impacting the physical condition of KCHA’s residential communities and the availability of resident services as well as shifting an increasing portion of the rent burden to KCHA residents and program participants. 

Progress to Date
In the two full contract years since the initiation of KCHA’s MTW Agreement, the Authority has seen significant progress on a number of critical issues:

· Expanding our role as the safety net for homeless and special needs populations in King County:  Using its MTW Authority, KCHA has worked in partnership with the Gates Foundation and local government to create a network of service enriched housing for homeless families and redefined local housing preferences to facilitate the movement of homeless families into the public housing system.  Working in partnership with the local behavioral health care system and United Way, KCHA has also initiated new programs to address the housing and service needs of chronically homeless individuals.

· Deconcentrating poverty: Utilizing the HOPE VI program, new project-basing rules for Housing Choice Vouchers developed under MTW, and KCHA’s bond and tax credit financed inventory, KCHA has started shifting housing opportunities from the poorest neighborhoods in the County to more affluent suburbs.  New applicants for subsidized housing now have broader choices in neighborhoods with strong school systems and ample entry-level job opportunities. 

· Property-based management:  KCHA has completed its shift to a site-based approach to managing its public housing inventory.  Individual site waiting lists, management offices in each complex and site-based budgeting, accounting and asset management promise more direct customer service, more efficient operations and better long-term planning. 

· Environmental Sustainability:  Faced with rising utility rates and growing environmental concerns in the region, KCHA has initiated a major push to reduce the impact of its operations on the environment.  Using its MTW authority, KCHA has established an Energy Savings Company and implemented over $4 million in water and energy saving initiatives in its inventory.  Water usage alone is down 17% from an FY 2005 baseline. 

· Encouraging Homeownership:  Using a Resident Opportunities and Self-Sufficiency (ROSS) grant and MTW flexibility, KCHA has created a successful approach to assisting Section 8 and Public Housing residents in becoming homeowners.  The program has resulted in 30 KCHA households purchasing homes utilizing Housing Choice Voucher assistance.  An additional 16 families relocating from KCHA’s Park Lake Homes HOPE VI site have also purchased homes in the last two years without Section 8 assistance.    

Key FY 2007 MTW Initiatives
KCHA will continue prior year initiatives and undertake additional key efforts in FY 2007:

· Ending Homelessness:  KCHA will continue its leadership role in the region’s efforts to end homelessness.  It will continue to expand the network of supportive housing for homeless and special needs households, work to integrate “hard to house” populations into mainstream housing programs and leverage and coordinate service funding with affordable housing initiatives. 

· Family Self-Sufficiency:  KCHA will significantly expand its programs to assist Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher clients to achieve economic self-sufficiency and transition to unsubsidized housing or homeownership.  KCHA will utilize Housing Choice Voucher block grant funds to support non-profit service providers in developing case management, job training, placement, retention and wage progression, asset building and homeownership services.

· Rent Simplification:  KCHA will continue the development of new policies in both the Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing Programs for the calculation of rent and income to encourage resident self-sufficiency.  This initiative will seek to simplify the determination and verification of tenant income in order to lessen non-compliance, program intrusiveness and administrative burden.

· Development of a Local Leased Housing Program: KCHA will begin to explore the development of a local leased housing program utilizing its Housing Choice Voucher block grant. This program would seek to further assist the Authority in encouraging resident self-sufficiency, addressing homelessness, reducing administrative costs, and increasing the number of households served.  

· Increased Investment in Public Housing:  The Authority’s Capital Needs assessment has identified over $58 million in capital repairs and systems replacements that will be necessary over the next 5 years. Less than $20 million in capital grant funding is expected during this period.  This decline in Federal funding necessitates the development of innovative new funding approaches to address KCHA’s capital needs.  Over the next year, KCHA will design and begin implementing new mixed-finance approaches to assure that our public housing inventory is sustainable over the long term. Specific projects include the installation of fire/life safety systems in eight of KCHA’s complexes housing senior and disabled households and potential redevelopment of its two largest family housing sites. 

· Environmental Concerns: KCHA will continue to explore ways in which the environmental impact of its operations can be reduced and healthier homes provided for residents.  Possible lease modifications will include the provision of smoke-free housing for chemically sensitive residents and of utility sub-metering to encourage responsible consumption. 

· Administrative Efficiencies:  KCHA will continue to review and modify administrative practices and program regulations to enable efficient, customer-oriented operation of KCHA programs in the face of declining Federal resources.  The Authority anticipates using outside consultants to assist in re-engineering paper-flow and business processes in both the Public Housing and Section 8 programs. 

· Development of Performance Measurements:  In order to guide KCHA resource investments, evaluate on-going operations and measure the impact of the Making Transitions Work demonstration program on the Authority’s operations, KCHA will undertake both a strategic and business planning initiative, and a benchmarking process in FY 2007.

KCHA is committed to developing its specific policies under the MTW program through an open and inclusive process with all stakeholders.  To assist in this process, the Authority reconstituted the former Resident Council into two (2) Resident Advisory Committees (RACs) during FY 2006.  KCHA is committed to working closely with the RAC councils, and other interested parties, to solicit input into the policy development process.  A list of stakeholder comments regarding this Plan is included in Section XI.

Section I.  Households Served

A.
Number and Characteristics of Households Served

KCHA’s Public Housing Program currently serves approximately 2,850 households in 48 developments and 12 scattered site single-family homes, while the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program serves about 8,600 households, including over 1,800 participants utilizing vouchers initially issued by other housing authorities.  These programs serve a culturally and linguistically diverse population, with some public housing developments comprised of residents speaking more than 20 languages.  Appendices A, B and C provide demographic information for KCHA residents and participants as of April 1, 2006.

The tables in Appendix A and B show demographic information for public housing households by development type (family versus mixed populations), geographic area (KCHA’s Public Housing Program is divided into four (4) geographic areas to maximize the efficiency of service delivery), and development.  Appendix A provides information about residents in the family developments, while Appendix B covers information about the Authority’s mixed-population buildings.

The tables in Appendix C provide demographic information for all Section 8 Housing Choice households served by the Authority, including voucher recipients funded through the MTW block grant, participants using vouchers issued by other jurisdictions (“port-ins”) and voucher holders utilizing Mainstream vouchers which are funded separately from the block grant.  

 B.
Number and Characteristics of Applicants

Public Housing:  Appendix D provides demographic characteristics for all public housing applicants.  Because of KCHA’s considerable geographic span, the Authority has historically operated regional waiting lists.  In addition, during FY 2006, KCHA adopted and implemented Site-based Waiting Lists throughout its entire Public Housing inventory.  Under the newly modified application system, applicants may elect to place their name on up to two Regional or two Site-based waiting lists.  The demographic information in Appendix D represents a snapshot of the public housing waiting lists as of June 30, 2006.  

Housing Choice Vouchers:  KCHA’s waiting list was opened on April 25th, 2006 for a two week period, during which more than 10,800 households submitted applications, either through the mail or through on-line access provided by the Housing Authority.   Prior to the opening, KCHA’s Section 8 waiting list had not been opened since July 2002, when close to 7,000 applications were accepted over a similar two week period.  Appendix E provides information for applicants on the Housing Choice Vouchers waiting list as of June 30, 2006.  

C.    Changes in Populations to Be Served at End of Period and Explanation

Public Housing:  The Authority expects to be serving slightly fewer households in public housing at the end of FY 2007.  The continued relocation of residents from the Park Lake Homes HOPE VI site (about 130 households) will be partially offset by the addition of units (approx. 40 units) brought “on-line” with the completion and initial occupancy of Seola Crossing – the first phase in the redevelopment of Park Lake Homes into the new Greenbridge community.  Other factors that will influence the number of public housing households served includes the status of capital projects (discussed in Section VI) that may require temporary relocation of existing tenants.  

Changes in the demographics of the public housing program are expected to be insignificant, primarily resulting from:  

· Continued implementation of KCHA’s designation plan (through attrition), which stabilizes the mix of younger households in the mixed-population developments, may result in a slight increase (not more than 20) in the number of elderly and near-elderly households in these developments.

· The continued relocation of Park Lake Homes residents to Section 8 or other public housing developments may result in minor demographic changes due to the historically higher percentage of Asian American residents at Park Lake Homes. 

· Implementation of revisions to KCHA’s waiting list procedures in 2005 may result in more formerly homeless families moving directly from supportive housing into public housing under the Sound Families initiative. These families may have greater supportive service needs.

Housing Choice Vouchers:  The Authority does not expect a significant increase or decrease in the number of Section 8 households served in its jurisdiction during FY 2007 - about 8,600 as of April 1, 2006.  However, further federal funding cuts may reduce the number of households the Authority can afford to serve, reduce mobility, concentrate poverty and increase household rent burdens.

The Program’s demographic make-up is not expected to change significantly during FY 2007.  Increasing partnerships with the region’s public and behavioral health care systems will result in a small shift in resident profiles to reflect the region’s priorities under the 10 Year Plan to End Homelessness.  

Any change in the distribution of voucher sizes (number of bedrooms), will be due to continued implementation of prior year’s modifications to KCHA’s occupancy standards rather than an actual shift towards serving smaller household sizes.  

D.
Issues and Proposed Actions 

Public Housing: During FY 2006 KCHA restructured its Waiting List System to allow applicants greater choice in determining where they would like to reside, provide a local preference for households whose total family income fell below 30% of the Area Median Income and establish a separate waiting list for families graduating from the KCHA sponsored Sound Families housing programs. The true impact of these changes upon KCHA’s household profile will begin to become apparent during FY 2007 and FY 2008 and will require careful evaluation to determine their impact.   

Housing Choice Vouchers: In the past, KCHA has maintained and managed a closed Section 8 tenant-based waiting list which was reopened when the number of applicants had been reduced to approximately 1,000.  While KCHA received almost 11,000 applications for the program when the waiting list was opened early in 2006, the list is currently being limited to 2,500 applicants, determined by lottery from this applicant pool.  The size of the list has been limited to reflect the lack of availability of Housing Choice Vouchers due to decreased Federal funding.  No additional vouchers are anticipated to be made available this year and Federal funding cuts necessitated the “retirement” of vouchers upon turnover in FY 2006.  This policy has since been reversed, but the availability of vouchers remains strictly limited to turnover of existing voucher holders.  Increasing graduation of existing program participants in order to provide housing opportunities to new families is a major focus of the FY 2007 Plan.  

Section II.  Occupancy and Admissions Policies

A.   Statement of Admissions and Occupancy Policies:

Prior to becoming an MTW program participant, KCHA implemented admissions and occupancy policies for the Public Housing and Section 8 Programs that were consistent with the 1937 United States Housing Act and subsequent amendments, including the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act of 1998 (QHWRA).  During fiscal years 2004 through 2006, KCHA utilized the authority and flexibility of HUD’s Moving to Work program to adopt and implement a number of new policies that depart from the 1937 Act and are consistent with the Authority’s MTW Agreement.  The following highlights changes to KCHA’s admissions and occupancy policies that have already taken place:

Public Housing Policies:

Allocation Plan.  During FY 2004, KCHA adopted a new Allocation Plan that sets a preference in each of the Authority’s mixed population buildings for elderly and near elderly (55 to 62 years old) applicants.  This percentage equals the overall percentage of elderly residents in the mixed-population buildings at the time the policy was adopted.

Admissions Preferences. Under MTW, KCHA adopted a policy to allow applicants whose incomes are lower than 75 percent of 30 percent of the Area Median Income (AMI) to self-certify their qualification for a local preference—the Authority currently implements the former federal preferences for admissions as local preferences.  During FY 2006, KCHA expanded this measure to consider all families with incomes below 30% of the Area Median Income qualified as having an “urgent need” for housing.  As a result, these households are now considered qualified for a local preference for admission to KCHA’s public housing developments without additional “urgent need” documentation requirements.

Site-Based Waiting Lists.  During FY 2004 the Authority adopted and implemented site-based waiting lists for two of its most geographically remote public housing sites.  Expanding upon this model, KCHA implemented site-based waiting lists at all Public Housing developments during FY 2006, providing applicants the opportunity to place their name on the waiting lists for up to two specific sites.  Alternatively, families with urgent housing needs and no specific geographic preference were provided the option of applying for up to two regional lists and receive the first available unit within the selected region(s).  In addition, to assist families as they worked toward self-sufficiency, KCHA has established a separate waiting list for graduates of the KCHA funded Sound Families project for homeless families.  Under policies adopted in 2006, eligible applicants for public housing are selected to fill vacant units utilizing a rotation between each of the three waiting list types:  Site-based, Regional and Sound Families.

Deconcentration Policies.  It has not been necessary to implement the Authority’s deconcentration policy, which allows KCHA to skip applicants on the waiting list, implement affirmative marketing strategies, and/or other incentives to achieve a more desirable income mix in affected buildings.  KCHA’s other deconcentration strategies, including targeted self-sufficiency programs, flat rents, HOPE VI redevelopment and the siting of replacement housing under this project in Eastside suburban communities, in combination with exception rent policies in the Housing Choice Voucher Program, have resulted in the creation of mixed-income communities without having to target higher income applicants. 

Housing Choice Voucher Policies:

Admissions Preferences.  Under MTW, during FY 2004, KCHA adopted a policy to allow applicants whose incomes are lower than 75 percent of 30 percent of AMI to self-certify their qualification for a local preference - the Authority currently implements the former federal preferences for admissions as local preferences.  KCHA may adopt future changes to the preference system utilizing the flexibility of the MTW program.  

Occupancy Standards:  During FY 2005, the Authority’s Board adopted new occupancy standards for all multiple-bedroom voucher sizes in response to reductions in Section 8 funding.  The occupancy standards determine the size of the voucher (number of bedrooms) and the FY 2005 changes generally reduced the number of bedrooms for which a family qualified by allocating one bedroom per two adults or per two minors.  These changes were to become effective on the second annual review of participating households.  During FY 2006, the Housing Authority determined that these standards could be partially loosened as a result of stabilized Housing Choice Voucher funding levels, allowing bedrooms to again be allocated using such family characteristics as sex, age, and disability status.
New Payment Standards:  In an additional response to funding cuts, the Authority adopted lower payment standards - the maximum amount of subsidy a tenant may receive for a given voucher size (number of bedrooms).  Utilizing MTW authority, the new payment standards (set at 104 percent of the HUD established Fair Market Rent) were implemented at the time of annual review for current Section 8 participants.  Based upon an analysis of housing market trends, growing rent burdens and partial restoration of Federal funds, these payment standards were revised upwards towards the end of Fiscal Year 2006.

Inspections:  During FY 2004, KCHA implemented streamlining initiatives designed to increase program efficiency and reduce costs.  These changes allowed KCHA staff to complete Inspections and Rent Reasonable studies on properties in which KCHA held majority interest, in lieu of the requirement that these functions be completed by outside contractors.  In addition, KCHA implemented policy changes that eliminated the need for re-inspection of units that failed to pass an initial inspection as a result of certain minor fail items.   

Policies Specific to Section 8 Project-Based Program:

The Authority adopted a Section 8 Project-Based Assistance Policy in FY 2003 and made further changes in FY 2006 following the release of a final rule for the Project-based Voucher program. Changes implemented include:  

· The Authority can allocate project-based assistance to housing units owned, controlled  or financed by KCHA without competition.  The Authority can allocate project-based assistance to other housing units based upon competitive processes administered by other entities (i.e., Gates Foundation, King County) that meet KCHA’s competitive selection requirements.

· Project-based assistance provided for HOPE VI replacement housing and permanent housing for families and children can only be located in areas with poverty rates at or below 15 percent.

· The Authority and other owners of housing may operate site-based waiting lists for units receiving project-based assistance.

· Due to the limited availability of Section 8 tenant-based vouchers, residents exiting housing receiving project-based assistance are generally not eligible for tenant-based vouchers.  However, in lieu of providing tenant-based assistance, policies have been implemented that allow project-based Section 8 participants graduating from certain supportive housing programs to apply and be granted a priority, in limited number, for units available under KCHA’s Public Housing program

· KCHA may solicit applications for Project-based assistance from supportive service providers who will in turn identify eligible housing providers.

· KCHA reserved the right to execute an AHAP for rehabilitation projects only in limited circumstances where necessary to allow the project owner to meet financing or other requirements. 

· In the case of supportive housing for homeless and disabled households, established policies that allowed the waiting lists to be managed through the supportive service provider rather than the Housing Authority.

· For mixed finance developments with another public rental subsidy in place, KCHA may conform the operation of the Project Based Section 8 program to the operational policies of the other government subsidy program.  

· Contract Rents are capped at the Payment Standard in all project based units to ensure that tenants do not pay more than 30% of their adjusted income for rent.

· Eliminated the rent limitation established by HUD in the project based voucher final rule, allowing contract rents on Tax Credit units to be set a Market Reasonable Rent, rather than at the Tax Credit rent.

· Implemented a system allowing KCHA to perform its own Subsidy Layering and Environmental reviews rather than requiring the work to be completed by HUD.

· Created greater flexibility in the housing types that can be funded under the Housing Choice Voucher Program.

B.   Rent Policies

KCHA’s current rent policies are based on the Brooke Amendment to the 1937 Housing Act, which limits a household’s cost of rent and utilities to 30 percent of their adjusted income.  Over the years, this policy has ensured a high level of affordability for households under both programs.  However, this basic “30 percent of income policy” has also resulted in some unintended consequences, including a disincentive for households to increase their income through employment.  Current federally designed programs are also excessively complicated and not easily understood by program participants or administered by Authority staff. 

The following rent policy changes have been made so far:

Housing Choice Vouchers:

· Bi-annual rent recertifications for fixed-income households.  Under this policy, full rent reviews can be conducted every two years.  In the intervening year, rents are adjusted based on cost of living increases, if any, provided for Social Security recipients.  Residents may request a full review at any time if their financial circumstances have changed.  This change was adopted to reduce administrative costs in response to funding cuts.  

· 40 Percent of Gross Income Limitation on New Leases.  The lower payment standards adopted in order to reduce per unit subsidy costs to new HUD limits results in reduced choice in the rental market.  KCHA used its authority under MTW to allow households to pay up to 40 percent of gross income - instead of adjusted income - towards their housing costs in the initial year of their lease.  This change is designed to expand the number of potential units that a household is allowed to rent under the Section 8 Program.
Housing Choice Voucher rent policy may undergo further changes in FY 2007.

Public Housing:

Although a major target for review during FY 2005 and 2006, KCHA has not yet implemented new rent policies.  Review and evaluation of potential changes to rent policies, including policies relating to the definition of income, allowances, utility cost calculations and the amount a resident pays for rent and utilities are of significant concern to a large number of stakeholders and will be a primary focus of on-going discussion and policy development in FY 2007 

C.   Planned Policy and Program Initiatives

KCHA will explore, develop, adopt, and/or implement a number of policy and program changes during FY 2007.  Some of these efforts are continuations of existing initiatives approved under previous annual plans, while others reflect new initiatives:

Housing Choice Voucher Program Initiatives  

Rent Simplification and Possible Development of a New Local Leased Housing Program:

KCHA’s initial MTW Agreement authorized comprehensive changes to the Housing Choice Voucher Program for the 915 vouchers included in the Section 8 Block Grant and more limited changes for other vouchers.  During FY 2006, the Authority obtained HUD approval of an amendment to its Agreement that combined almost all KCHA vouchers into a single MTW Block Grant and allows KCHA to operate the program with a single set of rules.  In addition, the amendment will assist KCHA to respond appropriately to anticipated future Section 8 program funding reductions and policy changes.  Utilizing the benefits of a single block grant,  the Authority will further explore options for simplifying existing program rules or creating its own Local Leased Housing Program in accordance with the MTW Agreement.  Objectives governing the design of program changes will continue to include the guiding principles adopted by KCHA’s Board of Commissioners in response to FY 2005 funding cuts:

· Ensure that current Section 8 participants continue to receive assistance.

· Expand the ability of the program to serve additional households.

· Assist in the region’s efforts to address those most in need and end homelessness.

· Encourage economic self-sufficiency.

· Continue to broaden housing choice and minimize poverty concentration.

· Ensure that administrative impacts of any changes are cost-effective.

· Focus on the long-term stability and success of the program.

Program modifications may include major changes to core components of the current program, including:

· Rent Policy:  KCHA will review the basic rent formula (30 percent of adjusted income) and all related policies, including adjustments to income and the definition of household income, that determine how much rent a participant pays to a landlord and the subsidy amounts provided by the Authority.  Included in this review will be consideration of policy alternatives based on differing household income and household types and shifts in subsidy levels over time.

· Payment Standards:  Under a new rent formula, rent payment standards may need to be revised, redesigned, or become unnecessary.  The underlying basis and/or method for setting rent payment standards may also be changed.  The Authority may consider multiple rent payment standards to address issues of poverty concentration, rent burdens and housing choice.

· Utility Allowance.  The Authority will consider alternatives to the current utility allowance system in order to simplify and support local program implementation while keeping housing costs affordable.  

· Inspections:  Changes may include revisions to the frequency and procedures for initial and periodic inspections.  For example, the Authority may explore conducting inspections of a sample number of units in a single complex on an annual basis, or clustering inspections within regions as a means of reducing costs and increasing program efficiency.  Any changes to the inspections protocols will be designed to ensure that participants have safe, decent, and sanitary housing.

Changes to other aspects of the Section 8 program may include those authorized under Section V.A of KCHA’s MTW Agreement (as amended) and listed in Section VIII of this MTW Plan.  KCHA intends to utilize outside consultants this year to review and possibly re-engineer internal business processes in conjunction with these initiatives. 

Designation of Vouchers:

In consultation with organizations that serve and advocate for people with disabilities, KCHA will continue to explore the development and adoption of a policy to designate Section 8 Vouchers for service systems that target specific disabilities.  Such a policy will comply with all applicable Fair Housing laws and regulations while addressing supportive housing needs in the local community and the community’s 10 Year Plan to End Homelessness. 
Public Housing Program Initiatives

· Rent Policy:.  KCHA staff began to engage residents (through focus groups, the Resident Advisory Board and surveys) and other community partners in a review of the current public housing rent policies.  After a thorough analysis of the current policies and the development of guiding principles for potential modifications, a broad range of alternatives may be considered.  Potential options for change include the basic rent formulas (30 percent of adjusted income) and all related policies, including adjustments to income, the definition of household income and deductions, and the calculation of utility allowances that determine how much rent a resident pays.  In addition, the review may consider policy alternatives based on differing household income and different rent policies for different household types and shifts in subsidy levels over time.  Participants in the policy development process will be given full opportunity to respond to policy options or to propose their own for consideration.  Public hearings and meetings with residents will be conducted to gather comments and responses to policy recommendations before any final recommendations are submitted to the Board of Commissioners.  New rent policies will be designed to simplify rent calculation procedures for staff and residents, provide strong employment incentives for residents, and strengthen the financial viability of the public housing program, especially in the light of anticipated funding cuts and program changes.

· Inspections:  KCHA staff may explore and recommend changes to current inspection protocols for the Public Housing program as a means of reducing costs and increasing program efficiency, while ensuring the viability and safety of housing units and communities.  

· Utility Allowance:   The Authority will consider alternatives to the Public Housing utility allowance system, including both KCHA and tenant-paid utilities, in order to simplify program implementation and encourage conservation while keeping housing costs affordable.  
· Transfers: KCHA will, in consultation with stakeholders, review and assess proposed changes to its existing transfer policies with the intent of creating greater administrative efficiencies, an increased ability to respond to reasonable accommodation requests, encourage economic self-sufficiency and enable transfer of tenants between public housing and other subsidized housing KCHA controls. 
In addition, KCHA may consider changes to other aspects of the Public Housing program as authorized under KCHA’s MTW Agreement (as amended) and/or listed elsewhere in this MTW Plan.

Joint Initiatives

· Public Housing and Section 8 Admissions Preferences:

KCHA may explore new or modified preferences for both the Public Housing and Section 8 programs during FY 2007.  Policies adopted for each program will be developed in concert with the needs of other admissions-related policies.  In addition, during the course of FY 2007, KCHA will continue to monitor the impact of the creation of Public Housing Site-based, Regional and Sound Families waiting lists systems and utilize MTW authority to address identified areas where adjustments are necessary.  

· Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program:

The Authority is designing changes to the Section 8 FSS Program to seek ways to expand the program, provide additional resident incentives and decrease the costs associated with managing individual escrow accounts and other aspects of program administration.  KCHA is also exploring the closer coordination of FSS programs with rent and income calculation policies and the implementation of an expanded and modified FSS Program for public housing.

Section III.  Changes in Housing Stock

The Authority is committed to providing the same or a greater number of subsidized housing opportunities for low-income households than it had prior to its participation in the MTW Demonstration.  The table below provides information about the total number of federally subsidized housing units available through KCHA as of July 1, 2004, 2005 and 2006 as well as the number projected to be available as of June 30, 2007.  These numbers represent the gross number of units in these programs.  Public Housing occupancy is projected at 98.9% and Section 8 at a 99% lease-up rate for FY 2007. 

	Housing Program
	7/1/2003
	7/1/2004
	7/1/2005
	7/1/2006
	6/30/2007

	Section 8 Vouchers
	  6,374
	 6,730
	 6,850
	 6,850
	 6,850

	Low Income Public Housing (LIPH) Units
	  3,288
	 3,288
	 2,985
	 2,854
	 2,763

	Section 8 New Construction Buildings
	     174
	     174
	    174
	    174
	    174

	Preservation Program Buildings
	     271
	     271
	    271
	     271
	    271

	Total Subsidized Units
	10,107
	10,463
	10,280
	10,149
	10,058


The total number of Section 8 vouchers (6,850) represents vouchers KCHA is authorized to issue.  While the Authority does not expect to receive any new vouchers during FY 2006, KCHA will continue to apply for any new Section 8 vouchers made available by the Federal government. 

The public housing numbers in the table above include units that are available for resident occupancy as well as 9 units currently being used to accommodate agencies serving KCHA residents. It also includes 10 units destroyed in a fire on July 4, 2003, which the Authority plans to rebuild.  The reduction in the number of public housing units from 2004 to 2006 reflects the units being demolished at the Park Lake Homes HOPE VI site.  All of these units are being replaced on a one-for-one basis with either new public housing units or project-based replacement housing choice vouchers issued by HUD in connection with that project.  The first new public housing units will be placed into service in FY 2007, with full build-out anticipated by FY 2010.

The HOPE VI initiative has allowed KCHA to receive a total of 569 relocation and replacement vouchers for the 569 units that will ultimately be demolished at Park Lake Homes.  The reduction in units reflected in the table above does not mean that KCHA will ultimately be serving fewer extremely low income residents as a result of HOPE VI.  Instead, it reflects the fact that KCHA received its replacement/relocation vouchers for Park Lake prior to completing phase-out of all the Park Lake units. 

Section IV.  Sources and Amounts of Funding

This Section details the sources and amounts of funding included in the Authority’s MTW budget statement, the sources and amounts of funding for Federal housing programs outside this budget, and a Consolidated Budget Statement.

A.  Sources and Amounts of Funding in the Consolidated MTW Budget

The following table shows the FY 2006 budget adopted by the Board of Commissioners as well as projected revenues for FY 2007 for the operation of the housing programs included in the MTW Demonstration.  The Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher funding is reported under two line items, one for funding received for Section 8 vouchers in the form of a block grant and one for all other vouchers.

	PROJECTED REVENUES
	FY 2006 BUDGET
	FY 2007 BUDGET

	Dwelling Rental Income
	 $   7,114,875
	$   7,063,433

	Investment Income
	         96,862
	        819,012

	Other Income
	       520,014
	        734,082

	Section 8 Block Grant
	  60,718,303
	   59,303,861

	Section 8 Subsidy and Port/Admin Fees
	    3,212,600
	     3,203,571

	Capital Subsidy (CFP all years)
	  10,269,954
	     7,992,260

	Operating Subsidy (PH)
	    7,376,658
	     6,901,391

	Total Revenues
	$89,309,266
	$86,522,696


B.  Sources and Amounts of Funding Outside the Consolidated MTW Budget

The statement below shows the FY 2006 budget and projected 2007 revenues for the Section 8 New Construction and Preservation programs, grants that fund services to KCHA residents and program participants, and the HOPE VI redevelopment grant for Park Lake Homes.

	PROJECTED REVENUES
	FY 2006 BUDGET
	FY 2007 BUDGET

	Dwelling Rental Income
	   $   1,409,229 
	   $   1,341,546 

	Investment Income
	           347,794 
	          309,580

	Other Income
	             55,378 
	            56,871 

	Section 8 Subsidy and Admin Fees
	        2,748,041 
	       3,180,284 

	Capital Subsidy
	              0 
	              0 

	Operating Subsidy
	              0 
	               0 

	Grants  (non CFP)
	     10,282,074 
	     13,567,510

	Total Revenues
	$14,842,515 
	$18,445,791 


C.  Consolidated Budget Statement

	PROJECTED REVENUES
	FY 2006 BUDGET
	FY 2007 BUDGET

	Dwelling Rental Income
	   $   8,524,104 
	  $    8,404,979

	Investment Income
	           444,656 
	        1,128,592

	Other Income
	           575,392 
	           790,953

	Section 8 Block Grant
	      60,718,303 
	      59,303,861 

	Section 8 Subsidy and Admin Fee
	        5,960,641
	         6,383,855 

	Capital Subsidy
	      10,269,954 
	         7,992,260

	Operating Subsidy
	        7,376,658 
	         6,901,391 

	Grants
	      10,282,074 
	       13,567,510

	Total Revenues
	  $104,151,781 
	   $105,191,617 


Section V.  Uses of Funds

This Section details FY 2006 budgeted and FY 2007 planned MTW expenditures by line item, an explanation of the changes in expenses between the two years and intended policy and program initiatives included in the 2007 budget.  It also reviews the level and adequacy of reserves.

A. Planned Expenditures and Changes in Expenses in the MTW Budget

	PROJECTED EXPENSES
	FY 2006 BUDGET
	FY 2007 BUDGET

	Administration and General
	 19,321,237
	 19,970,768 

	Housing Assistance Payments
	   2,014,000
	   1,931,676

	Section 8 Block Grant HAP
	 60,718,303
	 59,303,861

	Utilities
	    2,877,716
	    2,829,795

	Maintenance
	    1,280,016
	    1,775,626

	Capital Projects
	    9,008,339
	    6,437,605

	Total Expenses
	$95,219,611
	$92,249,331


Categories of Costs:
· Administration and General: Salaries and employee benefits for all employees, office costs, professional service contracts including those supporting resident services, property and liability insurance and debt service on KCHA’s Section 8 offices and ESCO financing.

· Housing Assistance Payments: Housing assistance payments (HAP) projected to be paid on behalf of Section 8 participants are separated into two categories:  Section 811/Five Year Mainstream (non-MTW) and all other Vouchers (MTW Block Grant)

· Utilities: KCHA-paid utilities including water, sewer, electricity, natural gas and heating oil.  This category also includes trash collection costs, in conformity with private sector real estate accounting.

· Maintenance: All materials and contracts for the maintenance of KCHA’s public housing developments.

· Capital projects: Most capitalized improvements to KCHA’s developments are funded through the CFP.  This also includes Public Housing’s pro rata share of any hardware or software costs charged to CFP. The costs of a new regional Management/Maintenance office for the Southwest region is funded directly from Public Housing reserves.  This office has been relocated due to the HOPE VI project.

.

Changes from the FY 2006 Budget:

· Administrative and General:  

· Human resource costs are increasing due to higher medical insurance premiums, the cost of Washington State retirement plans and general inflation.  

· In addition, FY 2007 reflects the first full year of repayments for KCHA’s ESCO project.  This amount represents approximately 25% of the increase in this cost category. 

· Section 8 HAP is divided into two categories, Block Grant and Five Year Mainstream vouchers.  HUD approval to block grant 6500 vouchers was received in FY 2006.  Estimated funding has decreased due to continuing Congressional reductions in funding for the program; KCHA received approximately 95% of its formula funding in CY 2006, a lower percentage than in the prior year.

· Maintenance costs have climbed due to the materials and contract expenditures expected to be incurred in KCHA’s unit upgrade project. Funding for this will be provided from capital grant funds.  All of the increase in this category is as a result of this project, budgeted at $577 thousand excluding labor costs.

· Utility costs are projected to decline following installation of $4.0 million in energy upgrades funded through the KCHA Energy Savings Corporation (ESCO) in FY 2006.  Consumption of water has declined significantly; however, utility rates have climbed during the year, offsetting cost savings.

· Capital programs: There has been a steady decline in CFP funds available to the agency.  In order to leverage additional capital for fire/safety upgrades to eight senior buildings, KCHA will be using a mixed finance model in FY 2007 that will combine Low Income Housing Tax Credit equity with CFP.  Other projects scheduled for FY 2007 include two roof replacements and infrastructure and heating ventilation systems at two family developments.

 Major FY 2007 Initiatives:
The following are initiatives that the Authority will be undertaking during FY 2007.  Several are continuations of current activities and others represent the beginning of new strategies that will have long-term benefits for the Authority and its clients.

· KCHA has completed the roll out of its Site Based Management initiative.  An ongoing training program is being developed to assure that new property managers are well versed on the legal, regulatory and management skills needed to properly oversee their developments.  Managers have been issued Purchasing Cards which enables them to make small purchases for their sites.  KCHA will continue to monitor use of the Cards to verify best internal controls and compliance with HUD purchasing requirements. In addition, during FY 2007, the Authority will conduct an ongoing review of current procurement systems in order to assess and implement further policy changes and streamlining processes where warranted. 

· During FY 2006 KCHA began providing monthly financial statements to field property managers.  An objective of FY 2007 is to more fully automate this process and to provide more training to personnel as to financial statement usage and analysis.  Property managers have already used this training to create property-based budgets for their sites during this budgeting cycle.  The Authority will also investigate new productivity tools to make existing software more responsive to user’s needs.  This may include new software for its payroll and/or other financial systems.

· Now that the Operating Fund Rule has been finalized, KCHA is comparing its authority under its MTW Agreement with some of the new administrative and financial requirements, particularly those relating to Stop Loss.  KCHA has been granted fungibility of its operating and capital funds and the authority to develop its own management indicators which it may seek to use in lieu of the published Rules in certain areas.

· Ongoing Review of Energy Costs.  KCHA entered into an Energy Performance Contract during FY 2004 for its Public Housing Program.  Most of the anticipated $4.0 in energy measures were installed during FY 2006, resulting in an approximate 17% drop in water usage.  During FY 2007, KCHA will begin to bill residents for excess water usage.  The process of required tenant notices, lease changes and hearings and dummy “mock” billing notices to prepare residents for this change will take approximately 6 - 8 months.  KCHA is contracting with a third party billing service to perform this role.

· A consultant is being hired to review Section 8 office operating procedures in order to streamline workflow and simplify business processes.  Administrative Services piloted a document imaging system in FY 2006; this experience will be shared with both Section 8 and Public Housing staff in order to reduce on hand paperwork.

· Park Lake Homes HOPE VI Revitalization.  This redevelopment effort is transforming an aging public housing development into a new mixed-income neighborhood.  The first residents will move into the initial phase of the new development during the summer of 2006. The balance of the existing units on the site will be demolished during FY 2007.

· KCHA will move forward with leveraging a portion of its Capital Fund Program in order to fund needed life/safety initiatives at up to eight of its senior building programs. These are the last buildings in KCHA’s twenty-one building mixed population portfolio needing such upgrades.  It is clear that CFP funds are insufficient to address both these and other pressing needs of the inventory using CFP funds in this manner will leverage private sector equity.

· Many of the Authority’s public housing units, while in usable shape, are dated.  In order to reduce the disruption and cost of tenant relocation during unit upgrades, the Authority is initiating a pilot project to use its own force account for a limited number of unit upgrades during the year.  Current plans forecast 50 of these upgrades, which will take place on turnover. The project should increase the lives of the units as well as make them more attractive to prospective residents.

· Streamlined HUD Approval of Mixed-Finance Deals. Before the end of FY 2007, the Authority will request a HUD waiver to allow a mixed-finance closing to occur without review of evidentiary material by a HUD attorney, based on a model developed by HUD and the Atlanta Housing Authority.  

· Utilization of the Section 8 Block Grant flexibility to help expand the regional network of supportive housing units.  The Authority plans to use Section 8 funding to supportive housing projects that serve individuals with disabilities and homeless households.

· Utilization of the Section 8 Block Grant funds to develop a Self-Sufficiency program for Public Housing residents and expand current initiatives for housing choice voucher holders.  

· Performance Evaluation and Improvement.  KCHA will begin to develop measures to evaluate the impact of the MTW Program on agency operations and outcomes.  On a program level, the Authority will continue monthly Section 8 and Public Housing performance review meetings and refine performance and outcome indicators to closely monitor operations, self-sufficiency initiatives and the quality of services to its customers.  At the Public Housing project level, site reporting will continue to be expanded so that Regional and asset managers can quickly react to vacancy, crime or financial challenges within their apartment communities.

· MTW Implementation.  The Authority will explore the full use of its MTW Authority with HUD to continue to implement already-identified initiatives.

· The Authority is reviewing the advisability of placing its insurance portfolio into the commercial insurance market as opposed to the current risk pool and  a variety of supplemental policies.  A probable increase in costs will be weighed against the more comprehensive and coordinated coverage provided by a single insurer.

· The Authority will be conducting an assessment of its current performance pay structure.  This may also result in a broader pay and classification study later in the fiscal year.  KCHA is already working within its collective bargaining agreements to create job titles, responsibilities and pay scales more appropriate to site based management, and this effort will continue in FY 2007.

· New Investment Strategies.  KCHA has accumulated significant reserves in its HUD funded programs.  Utilizing the flexibility inherent in its MTW agreement, the KCHA Board of Commissioners has initiated a strategic and business planning process to develop an approach to using these reserves to further the mission of the Authority.

B.  Level and Adequacy of Reserves for Public Housing and Section 8 Programs

	PROJECTED RESERVES
	FYE 2007

	Public Housing
	$  8,172,712

	Section 8 Administrative Fee
	 3,531,446

	Section 8 Block Grant Reserve
	 8,904,470

	Total Reserves
	$20,608,631 


The Public Housing Program is budgeted to operate at a deficit in FY 2007.  As of the date of this plan, KCHA has not been informed by HUD as to the level of funding for FY 2007 and has made a best estimate of $6.9 million. At this level, it is probable that the Authority will have a $973,000 deficit in cash flow for its Public Housing operations at the end of FY 2007.  Reserves are adequate to cover this shortfall.  The public housing reserve represents approximately seven months of operating expense cash flow for KCHA's public housing program.  A portion of this reserve has been pledged to contingent development liabilities on the Greenbridge HOPE VI project. It is anticipated that a significant portion of this reserve will be committed to addressing the renovation costs of the Park Lake II and Springwood properties.

The Section 8 project reserve represents the accumulated block grant reserves captured by the Authority since the inception of the grant.  The Administrative Fee reserve is the accumulated excess in fees over costs for the Section 8 program, also built up over several years.  Under the authority granted it in its MTW agreement, these reserves can be used for any purpose supported by KCHA’s MTW authorization.  A significant portion of these funds has been set-aside to provide one month’s operating reserve for the voucher program. This reserve has enabled an increase in payment standards and the release of “retired” vouchers to bring KCHA’s voucher program leasing level back up to its former baseline. Additional reserve funds will be used to expand housing opportunities and support resident self-sufficiency initiatives for Public Housing and Section 8 program participants. 

Section VI.  Capital Planning

A. Major Capital Needs and Projects, Estimated Costs, and Proposed Timetables

The King County Housing Authority’s 10-year work plan covers the period from FY 2003 through FY 2012. It identifies over $58 million in capital work that needs to be performed between FY 2007 and FY 2012.  The plan addresses the highest priorities among those identified capital needs for public housing developments. KCHA’s capital grant funding from HUD has declined steadily over the past four years.  These reductions have been the result of both on-going budget cuts by Congress and the revitalization of Park Lake Homes under the HOPE VI program. 

KCHA is currently expending Capital Fund Program allocations from CFP years 2003, 2004 and 2005. CFP funds allocated for capital improvement are fully expended through CFP 2004 and 84% of the CFP 2005 capital improvement allocation is expended. All CFP 2005 funds for capital improvements are committed to projects scheduled within the KCHA 10-year work plan.

The projected Capital Fund availability for the five-year period is approximately $19.7 million. The total planned work for the five-year period is $34.6 million. For FY 2007, construction contracts for approximately $5.5 million will be undertaken. These work items are indicated below in the five-year projection of capital improvement expenditures. 

KCHA anticipates leveraging additional funding in the amount of approximately $14.9 million over the next 5 years by using a mixed financing approach that combines the proceeds of private activity bonds and 4% low income housing tax credit equity to fund capital improvements for selected public housing properties.  Annual debt service on the private activity bonds will be paid in annual installments over 20 years from the Capital Fund Program. All properties utilizing bond/tax credit leveraged financing will be sold to tax credit limited partnerships or limited liability companies controlled by KCHA and will continue to operate as public housing under regulatory and operating agreements with KCHA.  KCHA currently expects to submit disposition and mixed financing applications for Brittany Park, Paramount House, Casa Madrona, Plaza 17, Mardi Gras, Munro Manor, Riverton, Gustaves Manor and Springwood Apartments in FY 2007.

KCHA may modify the work identified as on-going capital needs assessments are updated, or as priorities change, or based on funding limitations.  Major projects include the following:

· Park Lake Homes Redevelopment.  The redevelopment of Park Lake Homes I under the HOPE VI Program is currently underway.  This once distressed public housing project is being completely redeveloped into a mixed-income neighborhood of new low-income and workforce rental housing combined with affordable and market rate for-sale homes. This planned community is organized around the 8th Ave SW “Main Street”, which includes facilities for services, recreation, neighborhood retail and education, including new Elementary School and Head Start facilities. Greenbridge is designed to be pedestrian friendly and incorporates an array of parks, walking trails, gardens and natural features into the fabric of the neighborhood.  The original 569 public housing units will be replaced on site with three hundred subsidized units for very low-income households and 269 offsite units to insure one for one “hard unit” replacement.  The first phase of new housing will be occupied in July 2006.

· Park Lake II Redevelopment.   The cost of upgrading the infrastructure and housing on this site to acceptable standards is such that KCHA anticipates demolishing the existing housing and initiating a HOPE VI-like redevelopment of this 31 acre site within 5 years.  Although approximately $350,000 is budgeted in FY 2007 to mitigate chronic moisture and mold problems in some Park Lake II units, all other non-emergency capital work will be deferred pending redevelopment.  For FY 2007, $150,000 is budgeted to begin master planning the redevelopment of the site.

· Springwood Apartments Redevelopment.  KCHA has determined that this aging and physically distressed 334 unit property cannot be sustained as public housing and will need to undergo a financial restructuring to leverage the approximately $40 million needed to completely renovate the site and substantially rehabilitate most of the buildings on the site.  In FY 2007, KCHA will submit a disposition application to sell the property to a tax credit limited partnership or limited liability company controlled by KCHA. The property will be decommissioned as public housing.  The sale proceeds will be used to leverage other federal, state, local and private financing to undertake the renovation and to insure that approximately 270 extremely low income units are maintained on this former public housing site.  Any extremely low income units removed from the site will be replaced on a one-for-one basis. 

· Fire and Life/Safety Upgrades in Mixed-Population Buildings.  The Authority has developed a multi-year plan to install sprinklers and updated fire safety systems in all its mixed-population buildings.  Installments in 12 of the buildings are complete with the remaining eight buildings to be upgraded over the next 3 years.  These multistory elevator buildings will use the bond/tax credit leveraged financing model discussed above to finance necessary work and will be sold to tax credit limited partnership or limited liability company controlled by KCHA.

· Unit Upgrade Demonstration Program.  Beginning in FY 2007, on a demonstration basis, KCHA will begin a program of major unit interior renovations on turnover. Approximately $1 million will be budgeted for 50+ interior renovations in selected public housing units in multiple properties.  KCHA’s in-house staff will undertake the work necessary to rehabilitate these units. In the past, major unit upgrades were undertaken on a building by building basis, requiring KCHA to employ architects to develop detailed plans, specifications and contract documents and to vacate entire buildings and relocate residents for up to 6 months so that general contactors could efficiently complete the work.  By having a dedicated upgrade crew working only in “turnover” units, KCHA expects substantial savings on soft costs, general contractor’s overhead and profit, and relocation costs.  Although the 10 year Capital Plan still projects major property by property interior renovations in FY 2008 – FY 2011, the Capital Plan will be modified to incorporate the unit turnover approach if the Unit Upgrade Demonstration Program is successful.

· Improved On-Site Community Facilities.  KCHA is actively upgrading community facilities at its major family sites to facilitate delivery of on-site services.  Last year, KCHA finished the construction of the Kent Family Center, providing Headstart, Career Development and primary health care services at the Springwood Apartments.   The redevelopment of the Springwood Community Center including construction of a gymnasium, game room, classrooms and computer center for older youth will be completed in July 2006. The Jim Wiley Community Center at Greenbridge is currently undergoing a $5.5 million renovation and will also reopen in FY 2007.  Because KCHA is anticipating the use of New Markets Tax Credit financing in connection with this renovation, KCHA will sell the Community Center to the Greenbridge Foundation with KCHA retaining an operating lease of the facility.  The property will revert to KCHA ownership in 7 years. 

· Other Major Multi-Year Projects.  Utilizing its ESCO financing, KCHA is completing replacement of all toilets with low-flow fixtures, installing energy efficient fluorescent lighting and new heating plants in its public housing inventory.   

B. Capital Plan Expenditures 

Five-Year Capital Plan and Projected Expenditures by KCHA Fiscal Year

	Property
	Scope of Work
	Total Construction Contract
	FY 07
	FY 08
	FY 09
	FY 10
	FY 11

	Park Lake II
	Heating & Ventilation Upgrades
	$350,000
	$350,000
	
	
	
	

	Brittany Park
	Fire/Life Safety Upgrades
	$1,500,000
	$1,500,000
	
	
	
	

	Paramount House
	Fire/Life Safety Upgrades
	$2,000,000
	$2,000,000
	
	
	
	

	Pickering Court
	Infrastructure 
	$550,000
	$550,000
	
	
	
	

	Northridge II
	Roofing
	$200,000
	$200,000
	
	
	
	

	Vista Heights
	Roofing 
	$200,000
	$200,000
	
	
	
	

	Valli Kee
	Furnace Replacements & Exterior Envelope
	$1,862,500
	$362,500
	
	
	$1,500,000
	

	Casa Juanita
	Infrastructure (commenced FY 06) & Roofing
	$475,000
	$200,000
	
	
	
	$275,000

	Cedarwood
	Furnace Replacement
	$42,500
	$42,500
	
	
	
	

	Boulevard Manor
	 Sheetrock walls over CMU 
	$50,000
	$50,000
	
	
	
	

	Casa Madrona
	Fire/Life Safety/Infrastructure
	$3,000,000
	
	$3,000,000
	
	
	

	Plaza 17
	Fire/Life Safety
	$3,250,000
	
	$2,500,000
	
	
	$750,000

	Lakehouse
	Common Area Ventilation
	$150,000
	
	$150,000
	
	
	

	Property
	Scope of Work
	Total Construction Contract
	FY 07
	FY 08
	FY 09
	FY 10
	FY 11

	Mardi Gras
	Fire/Life Safety & Roofing
	$2,050,000
	
	$1,000,000
	$800,000
	
	$250,000

	Munro Manor
	Fire/Life Safety & Decks
	$2,350,000
	
	$500,000
	$1,850,000
	
	

	Juanita Court
	Interior Renovation & Exterior Envelope
	$1,200,000
	
	
	$1,200,000
	
	

	Riverton Terrace
	Fire/Life Safety
	$1,000,000
	
	
	$1,000,000
	
	

	Juanita Trace
	Interior Renovation
	$1,400,000
	
	
	$1,400,000
	
	

	Gustaves Manor
	Fire Sprinklers Residents Units
	$500,000
	
	
	$500,000
	
	

	Southridge
	Electric Meters/ Building Envelope
	$770,000
	$20,000
	
	
	$750,000
	

	Evergreen Court
	Interior Renovation
	$1,150,000
	
	
	
	$1,150,000
	

	Cedarwood
	Interior/Exterior Renovation
	$1,100,000
	
	
	
	$1,100,000
	

	Green River
	Interior/Exterior Renovation
	$3,600,000
	
	
	
	$1,800,000
	$1,800,000

	Kings Court
	Interior/Exterior Renovation
	$1,650,000
	
	
	
	$1,100,000
	$550,000

	College Place
	Interior Renovation
	$1,925,000
	
	
	
	
	$1,925,000

	Eastside Terrace
	Interior Renovation
	$1,550,000
	
	
	
	
	$1,550,000

	Bellevue 8
	Interior/Exterior Renovation
	$400,000
	
	
	
	
	$400,000

	Federal Way Houses
	Siding
	$75,000
	
	
	
	
	$75,000

	TOTAL
	
	$34,620,000
	$5,475,000
	$7,150,000
	$6,750,000
	$7,400,000
	$7,575,000


Section VII: Owned and Managed Units

This Section provides information required under KCHA’s MTW Agreement on performance indicators for public housing units under KCHA management. 

A. Vacancy Rates

The tables below provide the vacancy rates for public housing developments as of April 1, 2006.  The Authority provides annual snapshots of performance indicators and other data for April 1 of each year of the Demonstration because the timing of MTW Annual Plan submission does not allow for end-of-fiscal-year data to be gathered and analyzed. 
	DEVELOPMENT
	HOUSEHOLDS
	UNITS
	VACANCY RATE

	AVONDALE MANOR
	20
	20
	0.0%

	BALLINGER HOMES
	110
	110
	0.0%

	BELLEVUE SINGLE-FAMILY HOMES
	8
	8
	0.0%

	BOULEVARD MANOR
	70
	70
	0.0%

	BRIARWOOD
	70
	70
	0.0%

	BRITTANY PARK
	43
	43
	0.0%

	BURNDALE HOMES*
	49
	50
	2.0%

	CAMPUS COURT
	13
	13
	0.0%

	CASA JUANITA
	80
	80
	0.0%

	CASA MADRONA
	67
	70
	4.3%

	CASCADE APTS
	107
	108
	0.9%

	CEDARWOOD
	25
	25
	0.0%

	COLLEGE PLACE
	51
	51
	0.0%

	EASTRIDGE HOUSE
	40
	40
	0.0%

	EASTSIDE TERRACE
	50
	50
	0.0%

	EVERGREEN COURT
	30
	30
	0.0%

	FIRWOOD CIRCLE
	46
	50
	8.0%

	FOREST GLEN
	40
	40
	0.0%

	FOREST GROVE
	25
	25
	0.0%

	GLENVIEW HEIGHTS
	10
	10
	0.0%

	GREEN RIVER HOMES
	59
	60
	1.7%

	GREENLEAF
	27
	27
	0.0%

	GUSTAVES MANOR
	35
	35
	0.0%

	JUANITA COURT
	30
	30
	0.0%

	JUANITA TRACE
	30
	30
	0.0%

	JUANITA TRACE II
	9
	9
	0.0%

	KINGS COURT
	30
	30
	0.0%

	KIRKWOOD TERRACE
	28
	28
	0.0%

	MARDI GRAS
	61
	61
	0.0%

	MUNRO MANOR
	60
	60
	0.0%


	DEVELOPMENT
	HOUSEHOLDS
	UNITS
	VACANCY RATE

	NORTHRIDGE HOUSE I
	69
	70
	1.4%

	NORTHRIDGE HOUSE II
	70
	70
	0.0%

	PARAMOUNT HOUSE
	70
	70
	0.0%

	PARK LAKE HOMES I & II Hope VI Site
	131
	569
	Redevelopment

	PARK LAKE HOMES II
	164
	165
	0.6%

	PICKERING COURT
	30
	30
	0.0%

	PLAZA 17
	70
	70
	0.0%

	RIVERTON TERRACE
	60
	60
	0.0%

	SHOREHAM
	18
	18
	0.0%

	SOUTHRIDGE HOUSE
	80
	80
	0.0%

	SPRINGWOOD APTS
	321
	333
	3.6%

	THE LAKE HOUSE
	70
	70
	0.0%

	VALLI KEE HOMES
	114
	114
	0.0%

	VICTORIAN WOODS / FEDERAL WAY HOMES
	16
	18
	11.1%

	VISTA HEIGHTS
	29
	30
	3.3%

	WAYLAND ARMS
	67
	67
	0.0%

	WELLSWOOD
	30
	30
	0.0%

	YARDLEY ARMS
	67
	67
	0.0%

	YOUNGS LAKE
	25
	28
	10.7%

	DEVELOPMENTS NOT UNDER REDEVELOPMENT
	2,693
	2,756
	1.1%


Excluding Park Lake Homes, which is under redevelopment, the overall vacancy rate as of April 1, 2006, was 1.1% percent.  The Authority expects a similarly low overall vacancy rate for its public housing properties in FY 2007.

B. Rent Collections

The Authority anticipates collecting over 98 percent of the public housing rents assessed during FY 2007. This was the rent collection level during FY 2006.  

C. Work Orders

KCHA’s anticipates responding within 24 hours to 100 percent of the requests for emergency maintenance work orders during FY 2007.  The Authority also projects responding within 30 days to at least 97 percent of the requests for regular maintenance work orders during FY 2007. These were the maintenance work order response levels during FY 2006.

D. HQS Inspections

HUD’s Housing Quality Standards regulations currently require that each public housing unit and system be inspected annually. KCHA is on track to complete 100 percent of HQS inspections during FY 2006. KCHA will review and possibly modify inspection procedures in FY 2007, but will, pending such notifications, continue to inspect public housing units and systems in accordance with the Housing Quality Standards in FY 2007.  

E. Security

KCHA employs strict suitability standards for screening applicants, including the use of criminal background checks by local, state, and federal law enforcement agencies, as a primary strategy to ensure that its communities are safe places for households to live.  Proactive and consistent lease enforcement by housing management staff is the Authority’s next line of defense in its anti-crime strategy.  KCHA continues the operation of the core strategies previously funded under the Drug Elimination Grant (DEG), although the defunding of DEG has severely curtailed certain drug and crime prevention programs.  These core strategies include:

· Partnerships with Police Departments throughout the Authority’s jurisdiction.  KCHA has developed and maintains strong relationships with police departments to ensure that public housing residents receive the services they need for their safety and security.  These relationships take the form of contracts with police departments funded by KCHA and Memoranda Of Understanding between the Authority and other local law enforcement agencies.  Police Department cooperation with management is especially crucial for KCHA’s ability to access information needed to successfully pursue evictions or other solutions in cases of serious criminal and drug activity.

· Community Policing.  KCHA is continuing its community policing programs in some family communities through the use of public housing reserves.  These programs foster a cooperative relationship between residents and community police officers.  Several sites have community police substations on site to deter criminal activity and assist residents in their efforts to enhance safety through the establishment of block watches and other efforts.

· After-School and Summer Programs. The Authority has developed partnerships with numerous service providers and community-based organizations to offer on- and off-site programs and activities for children.  These include youth sports, homework and youth tutoring programs, and summer day camps.  A list of these services is included in Appendix F.
· Public Housing Safety Initiative.  During FY 2006, the Authority was awarded a two year grant in the amount of $600,000 from the Department of Justice to provide a combination of safety prevention and intervention services in three public housing developments.  The grant, which is scheduled to run through March 2008, provides for additional community policing efforts and increased after school and late night programs for at-risk youth.

The Authority’s transition of its public housing operations to property-based management will increase the on-site presence of management and maintenance staff and lead to closer management-tenant relationships, which is anticipated to increase the sense of security and safety among residents.

F. MTW Demonstration Initiatives

1.   Property-Based Management 

During FY 2005, KCHA implemented a property-based management demonstration by transitioning the operations of one of its five geographic areas (South Area) from a centralized, program-based model to a site-based asset management model.  Under this model, the Authority is combining features of private sector property management with aspects of a program-based management model to equal the efficiencies of private sector practices.  Under KCHA’s property-based management system, the authority for making decisions affecting public housing is decentralized to staff most closely connected to the developments.  

The following management responsibilities were transferred from area-based to property-based staff in the demonstration area:

· Monitoring of budgets and financial reports

· Staffing decisions

· Purchasing

· Ongoing maintenance, including work orders 

· Unit turnover

In FY 2006, the demonstration expanded to the entire public housing inventory.  In addition to decentralizing the responsibilities listed above, the following property management tasks were transferred to property-based staff:

· Property-Based Budgeting.  The property-based budgets for FY 2005 and FY 2006 were developed primarily by central office staff.  In FY 2007, responsibility for developing budgets for individual properties, based on actual property specific data from the previous year, was transferred to the property managers.

· Capital Planning.  Property-based staff have become more involved in assessments of capital priorities. 

KCHA will continue to develop its own performance measures and assessment tools as part of its transition from a program-based to a property-based system. Primary objectives for FY 2007 include the need to more fully automate access to financial data, increase availability and use of productivity tools and to the provision of increased training to staff regarding financial statement use and analysis.

A key aspect of the shift towards property-based management has been the development of project-based budgets and accounting reports.  During FY 2007, KCHA will continue work toward implementation of a property-based financial management systems that meet the needs of the Public Housing program.  

2.   Policy-Related Streamlining Initiatives

The major policy initiatives to be initiated or completed in FY 2007 focus on administrative efficiencies, resident self-sufficiency and customer service. 

Rent Policy

Central goals of rent policy reform include administrative simplification of the current policy and encouragement of resident self-sufficiency.  A number of areas will be targeted, including, but not limited to:

· Simplification or replacement of the excessively burdensome earned income disregards.  The Authority is committed to expanding employment incentives and rewarding work. 

· Income verification.

· Frequency of annual reviews.

· Utility allowance determination.

· Simplification of medical deductions and other income adjustments related to rent determination.

Admissions Policies

In conjunction with the transition to property-based management, KCHA implemented a Centralized Applications system in FY 2006 in order to ensure consistent application of admissions policies and to streamline operations. During FY 2007, KCHA staff will continue to review and modify processes, as necessary, to ensure that staff and applicants are not bogged down by complex layers of admissions-related policies and procedures. Policies will be designed to remove eligibility barriers, where appropriate, for hard to house populations, and increase applicant choice and access to programs while not creating a disparate impact toward protected classes.   

3.   Other Initiatives

The Authority will continue to explore all options for administrative streamlining detailed under the MTW Agreement, including the following:

· Allowing transfers of clients between the Section 8, local programs and public housing programs under some circumstances. Revising other elements of the transfer policy. 

· Exploring changes in the eligibility policy regarding single, nondisabled, non-elderly persons.

· Exploring options to streamline the grievance procedures.

· Adopting a locally designed lease consistent with MTW initiatives, including provisions regarding utility consumption sub-metering and smoke free environments. 

· Exploring and implementing revisions, if any, to inspection protocols.

· Exploring options for revisions to current income calculation and verification practices and procedures.

· Ongoing review of the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Plan to seek ways to simplify the Authority’s policies and procedures.

Section VIII.  Management Information for Leased Housing

This Section discusses performance measures and objectives required under KCHA’s MTW Agreement with HUD and focuses on the Authority’s efforts to improve program performance under the MTW Demonstration.  MTW initiatives related to policy reforms are discussed in Section II.

A.  Leasing Information

1.   Lease-up rate

As discussed in last year’s annual plan, the Housing Authority’s strategy in leasing units changed when Congress mandated a change from a funding-based system to a budget-based system and capped Housing Assistance Payment levels at a level below full funding.  Under the new strategy, the goal is to fund as many vouchers as possible under existing budget constraints.  As a result, lease-up rates were reduced in FY 2005 and FY 2006. Changes under KCHA’S MTW Program to contain per unit costs have enabled KCHA to restore vouchers previously pulled out of circulation.  KCHA anticipates its lease-up percentage to be just over 97% by the end of its 2006 fiscal year, and is projecting 99% lease-up rate in FY 2007.

2.   Ensuring Rent Reasonableness

KCHA will continue to use the services of Dupre + Scott, a professional real estate consulting firm that conducts rental market research in the Puget Sound Region.  Dupre + Scott publishes a customized (for the Section 8 Program) annual rent reasonableness report based on an extensive survey of rental units in rental sub-markets across King County.  The report establishes a maximum rent for housing units based on a number of factors, including its location, size, quality, type, amenities, utilities and general condition.  This year, KCHA added a new web-based resource to provide additional information for performing Rent Reasonable tests.  The new website gives data on all apartment buildings in the Seattle-King County area with 50 or more units.  The data includes total number of units, age of building, square footage by bedroom size, rental price of last units rented as well as comparable units within a stated number of miles.  A trained Section 8 inspector uses these reports as a guide for making rent reasonableness determinations.  KCHA staff make rent reasonableness determinations for all units rented under the Section 8 program, including units owned by KCHA.  

3.   Expanding Housing Opportunities and Deconcentration

The following are descriptions of strategies the Authority is using to increase the housing opportunities for low-income households through the Section 8 program:

Housing Choice Voucher Project Based Assistance Program 

The Authority has developed and implemented a local Housing Choice Voucher Project Based Assistance program to preserve and increase the range of housing options available to low-income households and to offer more housing opportunities in low-poverty areas. KCHA does this by converting tenant-based vouchers to Project Based Assistance, which is tied directly to a project through a contract with an owner for a specific number of units. The owner is obligated to house Section 8-eligible tenants in this housing and to abide by any other program parameters established by KCHA and/or partner funders. 

Different categories of vouchers will be allocated for a range of population groups and purposes.  These include both transitional and permanent housing opportunities for individuals and families with children who may in certain cases need on-site support services. General numerical targets for units to be project-based in each category are as follows:

1. Private Housing Program (Off-site HOPE VI Replacement Housing):  KCHA will project-base 269 replacement vouchers under the Park Lake HOPE VI project in housing it controls, and in projects owned by nonprofit organizations and funded by A Regional Coalition for Housing (ARCH) (about 120 units) or other government funders. The intent of this initiative is to deconcentrate the supply of subsidized housing by shifting it from one of the most impoverished communities in the region to more affluent neighborhoods. 

Units currently under contract: 190

2. Public Housing Redevelopment (On-site Public Housing Replacement Housing): To replace or redevelop public housing units on-site at former Public Housing sites, KCHA will permanently and/or temporarily project-base up to 280 units to serve new and returning residents at Greenbridge. Further use of this tool may be contemplated if additional redevelopment sites are identified.

Units currently under contract: 110

3. Housing for formerly homeless families:  KCHA will work with the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation’s Sound Families Initiative to create up to 230 units of supportive housing for formerly homeless families. 

Units currently under contract: 134

4. Supportive Housing: Housing and Services Program (HASP) Vouchers will be made available for project-basing to create or preserve service-enriched permanent housing opportunities in up to 150 units for disabled households and individuals who need on-site support services.

Units Currently Under contract: 25

5. Families with Children:  To increase housing opportunities for households with children in low-poverty, employment-rich areas with limited subsidized housing opportunities, KCHA may commit Project Based Assistance for up to an additional 100 units in such projects.  Such opportunities may be pursued only after KCHA’s replacement housing goals have been met and will be conditioned on the availability of additional vouchers.

Units Currently Under contract:0
6. Local Preservation:  KCHA may attach Project Based Assistance to up to 150 units in projects that require temporary or permanent operating subsidies in order to serve extremely low-income households.

Units Currently Under contract: 73
7. King County’s Community Plan to End Homelessness: As a partner in the Committee to End Homelessness, KCHA reserves the right to identify new program categories that specifically serve homeless households and further the goals of the King County Plan to End Homelessness for up to 100 units.

Units Currently Under contract: 0
8. Transition in Place: If resources are available, KCHA will allocate up to 40 “transition in place” vouchers to Transitional Housing Programs that are funded by KCHA and Sound Families as needed.

Units Currently Under contract: 0
9. Demonstration Programs: KCHA reserves the right to provide Project Based Assistance to up to 100 units in a limited number of pilot projects that will serve an important public purpose, but may not qualify under the Program’s identified programs or policies.

Units Currently Under contract: 0
Housing Choice Voucher Tenant Based Programs Serving Special Needs Populations

KCHA partners with a number of agencies to provide housing opportunities for populations and households that may not otherwise be able to take advantage of the Section 8 program and who need supportive services. 

To better serve households with disabilities, KCHA created the Housing Access and Services Program (HASP) in partnership with a consortium of human service and behavioral health systems. Under this program, support services are in place to assist disabled participants in 1) utilizing their vouchers by finding suitable housing and 2) intervening in crisis situations when a tenant is at risk of losing their housing. Due to KCHA’s commitment in this area, 39% of all KCHA’s Section 8 participants are now disabled households. 

To better serve families with special needs, KCHA partners with nonprofit agencies that serve survivors of domestic violence and families with parents who have been, or are at risk of being, separated from their children due to homelessness. KCHA’s service partners are seeking funding to provide supportive services to additional participants in FY 2007.
Exception Rent Areas 

To ensure that Section 8 clients can access housing throughout King County, the Authority continues to establish exception rent areas where the rent payment standard is higher than in other areas.  Due to funding cuts in FY 2004, the exception area rents were reduced from 120 percent to 115 percent of HUD’s Fair Market Rents (FMRs).  The lower payment standard has remained the same since that time. However, with a recent increase in the FMR and the stabilization of HUD funding, the Housing Authority is proposing an increase back to the 120 per cent level in the exception areas to assist families struggling to obtain and maintain housing in those areas.  

Landlord Outreach 

The Authority does extensive outreach to current and potential landlords through a variety of methods.  Those methods include staffing a Section 8 information booth at TRENDS/Rental Housing Management Conference and Trade show, periodic information mailings to let the landlords know of upcoming changes to the program, and continued refinements to the KCHA webpage to make it easier for a landlord to gain information about the program and list any available units.

Inspection Strategy 

Implementing an effective and efficient Section 8 Housing Quality Standards inspection program for KCHA’s large jurisdiction – it covers almost 2,000 square miles – is a significant challenge.

In FY 2004, KCHA adopted changes to its inspection protocols to ease the burden on participants and landlords and to streamline the inspections process.  These changes include:

· Allowing KCHA Section 8 staff to inspect KCHA-owned units;

· Allowing owners and participants to self-certify corrections of minor HQS inspection fail items identified during annual inspections.

Additional changes to inspection protocols described in previous plans will continue to be pursued as part of this year’s goals.  Additional changes will be considered this year, with the intent of:

· Reducing the number of annual inspections through sampling in buildings with large numbers of Section 8 families or other approaches.

· Creating a more efficient inspection system by separating the annual review from the inspection allowing for clustering of inspections located in the same neighborhood or in the same building.  Modifying initial re-inspection cycles to facilitate the switchover to a clustered inspection program. 

· Exploring policy options for reducing the number of missed inspections.

· Accepting inspections by other parties (State Housing Finance Commission, County Affordable Housing Program) whose practices and standards are similar to those of KCHA.

In pursuing these initiatives, KCHA will continue its commitment to provide safe, decent, and sanitary housing for all its Section 8 participants.

B.  New MTW Demonstration Initiatives

During FY 2006, the Housing Authority received approval from HUD to include all HUD-Funded vouchers (except for a small portion designated for the Mainstream Program) into a single Block Grant.  As a result, the Housing Authority is allowed to apply a single set of program policies and procedures to the administration of the program.  Changes to be explored and/or implemented under this initiative may include the following areas:

· Eligibility criteria for tenants;

· Property and owner eligibility criteria;

· Review of rent policies including income inclusions and exclusions, deductions, minimum rent, timing of reviews, method of rent calculation, and subsidy levels;

· Expansion of methods of income verification;

· Waiting list procedures and tenant selection procedures, criteria and preferences;

· The content of the Housing Assistance Payments Contract;

· Family Obligations;

· Portability and moving procedures and policies;

· Alternative means of setting rent payment standards and exception payment standards;

· Standards and procedures for reviewing, setting, and implementing utility allowances;

· Eligibility policy regarding single persons who are not disabled and not elderly, live-in aides, and residual family members;

· Further refinement of the Project Based policy and procedures;

· Changes to the Inspection protocol.

· Targeting of vouchers to specific priority populations and supportive service providers in coordination with the local 10 Year Plan to End Homelessness program priorities and funding. 

Section IX.   Resident Programs

This Section describes current resident support services programs available to King County Housing Authority public housing residents and Section 8 participants.  This Section also describes issues and proposed actions to be taken in this area during FY 2007.  Appendix F provides a comprehensive list of services now available to KCHA’s residents. 

A.  Services and Programs

Strong families are the heart of KCHA’s communities. Resident Services provides an array of programs that strengthen families and promote resident self-sufficiency. These services are broadly divided into programs for children and youth; services that create opportunities for residents of all ages to develop career preparedness skills, earn a livable wage and build assets; and finally, services that support seniors and younger disabled populations. KCHA continues to provide these services as a fundamental commitment to its residents in spite of diminished resources available from HUD.   In addition, KCHA recognizes that it serves a population that is culturally, socially, and economically diverse and is committed to partnering with a wide range of service organizations to ensure the appropriate delivery of support services to residents living within its housing communities. 

1. Children and Youth Support Services 

This effort coordinates youth support activities, both educational and recreational, delivered at public housing sites and other properties operated by KCHA. KCHA funds and monitors a series of programs and links on-site activities to community-based programs. Working with Puget Sound Educational Service District, KCHA provides three on-site Head Start centers within the Authority’s largest public housing communities. Working with Boys and Girls Clubs, Neighborhood House, Center for Human Services and Kent Youth and Family Services, KCHA provides after-school and late night recreation activities, mentoring programs, homework assistance and computer center activities to children of all ages.

2. Self-Sufficiency Services and Programs

A core KCHA strategy is the creation of support and opportunities for residents in public housing and those in the Section 8 program to obtain employment, retain their jobs, increase their incomes and move to unsubsidized housing.  These efforts include:

· Career Development Centers.  Two Centers are strategically located in KCHA’s two largest low income communities to serve large numbers of families who receive Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and other public support. The great majority of these families are immigrant and refugee families and the Centers focus on providing these residents with an array of services including pre-employment training (ESL, GED, job skills development), as well as job placement and retention services.  The Greenbridge CDC (formerly known as the Park Lake CDC) is playing a significant role in achieving the site’s HOPE VI Community Support Service goals while the newly created Kent Family Center CDC coordinates with a co-located Head Start Center and WIC Clinic to serve low-income families in Kent.  KCHA also works with the region’s community colleges to provide outreach and services to households in KCHA’ smaller public housing complexes.

· Section 8 Family Self-Sufficiency Program. Section 8 participants contract with the Housing Authority for up to five years to create an escrow account in which the difference between their base rent and subsequent higher rents due to increases in income is deposited.  When FSS participants who have met their program goals are ready to end their contract, they receive the balance in their escrow account, which can be used for homeownership, higher education, or small business development. 

3. Support Services Coordination for Elderly and Younger Disabled Households

Support Service Coordinators serve residents of 21 mixed-population public housing buildings (senior and younger disabled households) to provide assistance and coordinate outside support services with resident needs.   The coordinators help residents assess these needs and link to community-based services that enable them to remain independent and healthy for as long as possible. KCHA also works with and coordinates services, including transportation, provided to residents by Neighborhood House, Senior Services and other partner agencies.  

Additional Resident Support Service Activities
1. Reasonable Accommodations

The Authority provides a 504 Reasonable Accommodation program, which coordinates responses to resident and applicant requests for reasonable accommodation in public housing and for Section 8 participants and applicants.

2. Section 8 Partnerships with Human Service Organizations

KCHA coordinates the provision of supportive services to residents with special needs housed through the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program. The largest of these partnerships is HASP, the Housing Access and Services Program, which ensures that people with disabilities find and maintain housing by connecting the resources of Section 8 to the supportive services of King County's human service systems. Over 1,400 disabled individuals are housed through this program.

Other KCHA partnerships with nonprofit providers serve survivors of domestic violence, people transitioning from nursing homes, homeless parents reuniting with their children, and other groups who need supportive services connected to affordable housing. 

3. Project-Based Assistance Program

KCHA has made Project-Based Section 8 operating subsidies available to housing owners and service agencies to assist in the development of transitional and permanent housing.  Many of these projects serve people with special needs.  The project-basing program leverages substantial investment in support services through local partnerships.  One example, the Sound Families Program sponsored by the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation, creates supportive housing with extensive support services for formerly homeless families.  This program aids in KCHA’s efforts to broaden housing choices.  Other initiatives include KCHA’s partnership with the King County Behavioral Health Care System and United Way to develop permanent housing for chronically homeless individuals and coordination with the County’s efforts under the 10 Year Plan to End Homelessness.

4. Public Housing Homeownership Program

This program offers information, counseling and educational workshops and individual homeownership support to eligible residents of KCHA.  A pilot program begun in 1997 focused on homeownership for residents at the Youngs Lake public housing development. This program was successful in assisting residents in their efforts to become self-sufficient and transition to homeownership.  The current homeownership program, implemented in FY 2004 in partnership with the Seattle Housing Authority and funded by a ROSS grant, has as its goal the acquisition of homes by 30 public housing residents over a three-year period. The Seattle Metropolitan Urban League in partnership with International District Housing Alliance and El Centro de la Raza is responsible for implementing this program.  The program ends in July 2005 and the goal of 30 new homeowners has been meet.  Using its MTW flexibility, KCHA has provided up to $15,000 in pre- and post-purchase assistance to eligible households. 

5. AmeriCorps Program

KCHA provides staffing, supervision, and coordination of a 12-member team of AmeriCorps volunteers who work in public housing, school and community settings to support the needs of residents, including youth tutoring and adult education.

6.   Hope VI Family Services 

The HOPE VI Family Services staff works with families displaced by the HOPE VI redevelopment project before, during and after they transition from Park Lake Homes to provide assistance with relocation, housing stability assistance, emergency issues, self-sufficiency and long term goal development. 

In addition, KCHA utilizes informal and formal relationships with local community agencies to provide HOPE VI families with additional support services including homeownership, employment and training, financial planning, youth activities and healthcare. Over 30 families vacating the Park Lake site have bought houses - some of them through the Homeownership Program mentioned above.  Services will be available through 2009 when it is anticipated that all former Park Lake Homes residents who wish to return to the new community will have had the opportunity to do so.  

B.  Issues and Proposed Actions

The major challenges to the Authority in FY 2007 are the continuation of the well-established services and programs discussed above, given HUD’s significant erosion of financial support for resident support activities, and the expansion of resident self-sufficiency efforts. The Authority will address the following priorities related to resident services in FY 2007.

1.   Initiatives to Strengthen Self-Sufficiency Outcomes

KCHA will continue to operate its existing self-sufficiency programs referenced above. In addition, the Authority will develop a five-year economic self-sufficiency strategy for Public Housing residents and Housing Choice Voucher program participants that will include a continuum of initiatives to address homelessness prevention, housing stability, employment, job retention, income progression and transitioning to subsidy-free living. Included in this initiative will be the development of an integrated tracking system for monitoring the success of residents who participate in these self-sufficiency initiatives. This effort may be combined with the implementation of a new rent policy with more effective employment incentives.   

2.   Continuing to Address the Needs of the Senior and Younger Disabled Populations 

The Authority adopted a new Housing Designation Plan for its 21 senior and younger disabled buildings in FY 2005.  The Support Services Coordination Program will continue to serve residents in these buildings. The Authority will also provide services under its  Title XIX Medicaid Administrative Claiming contract with the State of Washington that began last year. This contract provides additional financial support and program flexibility to allow Support Service staff to better serve Medicaid-eligible residents. 

KCHA has begun a nutrition and wellness pilot initiative with Senior Services of Seattle/King County aimed at providing health programs in the mixed population buildings.  The Authority plans to expand this program to all of its mixed population buildings this year. 

3. Improving Safety in public housing communities 
In late 2005, KCHA, in partnership with two police departments, several community service providers and the United States Attorney’s Office, was awarded a public housing safety initiative grant to deliver crime prevention and intervention services in three housing developments. This grant provides the ability to improve the physical environment of each development, increase community policing efforts, create new safety measures and provide additional after school and late night activities for at-risk youth.     

4. Expanding social services in tax credit properties

Many of KCHA’s bond and tax credit properties have a resident population similar to public housing communities. Increasingly these sites are home to tenant or project based housing choice voucher holders.  Residents would benefit from services that support economic self sufficiency and after school youth education and recreation programs. Over the next year, KCHA will explore the development of a support service strategy targeted to these communities.

5. Creating Better Facilities to Increase Family Support Services

Over the past several years KCHA has worked with its community service partners to create, expand and upgrade facilities to enhance program delivery and access to services for all public housing and Section 8 residents.  

· Kent Family Center. In 2004, the Authority, working in partnership with Puget Sound Educational Service District and two community-based non-profit service providers, completed fundraising and construction of a new Kent Family Center. This two-story 20,000 square foot building houses Head Start, a WIC Clinic and a career development center at Springwood, KCHA’s largest public housing site in south King County. 

· Springwood Youth Center. In 2005, the same partnership that built the Kent Family Center began raising the capital needed for the replacement of the Springwood Community Center with a new Youth Center.  This 10,800 Center is scheduled to open in August 2006 and will provide a state of the art space for after school and late night youth activities.    

· Greenbridge Community Service campus. As part of the Greenbridge HOPE VI project, KCHA is working with over a dozen long time service agencies to create a coordinated network of facilities that will support comprehensive services for the community. The first building completed on land provided by the Housing Authority is the new White Center Heights Elementary School, which has been designed as a community school, with facilities open to the community after school hours  The School opened in 2005.  Other projects on the 8th Avenue campus include:

· The Jim Wiley Community Center.  Rehabilitation of this 23,000 square foot facility to provide youth tutoring, mentoring and recreation, family and individual case management, adult basic education, ESL and citizenship classes, senior activities cultural cases, EITC assistance, energy assistance, community meeting and gathering spaces is underway. Re-occupancy is expected in early 2007.

· The YWCA Learning Center at Greenbridge.  This development of an 8,000 square foot building by the YWCA will include a branch library and Washington State University Cooperative Extension Program.  The Learning Center will provide job search assistance, employment case management, youth leadership programs, literacy enrichment, distance learning, 4-H programming and basic computer classes. Scheduled to open in 2008.

· The Greenbridge Early Learning Center.  Developed  in partnership with the Puget Sound Educational Services District, this 22,000 square foot building will provide Head Start programs, parenting classes, employment services for Head Start parents, regional training programs, support and training for informal childcare providers, child care, home visits, prenatal/infant/toddler services.  Scheduled to open in 2008. 
To support capital fundraising activities at Greenbridge and Springwood, KCHA has established two 501(c)3 partnerships with non-profit service providers.  These partnerships, Building Better Futures and the Greenbridge Foundation, have already been successful in raising close to $8 million to assist in the development of these facilities. 

Section X.   Other Information Required by HUD

KCHA Commission Resolution and Required HUD Certifications

· Board Resolution Adopting this FY 2007 MTW Annual Plan

· PHA Certification of Compliance with MTW Plan Requirements 

· Certification for a Drug-Free Workplace 

· Certification of Payments to Influence Federal Transactions 

· Disclosure of Lobbying Activities 

· FY 2005 Audit Report in Compliance with OMB Circular A-133

To access electronic copies of the Board Resolution and related Certifications, please click the icons below:
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Funding Allocation Forms 

· Calculation of Operating Subsidy 

· Capital Fund Program Estimate 

· Section 8 Estimate of Total Required Annual Contributions for Mainstream Vouchers

To access electronic copies of Funding Allocation forms, please click the icon below:
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Section XI.  Community Review of the MTW Plan and Ongoing Policy Formulation

A.   Coordination and Public Notice

The King County Housing Authority is committed to ensuring the MTW Annual Plan is developed in an open environment that encourages public and resident review and input.   Under guidelines established by the Housing Authority, “Draft” MTW Annual Plan for FY 2007 was made available for public review and comment for a minimum period of 45-Days.  Public Notification of “draft” Plan availability was advertised as follows: 

· Posted on KCHA’s website (kcha.org); 

· Posted within all KCHA Public Housing Management offices and each development; and, 

· Published in the Northwest Asian Weekly and the Seattle Times.  

Copies of the “draft” Plan were made available, upon request, to all interested parties.

In addition, copies of the “draft” MTW Plan were distributed to the Resident Advisory Councils (RAC) prior to the RAC’s regularly scheduled meetings on June 27th and 29th , 2007.  RAC meetings on June 27th and 29th allotted time to review “draft” Plan components, answer questions and invite further comment and input prior to the Public Hearing scheduled for August 11, 2007.  In response to the RAC request, a revised draft Plan was forwarded to all members on July 18, 2007.  

The efforts commenced with a Public Hearing on August 11th, 2006 at the Kent Family Center, during which participants were invited to present input and comment on the “draft” Plan.    A copy of the Authority’s presentation regarding the Plan is appended as Appendix G.  

B.   Comments Received 

Comments regarding KCHA’s FY 2007 MTW Annual Plan are summarized below:

	Name
	Comment
	KCHA Response

	Jolene B.
	Generally liked the plan; Concerned with the focus to “End Homelessness” – wanted to ensure this did not mean KCHA intended to lower screening standards that could result in increased problems associated with crime/drugs 
	Duly noted – no changes in plan as a result.

	Name
	Comment
	KCHA Response

	Joe Ingram
	Gave positive support to the goals and to the Plan development process.  Requested materials mailed as far in advance of meetings as possible.  Suggested a revised draft be distributed to RAC members when available.
	Agreed with the request to provide materials as early as possible to facilitate review.  Committed to providing a revised draft – mailing to RAC members completed July 18, 2006.  

	Terry Dige
	Stated her appreciation of the Plan’s focus on children and the disabled community.  Questioned KCHA policy regarding bedroom size allocations.
	Responded to Ms. Dige’s question regarding occupancy standards.   Comments did not result changes in the draft Plan.  

	Terry Stewart
	Commented that she liked the plan, but would like to see a section on homeownership.  Noted the plan included planned changes in the delivery of water to residential units and inquired about the HA’s progress in reducing water consumption.  
	As the MTW Plan follows an established format, a separate section has not been added.  However, KCHA’s efforts to increase homeownership are illustrated throughout the Plan.  Reported on efforts to reduce water usage which have resulted in a 17% decrease in water costs.  

	Unknown
	Question raised about the HA’s plan to redesign its current rent structure.  
	Explained that the Plan indicates the HA anticipates, during FY07, to investigate potential changes in the current rent and income policies.  However, prior to implementation of any changes, residents would be provided with the opportunity to review and provide feedback on an proposed changes


	Name
	Comment
	KCHA Response

	Unknown
	Suggestion that for greater exposure, the Notice of draft Plan availability could be posted on-site in each development.
	Suggestion appreciated – As a result, Management staff was instructed to post the Public Notice on all Site bulletin boards and in all Laundry rooms within PH developments.

	Sharon Bosteder
	Commented that the FY07 Plan seemed greatly improved over prior Plans
	


C.   Future Program Changes

KCHA is committed to working with key stakeholders to ensure public and participant input into policy formulation.  KCHA will utilize a range of forums, including Resident Advisory Committee meetings, resident and program participant surveys, focus groups and public hearings, as appropriate, to solicit feedback regarding proposed program changes.  A particular challenge for KCHA is the broad ethnic diversity of its residents and voucher-holders.  To address this issue, KCHA will continue to provide translation and interpretation services to help ensure full participation.

Appendices

APPENDICES

FY2007 MTW Plan

To access electronic copies of Appendices included in the KCHA MTW FY 2007 Annual Plan, please click the icons below:
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Please find attached our report on the King County Housing Authority's financial statements and
compliance with federal laws and regulations.

We are issuing this report in order to provide information on the Housing Authority’s financial condition.
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Federal Summary

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005

The results of our audit of the King County Housing Authority are summarized below in accordance with
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133.

. An unqualified opinion was issued on the Housing Authority's financial statements.

o We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the
Housing Authority.

. We issued an ungualified opinion on the Housing Authority's compliance with requirements

applicable to its major federal program.

. We reported no findings which are required to be disclosed under OMB Circular A-133.
. We noted in our Independent Auditor's Report on ?inancia! Statements that the Schedule of-
Expenditures of Federal Awards was fairly presented.

. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by
OMB Circular A-133, was $2,729,948.

o The Housing Authority did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133.

. The following was a major program during the period under audit:

CFDA No. Program Title

14.871 Housing Choice Vouchers
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1





Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely
presented component units of the King County Housing Authority, King County, Washington, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2005, which collectively comprise the Housing Authority‘'s basic financial .
statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 22, 2006. We did not audit financial
statements of the tax credit partnerships identified in Note 8, which represent 100 percent of the assets,
net assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units of the Housing Authority.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and
our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the tax credit partnerships, is based solely on
the reports of other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

in planning and performing our audit, we considered the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters
in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition
in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material
in refation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period
by empioyees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving
internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Housing Authority's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the Housing Authority’s compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, the objective of
our audit of the financial statements was not to provide an opinion on overall compiiance with these
provisions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Washington State Auditor's Office
2





The results of our tests disciosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported herein under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended for the information and use of management, the Board of Commissioners, federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its
distribution is not limited. It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help
citizens assess government operations.

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM

STATE AUDITOR

February 22, 2006
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance
with Requirements Applicable to its Major
Program and Internal Control over Compliance
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

COMPLIANCE

We have audited the compliance of the King County Housing Authority, King County, Washington, with
the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year
ended June 30, 2005. The Housing Authority’s major federal program is identified in the Federal
Summary. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its
major federal program is the responsibility of the Housing Authority’'s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Housing Authority’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the Housing Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a lega! determination on the Housing
Authority's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Housing Authority complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2005.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

The management of the Housing Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federal programs. in planning and performing our audit, we considered the Housing Authority’s internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federat
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal contro! over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133.
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Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the interna! control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
caused by error or fraud that would be material in refation to a major federal program being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation
that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information of management, the Board of Commissioners, federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is
not limited. It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens
assess government operations.

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM

STATE AUDITOR

February 22, 2006
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial
Statements

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the King County Housing Authority,
King County, Washington, and its aggregate discretely presented component units as of and for the year
~ ended June 30, 2005, as listed on page 8. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Housing Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We did not audit financial statements of the tax credit partnerships identified in Note 9, which represent
100 percent of the assets, net assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component
units of the Housing Authority. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose repors
have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the tax credit
partnerships, is based solely on the reports of other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the King County Housing
Authority and its aggregate discretely presented component units as of June 30, 2005, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, for the year then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report on our consideration
of the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the resuilts of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 9 through 16 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principaily of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.
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Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Housing Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. This schedule is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole,

The financial statements for the Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A, are also
presented for purposes of additional analysis. These statements are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such supplemental information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The Schedule of State and Local Financial Assistance is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information presented for purposes of additional analysis. Such
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

S

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM
STATE AUDITOR

February 22, 2006
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets — 2005
Statement of Cash Flows — 2005

Notes to Financial Statements — 2005
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King County Housing Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This first section of the annual financial report presents a discussion and analysis of King County Housing
Authority’s (KCHA) financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. {t should be read in
conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements, which immediately follow this section and begin on
page 7.

KCHA administers a broad range of Federally and locally financed housing programs serving an area of
over 2,200 square miles, covering all of King County outside of the cities of Seattle and Renton. The
King County Housing Authority owns or controls over 8,400 units of housing, including 49 Public Housing
sites with 3,024 units. KCHA also provides rental subsidies to 6,850 additional households through the
Housing Choice Voucher Section 8 Program. The Authority serves more than 17,000 households in King
County. The majority of KCHA's program participants have incomes below 20% of area median income.

The financial statements included in this report are in conformance with the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board's (GASB) financial model as set forth in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements—Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, GASB
Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements—Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and
Local Governments: Omnibus, and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note
Disclosures.

The financial performance discussed in the following analysis does not include tax credit partnerships.
The tax credit program’s 2,150 component units are owned by the separate partnerships, with KCHA
serving as the general partner. Because of this different corporate structure, their operations are not
carried directly on the books of the Authority. Neither these units, nor their financial data, are included in
the analysis and financial reports that foliow.

FISCAL YEAR 2005 FINANCGIAL HIGHLIGHTS

¢ Total assets of the Authority exceeded total liabilities at June 30, 2005 by almost $175 million.

¢ Total change in net assets (operating and non-operating net income) for the 2005 fiscal year
was $15.5 million. '

+3105.6 million in operating expenses include $57.1 million in housing assistance payments
made to landlords. $87.5 million of non-operating revenues, received primarily from HUD, provided
partial funding for these operating expenditures.

¢ Refinancing seven properties in the bond portfolio lowered the overall average interest cost to
the Authority by almost 40%, allowed for the acquisition of an additional development and provided KCHA
access to additional equity draws in the future.

EUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The operations of the Authority consist of Proprietary Funds, which are designed to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with external finance-related requirements. The measurement focus for
Proprietary Fund accounting is similar to that used in the private sector, which emphasizes the
determination of net income, changes in net assets, financial position and cash flows.

Many of the funds maintained by the Authority are required by the Federal Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD). Others are segregated to enhance accountability and control.
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AUTHORITY-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Authority-wide financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all business type
activities are consolidated into columnar format, presenting totals by category for the entire Authority.

These Statements include a Stafement of Net Assets, which is similar to a balance sheet. The Statement
of Net Assets reports all financial and capital resources for the Authority. The statement is presented in
the format where assets equal liabilities plus “Net Assets”, formerly known as equity. Assets and liabilities
are presented in order of liquidity, and are classified as “Current” (convertibie into cash within one year),
and “Non-current”.

The focus of the Statement of Net Assets is designed to represent the net available liquid {non-capital)
assets, net of liabilities, for the entire Authority. Net Assets (formerly equity) are reported in three broad
categories:

Net Assets, Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt: This component of Net Assets consists
of all capital assets, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Assets: This component of Net Assets consists of restricted assets, when constraints
are placed on the asset by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws,
regulations, etc net of any offsetting, associated liabilities.

Unrestricted Net Assets: Consists of Net Assets that do not meet the definition of “Net Assets
invested in Capital Assets, Net of related Debt”", or “Restricted Net Assets”.

The Authority-wide financial statements also include a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Net Assets (similar to an Income Statement). This Statement includes operating revenues, such as
rental income, operating expenses, such as administrative, utilities, and maintenance, and depreciation,
and non-operating revenue and expenses, such as grant revenue, investment income and interest
expense. The focus of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets is the “Change
in Net Assets” which is similar to Net Income or Loss.

Finally, a Statement of Cash Flows is included, which discloses net cash provided by, or used for
operating activities, non-capital financing activities and from capital and related financing activities.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY

Condensed Statement of Net Assets:

Table A-1 presents the Authority’s Condensed Statement of Net Assets for fiscal years 2004 and 2005.
The purpose of the statement is to provide a snapshot of the financial condition of the Authority at a
certain point in time. Presented are the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the Authority at the end of the
fiscal year. Supplementary information is provided in the accompanying notes that further explain and
support the data presented in table A1-1.

Total “Current and other assets” for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 are reported at $206 miliion, and
are comprised of several categories. Included in total “Current and other assets” are $39.7 million in cash
and cash equivalents, and $7.7 million in net accounts receivables. Net accounts receivables include
batances tied to HUD-related projects and programs, which account for the majority of the decrease from
the $11.5 million in net accounts receivables that were reported in fiscal year 2004.

Net “Capital assets” for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 are reported at $198.4 million. Included in
this category are land and improvements, buildings and improvements, personal property, construction-
in-progress on the Greenbridge project, and other assets that qualify within the “Capital assets” financial
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threshold of $5 thousand and the depreciable lives guidelines, which vary depending on the type of the
asset. The $23 million increase in “Capital assets” from fiscal year 2004 includes $11.7 million related to
acquiring the Bellepark East and Enumclaw properties, and $11.4 million related to the Greenbridge
project. More detailed information about KCHA's capital assets is presented in the notes to the financial
statements.

“Current and other liabilities” for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 are reported at $17.4 million, which
is a reduction of $9.2 million from the 2004 balance of $26.6 million. This reduction in liabilities between
the fiscal years is primarily due to $10 million in payments made towards the line of credit for Arbor
Heights in fiscal 2005.

"Total Net Assets” increased by $15.5 million during fiscal year 2005, from a beginning balance of $159.5
million to the end of the year balance of $175 million. Net assets represent the Authority's equity, a
portion of which is restricted for certain uses. The $5.9 million reduction in “Restricted” net assets reflects
the release of restricted reserves upon refinancing of seven properties’ debt. The $11.2 million increase
in “Invested in capital assets, net of related debt” resuits primarily from the capitalization of $11.4 million
related to the Greenbridge project and $6.2 million invested in other construction-in-progress activities,
less additional depreciation of $6.6 million. The $1.2 million increase in “Unrestricted” net assets is the
net result of the $5.9 million decrease in “Restricted” net assets, the $11.2 increase in net assets
“Invested in capital assets, net of related debt" and the $15.5 million change in net assets from fiscal year
activity.

Table A-1, Condensed Statement of Net Assets (" ?

Condensed Statement FY 2005 FY 2004 p
of Net Assets 8
Assets: : :,
Current and other assets $ 205,984 298 200,687,514 '

Capital assets 198,366,758 174,273,050

Total Assets $ 404,351,056 374,960,564}

Liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current $ 211,062,736 188,916,009

Current and other liabilities 17,404,720 26,576,786§

Total Liabilities $ 229,367,456 215,492]95

Net Assets: .
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 85,485,067 78,458,9198
Restricted 21,151,316 27,087,422
Unrestricted 68,347,217 53,921,429}

Total Net Assets $ 174,983,600 1569,467,770M

(1) Component units are notincluded.
{2) The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets:

The purpose of the “Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets™ is to
present the revenues earned by the Authority (both operating and non-operating) and the expenses
incurred (operating and non-operating), and any other revenues, expenses, gains and losses received or
spent by the Authority. Table A-2 represents the Authority’s Condensed Statement of Revenues,
Expenses,_and Changes in Net Assets for fiscal years 2005 and 2004.

Revenues are classified as operating or non-operating. Table A-3 shows the sources of revenues for
fiscal years 2005 and 2004. Generally, operating revenues are dwell rent or other tenant charges.
Operating revenues contributed 24% of the total revenues for fiscal year 2005. Non-operating revenues
include HUD subsidies, which contributed 55% of the Authority's total revenues; 14% was from other
governmental grants.

Table A-2, Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets ('@

Condensed Statement of Revenues, FY 2005 FY 2004 §
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets ;
Operating Revenues $ 32,693,245 31,210,240 ';
Nonoperating revenues 87,538,673  85,864,973%

Total Revenues $ 120,231,918 117,075,213

Operating expenses $ 105,559,798 104,965,913
Nonoperating expenses 13,693,991 11,468,119 ;-j

$ 119,253,789 116,434,032 g

Excess or deficiency before contributions $ 978,128 641,181

Capital grant contributions $ 14,537,702 14,747,666
Beginning Net Assets $ 159,467,770 143,384,143
Accounting Adjustment ¥ 694,781 \

Change in Net Assets 15,515,830 15,388,845M

Ending Net Assets $ 174,983,600 159,467,769

(1) Component units are not included.
(2) Adjustment for accounting change, opening balance.

(3) The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Table A-3, Sources of Revenue _

O investment
Income

& Capital &
Other
Grants

HUD
Subsidies

&8 Tenant
Rental
Revenue

Operating expenses are amounts paid for providing housing services to the Authority’s tenants and
administering the various programs. Total operating expenses for fiscal year 2005 were $105.6 million
(please refer to Table A-2). Costs included in operating expenses are: administrative, tenant services,
property maintenance, utilities, HUD housing assistance payments, and depreciation. Table A-4
ilustrates how the $105.6 million in operating expenses are broken down by category. Operating
expenses are supported through both operating revenues of $32.7 million and non-operating revenues of
$87.5 million.

3 Administrative / Other

B Tenant Services

0O Maintenance

0O Utilities

7 Housing Assistance
Payments

Depreciation
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The King County Housing Authority is dedicated to the ongoing rehabilitation and modernization of its
housing inventory. More than 83% of the Authority's public housing inventory was built or acquired before
1980, making capital investment planning especially important. During fiscal year 2005, KCHA invested
more than $30 million in capitalized property improvements and purchases, with the HOPE Vi
Greenbridge project accounting for 37% of this capitalized total. When completed, the HOPE V! project
will provide 900-1100 units of quality rental and homeownership housing for a diverse mix of existing
public housing residents and newcomers. Funding for KCHA's public housing capital improvement
projects is provided through HUD's Capital Fund Program. This program funded $3 million in public
hausing improvements in fiscal year 2005. improvements for the Project-Based Section 8 Housing
program (3 sites/174 units) totaled $2.3 million for fiscal year 2005 and benefited primarily the Burien
Park and Northwood Apariment complexes. In addition, the Authority acquired a new apartment building,
Bellepark East, for $10.3 million, and an Enumclaw 4-plex for $1.4 miliion.

Table A-5, Capital Assets

c FY 2005 FY 2004
Land $ 66,071,639 63,226,804
Buildings and improvements 195,124,140 185,804,655
Furniture, Equipment & Machinery 7.057577 7,093,802
Construction in Progress 47519,854 29,962,305
Total accumulated depreciation (117.406,452) (111.814,616)
Net Capital Assets $198.366,758 $174,273,050 '

{1) The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Table A-6, Long-Term Debt "

Long-Term Debt & Other Noncurrent Liabilities FY 2005 | FY 2004
Long-term, net of current portion $ 211,962,736 188,916,000
Other noncurrent liabilities 1,737,740 2,914,798
Total long-term debt & other noncurrent liabilities $213,700,476! $191,830,807
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Authority has issued various forms of debt for the purpose of acquiring and rehabilitating projects
located throughout King County. At fiscal year-end, the Authority has over $212 million in net long-term
bonds and notes outstanding (as shown in table A-8). During fiscal year 2005, bond issues were
refinanced increasing long-term debt by $9.8 million, including the acquisition of a new property,
Bellepark East Apartments. $10.1 million of additional debt was acquired to finance the rehabititation of
the Harrison House and Valley Park tax credit properties and $9.9 million debt related to the Arbor
Heights tax credit property was paid off. $3.9 million in additional debt was acquired to finance the public
housing energy conservation initiative (ESCO) and $1.5 million was obtained to finance the acquisition
and rehabilitation of an Enumclaw 4-plex. More detailed information about KCHA's debt is presented in
the notes to the financial statements. Included in the “Other noncurrent liabilities” category are:
payments in lieu of taxes, non-current interest, and deferred revenues.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING THE AUTHORITY'S FUTURE

KCHA foresees an uncertain future with regards to federal funding and the mounting capital needs of an
aging inventory of housing properties. Federal budget cuts already enacted and those proposed by
Congress continue to be the greatest economic challenge facing all housing authorities across the nation.
For the King County Housing Authority, the majority of its operations are dependant on funding from HUD
(the Department of Housing and Urban Development), including Public Housing, Section 8 Housing
Choice Vouchers and most of the operating and capital grants. If the reductions in funding public
housing continue, baseline levels at which HUD reimburses housing authorities will not be sufficient to
cover operating costs, et alone maintain infrastructure of the Authority’s housing assets. Housing
authorities like KCHA may be forced to choose between having poor people pay more out of their pockets
for rent or to reduce the number of households that can be helped.

There are other challenges in addition to reductions in federal funding. Housing authorities face the same
annual increases in operating costs as do other business operating in the United States. During the past
year, the Consumer Price Index, the most well known measure of infiation, rose by 3.5 percent in the
Puget Sound region, according to the Bureau of Labor Statistics. In addition, the rental market has
become increasingly unaffordable to even middle wage earners. Low-income tenants are being
squeezed out of private sector housing because more affluent renters cannot afford to buy homes. Since
2004, only seven of King County’s 86 neighborhoods have been affordable to buyers with household
incomes between $45,000 and $50,000. This creates increasing demand for KCHA services at the very
time when federal financial support is dwindling.

As evidenced by its financial plan for fiscal year 2006, King County Housing Authority’s primary objective
remains to strengthen its existing programs while being as proactive as possible in improving the way
that it does business:

¢ As one of 32 Moving to Work (MTW) housing authorities in the country, KCHA is permitted by
HUD to waive certain program regulations and redesign its federal programs to respond to local
conditions, streamline operations and better support the economic self-sufficiency of tenants. This
flexibility has allowed KCHA to respond much more rapidly to budgetary constraints. Bureaucratic
processes have also been reduced and operations simplified, resulting in cost savings. With five or more
years remaining in the MTW project, KCHA has severa! initiatives planned in the areas of rent setting,
inspection protocols and income verification, all concentrated on lowering the cost of operations.

¢ KCHA's restructuring of its public housing operations to more closely resemble the private
sector property management models will move beyond 2005's pilot into full implementation in 2006. The
potential for future financial rewards when this program is fully implemented are substantial. Once fully
up and running, KCHA expects to realize material savings in productivity, fleet usage and
purchasing/inventory costs. Management and staff are strongly committed to making this initiative a
success for both employees and residents alike.

¢+KCHA's comprehensive capital program is focusing on projects designed to reduce future
maintenance and other operating costs. The Energy Services Company (ESCO) initiative, for example,
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promises to produce efficiencies in utility consumption rates for the Authority. KCHA expects to realize
between $3 million to $4 million in energy savings over a 12-year period as a result of implementing the
ESCO initiative. The Greenbridge HOPE VI project has demoiished 301 units of a 569-unit 1940's era
public housing development which was a significant drain on both capital and operating funds, and will
replace it with new, lower maintenance units. Finally KCHA has concentrated its Capital Fund Program
dollars on comprehensive building envelope and interior improvements which will both extend the lives of
existing buildings, make them more marketable to prospective tenants and reduce costs in the long run.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL MANGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the Housing Authority's finances and to demonstrate KCHA's accountability for
its resources. Any questions about this report, or requests for additional information, should be directed
to the Assistant Executive Director of the King County Housing Authority.

Washington State Auditor's Office
16





HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
As of June 30, 2005

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net

[nvestments

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Land, buildings and equipment, net
Noncurrent receivables
Other noncurrent assets

Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES and NET ASSETS:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of long term debt
Other current liabilities

Totat Current Liabilities
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

Long-term debt, net of current
Other noncurrent liabilities

Total Long-Term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted net assets
Unrestricted net assets
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES and NET ASSETS

COMPONENT
AUTHORITY UNITS
$ 39,699,393 $ 1,841,607
3,703,496

7,662,782 111,346

471,233 -
868,956 289,243
52,405,860 2,242,196
1,307,223 6,023,021
18,482,598 4,590,372
198,366,758 154,411,362

130,788,596 -
3,000,022 1,645,917
351,945,197 166,670,672

$ 404,351,056

$ 168,912,869

4,875,157 1,244,426
10,791,822 5,205,664
15,666,980 6,450,090

211,962,736 129,578,521
1,737,740 -
213,700,476 129,578,521
229,367,456 136,028,611
89,697,742 23,588,415
21,151,316 10,613,393

64,134,542 (1,317,551)
174,983,600 32,884,257

$ 404,351,056

$ 168,912,869

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

AUTHORITY

OPERATING REVENUES
Tenant revenue
Other revenue
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative
Tenant services
Maintenance
Utilities
Housing assistance payments
Depreciation
Other expenses
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
HUD subsidies and grant revenue
Other government grants
Investment income
Interest expense
Other revenue (expense)

Net Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) before contributions,

Capital grant contributions
Capital contributions

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Total Net Assets -- beginning

Total Net Assets -- ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 27,617,865

5,075,380

32,693,245

18,109,839
2,785,950
14,395,024
5,348,335
57,075,838
6,613,974
1,230,838

105,559,798

(72,866,553)

74,581,536
3,595,123
8,933,410

(13,693,991)
428,604

73,844,681

978,128

14,537,702

§ 15,515,830

159,467,770

ST74,.983.600_

COMPONENT
UNITS

$14,588,250
527,374

15,115,664

2,672,018

2,710,962
1,625,263

4,628,437

1,347,524

12,984,204
2,131,460

234,854
(5,679,600)

(60,255)

(5,505,001)

(3,373,541)

14,724,449

$11,350,908

21,533,350

$32,884,259
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from tenants
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers of goods and services
Payments to landlords
Payments received from (made to) other housing authorities
Other receipts (payments)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from HUD
Receipts from other governments
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital grant contributions
Capital contributions
Purchase of capital assets’
Proceeds from issuance of capital debt
Principal payments on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Other receipts (payments)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net sale (purchase) of investments .
Investment in notes and financing leases
Payments received on notes and financing leases
Investment income -- notes and financing leases
Investment income -- other
Other receipts (payments)

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents -~ beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents -- end of the year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net cash:
Depreciation expense

Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
I[nventories and other
Accounts and other payables

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

COMPONENT
AUTHORITY UNITS
$ 27,552,479 $ 14,612,860
(15,050,842) (1,980,234)
(24,906,592) (6,479,001)
(57,249,219) -
1,309,343 .
4,007,082 635,281
(64,337,750) 6,788,906
79,571,207 -
3,850,686 -
14,537,702
- 14,724,449
(30,832,342) (13,454,756)
62,228,818 16,745,852
(48,653,223) (17,256,209)
(13,831,366) (6,147,750)
(1,561,800) 124,579
(18,112.212) (5,263,834)
9,824,327 (332,990)
(17,717,978) -
12,278,229
6,308,529 -
2,391,697 234,854
(34,609) ;
13,050,195 (98.136)
14,022,126 1,426,936
30,687,986 6,437,692
$ 44,710,112 $ 7,864,628
(72,866,553) 2,131,460
6,613,974 4,628,437
(253,762) (14,982)
273,457 89,017
1,895,134 (45,026)
$ (64.,337,751) S 6,788,906
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

The following notes are an integral part of the financial statements of the Housing Authority of the County
of King.

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) THE AUTHORITY

The Housing Authority of the County of King (the “Authority”) was created in 1939 as a municipal
corporation under the provisions of the State Housing Authorities Law (RCW 35.82) and the Housing
Cooperation Law (RCW 35.83) in response to the Federal Housing Act of 1837. The Act created the
United States Housing Authority, empowering it to make loans and annual contributions to local public
housing agencies to assist in the development, acquisition and administration of iow rent projects. The
programs authorized under the Act, as amended, are now administered by the Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD). The Authority is not a component unit of King County.

The Authority operates in ali of King County except within the cities of Seattie and Renton. The Authority
also serves as the management agent for the Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley in Skagit
County. Of the State's 39 counties, King County ranks eleventh in geographical size and first in
population. The County is the financial, economic and industrial center of the entire Pacific Northwest
region. The Authority’s jurisdiction encompasses an area of over 2,200 square miles and a population
estimated at 1.7 million representing almost 30% of the state's total population. The Authority has its
central office in Tukwila and seven area offices that manage operation of the Authority’s 101 residential
communities. A five-member Board of Commissioners appointed for five-year terms by the Metropolitan-
King County Council governs the Authority. The Authority’'s commissioners serve without pay.

The Authority has been granted a broad range of powers to provide housing assistance to low-income
households. The nationally recognized definition of a low-income famity is a household earning less than
80 percent of the area's median income, adjusted for family size. The Authority administers federally and
locally financed housing programs that serve a variety of housing needs including the following:

FEDERALLY ASSISTED HOUSING PROGRAMS

Low Rent Public Housing — The Authority owns, operates and maintains 49 projects consisting of 3,024
units of public housing of which 1,820 units are for the low-income elderly and disabled. The properties
were acquired through bonds and notes guaranteed by HUD and through grants from HUD. Revenues
consist of rents and other fees collected from tenants and an operating subsidy received from HUD.
Typically residents pay 30% of their adjusted income in rents. Two thirds of public housing residents earn
less than 20% of the area median income, with almost 80% having some form of entittement payment as
their main source of income. The Authority's subsidy is received under an Annual Contributions Contract
to offset the cost of operating the units. HUD also provides funds to maintain and improve the public
housing projects under the Capital Fund Program. Substantially all additions to land, structures and
equipment of public housing are accomplished through these capital grant funds.

Tenant Based Housing Choice Vouchers -- The Authority provides rental assistance payments to
approximately 6,850 households who live in private rental housing. Funded by HUD pursuant to Section
8 of the U.S. Housing Act, this program allows participating famities and individuals to choose their own
housing with the use of a housing voucher. Generally the participant pays no more than 30% of income
towards rent and the Authority pays the remainder. The Authority targets this program to the eiderly,
disabled householids and families that are homeiess or at the risk of homelessness. Program participants
average 15% of area median income.
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Project Based Section 8 Housing The Authority owns seven developments with 446 units subsidized
under the Section 8 program. Under this program, subsidies attach to qualifying housing units rather than
to qualifying individuals or families. The Authority built three of these projects under the Section 8 New
Construction program. The Authority purchased the other four projects under the Preservation Program
to prevent loss of affordability upon their sale by private owners.

UNASSISTED LOCALLY FINANCED HOUSING PROGRAMS

Tax-Exempt Bond financed-The Authority has acquired 15 apartment complexes totaling 2,231 units
through the issuance of tax-exempt bonds. These properties receive no operating subsidy from the
Federal government or any other State or local source. The Authority acquired the properties in order to
place selected housing developments within the public domain so that rents could be maintained as low
as possible over time. Typically these units have a broad mix of residents with the majority having
income below 80% of area median.

Homeownership-The Authority owns three mobile home parks located in South King County. Under this
program, the residents own their manufactured homes and pay rent to the Authority for the land on which
the home sits.

Tax Credit-In 1994, the Authority began partnering with others to acquire and develop additional
affordable housing through the tax credit program (see Note 9). The Authority is general partner in
sixteen partnerships representing eighteen housing complexes comprising 2,150 units.

Non-Profit Agreements-During the 1980's, the Authority acquired an inventory of sixteen different housing
developments comprising 303 units of housing. Two of these developments were sold to tax credit
fimited liability corporations in fiscal year 2004. The remaining fourteen projects comprising 149 units are
leased to non-profit service providers who manage the housing for the benefit of the economically
disadvantaged, developmentally disabled, transitional, homeless and other groups who have traditionally
experienced barriers in finding housing.

OTHER PROGRAMS

Housing Repair and Weatherization. -- The Authority receives federal and state money to provide housing
rehabilitation loans and weatherization grants to low-income homeowners and renters. The Authority has
been administering these types of programs since 1975. in 2005, the Authority assisted over 600 families
in repairing or weatherizing their homes. '

Human Service Programs -- The Authority serves a wide variety of people with special needs such as the
elderly, the physically and developmentally disabled, the homeless and the mentally ill. The Authority
works in partnership with nearly 20 different agencies that provide human services and job training
programs focused on residents in the Authority’s developments. For example, the Authority has
established Head Start schools at three of its sites, and has Boys and Girls Club programs at two other
sites. Counseling, educational, recreational and nutrition services are provided by community-based
organizations like the YWCA. These contracted services are partially funded using federal grants, which
the Authority receives in a competitive process for periods of one to three years.

Hope VI Redevelopment Project — The Authority was awarded a $35 million HOPE VI grant in November
2001 to begin revitalization of the Park Lake Homes public housing deveiopment in the unincorporated
King County neighborhood of White Center. The project, named Greenbridge to symbolize the vision and
character of the new community, will provide quality housing and homeownership opportunities for a
diverse mixture of residents and newcomers. It will replace 569 units of severely distressed pubiic
housing with a new 900-1100 unit mixed-income community. The new community will feature 300 units of
housing affordable to the same population that now lives at Park Lake Homes, 200-300 units of workforce
rental housing and 300-500 for-sale homes. This quality new housing will include a range of housing
types to suit seniors, aduits with disabilities, large families, low- to moderate-income renters and first-time
homebuyers.
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b) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Accounting records are maintained according to the proprietary fund mode! that is similar to private
business enterprises. The Authority applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. As
allowed by GASB reporting standards, the Authority has elected not to apply FASB Statements and
Interpretations, APB opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee of Accounting
Procedures issued after November 30, 1989.

c) ACCOUNTS ORGANIZED BY FUNDS

The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues and expenditures. Each fund is, with
limited exceptions, an independent fund and is restricted by contract or regulation from assisting or being
assisted financially by any other fund. A list of developments is provided in Appendix A. The Authority
administers the Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley. Its financial statements are audited
separately and are not combined with the Authority's statements.

d) USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

e) COMPONENT UNITS

The Authority serves as general partner in several partnerships (see Note 8). These partnerships
constitute component units of the Authority as defined by GASB Statement 14 because they are separate
legal entities and subject to the Authority's will and financial accountability. As general partner, the
Authority has issued bonds and other debt instruments to finance the purchase and renovation of rental
housing on behalf of the partnerships. The Authority also oversees the day-to-day operation of these
properties.

For Federal tax purposes, all of the partnerships have a calendar year-end, which is different from the
Authority’s year-end. GASB 14 states that if it is impractical for a component unit to have the same fiscal
year as the primary government, a component unit's financial statements with an ending date occurring
during the primary government's fisca! year should be incorporated into the financial statements of the
reporting entity. Accordingly, the partnership financial data for the year ended December 31, 2004 is
incorporated into the Authority's statements. The data for all partnerships is combined and discretely
presented in a separate column on the face of the Authority’s financial statements. Each partnership is
audited separately. Copies of these audited statements can be obtained by contacting the Authority.

)  REVENUES AND EXPENSES

The basis for recognition of revenues and expenses is the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned. Expenses are recorded when incurred. Revenue from operating subsidies and
grants is classified as non-operating revenue. Revenue from capital grants is classified as capital grant
contributions.
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g) CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

Cash consists of Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurable deposits with original
maturities of less than three months. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertibie to known amounts of cash. Investments include deposits with original maturities
exceeding three months, securities and other assets that are held primarily for the purpose of obtaining
income or profit. All bond reserves and restricted other reserves are reported as investments.

In accordance with bond and other resolutions and certain related agreements separate restricted
accounts are required to be established. The assets held in these accounts are restricted for specific
uses, including capital additions and improvements, debt service, and other special reserve requirements.
Restricted resources at June 30 include the following:

RESTRICTED
Cash & Cash
Equivalents Investments Total
Capital improvements $ 2136834 $ 8512381 § 10,649,215
Debt service - 8,765,022 8,765,022
Tenant security deposits 1,238,069 - 1,238,069
Other ' 1,635,818 1,205,185 2,841,011

$ 5010719 $ 18,482,588 § 23,493,318

h) RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist primarily of rents due from tenants, cost reimbursements due from grantors, and
loans and accrued interest due from the tax credit properties. Annually, tenant receivables are analyzed
and the allowance for doubtful accounts adjusted. Allowances for other receivables are established when
collectibility becomes uncertain. No allowances existed at June 30 other than the aliowance for tenant
accounts receivable. '

) INVENTORIES

Inventory consists of supplies purchased primarily for use in maintenance of the rental units. The
perpetual method is used to account for inventory. As such, purchases are recorded into the inventory
account and, as items are used, the inventory account is reduced and the expense account is charged.
Periodically throughout the year, physical counts are taken of all supplies on hand and the inventory
records are adjusted. The weighted average method is used to value the inventory.

J) CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost in the land, structures, and equipment accounts and at
appraised fair market value at date of receipt if contributed. The capitalization threshold is $5,000.
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method with depreciation commencing in the
acquisition year and ceasing in the disposal year. See Note 4 for the capital asset components and
balances at June 30, 2005 and fiscal year activity.

Depreciable lives are as follow:

Land and improvements no depreciation
Buildings 27-45 years
Personal property 3-10 years
Construction-in-progress no depreciation
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Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred. Management reviews land, structures,
and equipment for possible impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. If there is an indication of impairment, management prepares an
estimate of future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If
these cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment ioss is recognized to write
down the asset to its estimated fair value. Preparation of estimated expected future cash flows is
inherently subjective and is based on management's best estimate of assumptions concerning expected
future conditions.

Capital project costs clearly associated with the acquisition, development, and construction of a real
estate project, inctuding indirect costs, are capitalized as a cost of that project. As such, all costs
associated with the Greenbridge redevelopment project have been capitalized.

k) TAX LIABILITY

The Authority is by law exempt from all federal, state, and local taxes and assessments. Several
developments make a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) based on contracts with local jurisdictions.

I) COMPENSATED ABSENCES

it is the Authority’'s policy to pay 100% of accumulated annual leave when an employee terminates
employment from the Authority. As such, the value of annual leave earned but not used at year-end is
accrued. Sick leave does not vest and is only paid to those separating from the Authority as retirees as
defined by the state pension system. Because the amount of such payments is difficult to estimate, an
accrual is made only when the actual payment amount is known.

m) INTERFUND ACCOUNTS

The Authority maintains a master paying and receiving account (King-Public Housing Fund). All cash
receipts and disbursements flow through this master account, except for disbursements to landlords
under the Section 8 Voucher program, which flows through a separate checking account (Section 8
Fund). Interfund payables and receivables (due to/from relationships) are created and used to account
for ownership of the funds.

n) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of interest rate swap agreements (See Note 6) is determined by dealer quote. These
values represent the estimated amount the Authority would receive or pay to terminate the agreements
taking into consideration current interest rates.

NOTE 2 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Authority is restricted in its cash deposits and investments to those allowed by RCW 35.82.070(6). In
general, deposits must be made with qualified financial institutions whose deposits are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Deposits that are in excess of the $100,000 insured
amount must be continuously and fully {(100%) secured. Collateral, comprised of identifiable U.S.
Government securities as prescribed by HUD, are pledged or set aside to secure these deposits. The
Public Deposit Protection Act in effect in the State of Washington set up a multiple financial institution
collateral pool to insure public deposits. This protection is in the form of securities pledged as collateral to
the Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC) by all qualified depositories. In 1994, the Authority
received a waiver from HUD that enabled it to make deposits in excess of $100,000 in a qualified public
depository because HUD determined that there were “adequate safeguards against the loss of Public
Housing Authority funds.” At June 30, 2005, $588,000 of certificates of deposit exceeded the FDIC
insured limit and was not collateralized. Of this amount $188,000 has since been converted to insured
deposits. The remaining $400,000 will be converted in November 2006 when the certificates mature.
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Cash equivalents include an investment in a Local Government Investment Pool (the Pool). The Pool is
not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), but adheres to SEC Rule 2(a)(7) of
the Investment Company Act of 1940 that requires portfolio diversification, divestiture considerations and
action if the market value of the portfolio deviates more than .5 percent from the amortized costs.
Government pools that adhere to the SEC rule can report their investments at amortized costs if the
remaining maturities of the debt securities are 90 days or less. As of June 30, 2005, the pool had an
average days-to-maturity of 33 days and therefore is reported at cost. Government securities are
reported at fair value.

Certain cash deposits and investments are classified as restricted assets if their use for general operating
purposes is legally or contractually prohibited. Restricted cash and investments held by the Authority
comprise primarily tenant security deposits, debt service reserves, and reserves held for future capital
improvements on properties owned by the Authority. Cash deposits and investments at June 30, 2005

are categorized as follows.

Unrestricted Restricted Total
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand $ 11,632 $ - 3 11,632
Depository accounts 3,497,704 812,393 4,310,097
Municipal Investors Account 646,588 5,728 652,316
Washington State investment Pool 31,950,475 4,192,598 36,143,073
Westdeutsche Landesbank Collateralized
Repurchase Agreement, 5.27% 3,592,993 - 3,592,993
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 39,699,393 § 5,010,719 § 44,710,112
Investments:
Certificates of deposit, 2.45% to 5.00%, 11/6/2005
to 5/1/2017, 2.4 years weighted average maturity $ 15,156 § 2,330,492 § 2,345,647
U.S. Treasury money market 350,657 8,671,190 9,021,847
Non-federal money market - 1,181,923 1,181,023
Repurchase agreement 105,421 - 105,421°
Private Debt Obligations:
Westdeutshe Landesbank Gironzentrale 5.42%
7/1/2028 - 2,269,307 2,269,307
Bank of America 6.1% 7/1/2028 “ 1,021,966 1,021,966
GNMA passthrough certificate, 6.25%, 9/15/2012 - 3,007,721 3,007,721
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 471233 § 18482598 $ 18,953,831
TOTAL $ 40,170,625 $ 23,493,318 $ 63,663,943
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NOTE 3 -NOTE AND FINANCING LEASE RECEIVABLES

The notes and financing leases held by the Authority are primarily the result of the Authority’s
transactions with the tax credit partnerships. The notes were issued for fees earried by the Authority from
developing the rental properties and for funds advanced to the partnerships to purchase and rehabilitate
the properties. The notes earn interest at varying rates up 8.5% per annum. The financing leases were
acquired when the Authority executed “in-substance” purchases of rental properties then transferred

substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership to the partnerships.

See Note 9 - Tax Credit

Partnerships, for further discussion of the Authority's financial relationship with the partnerships.

A summary of the notes and direct financing leases receivable at June 30, 2005 follows.

Ending
Beginning Balance Additions Payments Balance
Tax credit properties:
Financing leases, net 54,595 899 $ $ {721,175) $ 53,874,724
Notes
Developer fee 12,405,174 1,589,050 (1,403,213) 12,591,011
Other 58,485,916 14,004,921 (10,054,303) 62,436,534
125,486,989 15,593,971 (12,178,692) 128,902,269
Other properties:
Notes 892,377 2,124,007 (99,536} 2,916,849
126,379,366 $ 17,717.978 $ (12,278,228) $ 131819117
The maturity schedule for notes receivable follows.
FISCAL YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST ™ TOTAL
2006 $ 1,304,897 $ 1854714 $ 3,159,611
2007 13,857,510 1,827,718 15,685,228
2008 500,971 1,798,167 2,299,138
2009 533,747 1,766,875 2,300,622
2010 916,655 1,733,246 2,649,901
2011-2015 14,645,874 7,989,522 22,635,397
2016-2020 7,104,967 6,575,637 13,680,604
2021-2025 5,303,037 5,170,760 10,473,797
2026-2030 676,822 4,183,753 4,860,574
2031-2035 184,166 4,233,488 4,417,654
2036-2040 598,656 4,151,875 4,750,531
2041-2045 29,528,561 2,491,125 32,019,686
2046-2050 400,000 - 400,000
2051-2055 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
2056-2060 550,000 - 550,000
TOTAL 78,105,861 43,776,882 121,882,743
Unamortized original issue discount (161,466) (161,466)
NOTE RECEIVABLE BALANCE $ 77.944,395 $ 43,776,882 $ 121,721,277

** On amortizing notes.
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The maturity schedule for financing leases receivable follows:

FISCAL YEAR LEASE PAYMENTS
2006 $ 3,398,906
2007 3,382,880
2008 3,399,149
2009 3,387,272
2010 6,861,898
2011-2015 15,912,179
2016-2020 15,954,958
2021-2025 15,937,259
2026-2030 15,082,538
2031-2035 4,112,991
2036-2040 1,624,456
2041-2045 6,947,010
2046-2050 162,712
2051-2055 210,760
Total lease payments 96,374,968
Unearned interest (42,233,570)
Unamortized original issue discount (266.672)
FINANCING LEASE RECEIVABLE $ 53874725

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The components and fiscal year activity of land, structures and equipment follow.

‘Beginning Disposals / Ending
Balances Additions Adjustments Balances
CAPITAL ASSETS NOT SUBJECT TO DEPRECIATION:
Land and improvements $ 63226904 $ 2,846,491 $ (1,754) $ 66,071,639
Construction-in-progress:
Greenbridge Project 7,535,939 11,398,177 - 18,934,116
Other 22,426 366 6,159,372 - 28,585,738
Total 93,189,209 20,404,039 (1.754) 113,591,494
CAPITAL ASSETS SUBJECT TO DEPRECIATION:
Buiidings 185,804,655 10,362,456  (1,042,871) 195,124,140
Equipment 7,093,802 65,847 (102,072) 7,057,577
Total 192,898,457 10,428,303  (1,145,043) 202,181,716
Less: Accumulated depreciation 111,814,616 6,613,974  (1,022,137) 117,406,452
Net 81,083,841 3,814,329 (122,906) 84,775,264
NET CAPITAL ASSETS $ 174273050 $ 24,218,368 3 (124,660) $ 198,366,758
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The $30.4 million addition to capital assets for the fiscal year comprises a $10.3 million purchase of
Bellepark East Apartments (see Note 7), a $1.4 million purchase of a 4-unit apartment complex in
Enumclaw, $11.4 million additional project costs for the Greenbridge HOPE VI project, $3 million capital
improvements for the public housing portfolio, $2.3 million capital improvements for two Section 8 New
Construction senior buildings, and $2 million addition for various other projects.

NOTE 5 - LONG TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The Authority has issued various forms of debt for the purpose of acquiring and rehabilitating projects
located throughout King County. The debt is secured by revenue pledges and deeds of trust on property
and equipment. Compliance with all indentures has been met.

The components of outstanding debt at June 30, 2005 and the fiscal year activity are stated below.

Tax credit properties:

Other:

TOTAL:

Revenue bonds
Demand bonds
Mortgage notes
Lines of credit
Notes

Revenue bonds
Demand bonds
Mortgage notes
Financing lease

Lines of credit
Notes

Revenue bonds
Demand bonds
Mortgage notes
Financing lease
Lines of credit
Notes

o Ending

Beginning Balance’ Additions Payments Balance
60,358,851 $ - $ (1,066,989) $ 59,291,862
23,725,000 - - 23,725,000
1,275,087 - (15,168) 1,259,919
11,558,428 10,129,478 (9,911,273) 11,776,631
5,517,119 - (6,834) 5,510,285
102,434,485 10,129,476 {11,000,264) 101,563,697
75,144,745 - (37,225,231) 37,919,514
18,500,000 46,290,000 - 64,790,000
5,349,531 - (427,729) 4,921,802
- 3,912,675 - 3,912,675
- 1,799,705 - 1,799,705
1,833,538 96,962 0 1,930,500
100,827,814 52,099,342 (37,652,959) 115,274,196
135,503,596 - (38,292,220) 97,211,376
- 42,225,000 46,290,000 - 88,515,000
6,624,618 - (442,897) 6,181,721
- 3,912,675 - 3,912,675
11,558,428 11,929,181 (9,911,273) 13,576,336
7,350,657 96,962 (6,834) 7,440,785
203,262,299 $ 62228818 $ (48,653,223) $ 216,837,893
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The debt maturity schedule follows:

FISCAL YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST ** TOTAL

2006 $ 4,875,158 $ 7,465,606 $ 12,340,765
2007 15,032,419 7,567,448 22,599,867
2008 3,458,035 7,377,094 10,835,129
2009 3,610,507 7,190,308 10,800,816
2010 7,283,186 6,862,340 14,145,526
2011-2015 23,650,393 30,335,747 53,986,140
2016-2020 20,065,824 24,281,096 44,346,920
2021-2025 23,426,722 18,141,562 41,568,284
2026-2030 19,346,802 11,523,902 30,870,704
2031-2035 50,333,002 8,354,653 58,687,654
2036-2040 1,212,380 7,686,822 8,899,201
2041-2045 43,987,265 4,459,740 48,447,005
2046-2050 2,039,338 8,743 2,048,082
2051-2055 161,972 2,935 164,908
TOTAL 218,483,004 141,257,997 359,741,001
Unamortized original issue discount (491,548) . - (491,548)
Unamortized deferred defeasance (1,153,564) - (1,153,564)
OUTSTANDING DEBT BALANCE $ 216,837,893 $ 141,257,997 $ 358,095,890

** On amortizing debt.

NOTE 6-DEMAND BONDS

The Authority had $88.5 million in outstanding variable rate demand bonds on two separate projects and
one 8-project bond pool. The Landmark Apartments (Landmark) project had $18.5 million, the Village at
Overlake Station (Overlake) had $23.7 million, and the 2005 bond pool! (comprised of the Carriage
House, Cottonwood, Newporter, Timberwood, Cove East, Woodside East, Aspen Ridge and Bellepark
East projects) had $46.3 million outstanding, respectively, at June 30, 2005. The bonds for each have
the following common characteristics:

Credit enhancements have been obtained for each of the bond issuances. For Overlake and
Landmark, the credit enhancement is in the form of a Letter of Credit (LOC) and is equal to the
outstanding bond balance plus one interest payment, priced at .20% and .40% of the facility,
respectively. For the 2005 Pool, the credit enhancement is in the form of a direct pay credit
enhancement agreement issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation priced at .30
% of the facility.

The credit enhancements are intended to not only provide security to bondholders, but also to
pay periodic interest payments for which the Authority regularly reimburses the credit
enhancement providers.

The Banc of America Securities LLC acts as remarketing agent, reselfing at market rates any
bonds sold by bondholders. It has committed to repurchasing bonds for its own portfolio if the
bonds cannot be resold on the open market.
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e Interest rates are recalculated weekly, based on the rate at which bonds can be remarketed.

¢ The bonds are subject to an annual remarketing fee of .05% of the outstanding amount of the
bonds or $5,000 whichever is greater.

e Underlying source of repayment for the bonds is the revenues produced by the respective
properties.

* In conjunction with the sale of these bonds, the Authority entered into interest rate swap
agreements as a cash flow hedge to reduce the volatility related to variable rate interest debt.

e Bonds are convertible to fixed rate at the Authority's option.

The Landmark bonds mature in 2042. At June 30, 2005 the variable interest rate on the bonds was
2.56%. The Letter of Credit is renewable automatically in one-year increments until 2009 and supports
the variable rate bonds only. In 2009 the Authority will either convert all existing bonds to fixed or
refinance the project. The swap instrument is at 3.88% on a notional amount of $18.5 millien for which
the Authority received .67% of the 30 day LIBOR rate. At June 30, 2005 the fair market value of the swap
was $836 thousand less than the notional amount. ‘

The Overlake bonds mature in 2040. At June 30, 2005 the variable rates on the bonds was 2.61%. The
Letter of Credit will expire in 2010 and supports the variable rate bonds only. [n 2010 the Authority will
either convert all existing variable rate bonds to fixed bonds or refinance the project. The swap
instrument is at 4.11% on a notional amount of $23.4 million for which the Authority receives .7 % of the
30 day LIBOR rate. At June 30, 2005 the fair market value of the swap was $1.88 million less than the
notional amount. All bond proceeds were lent to the Overlake TOD-KCHA partnership of which the
Authority is General Partner.

The 2005 bond pool bonds mature in 2035. At June 30, 2005 the variable rate on the bonds was 2.56%.
The credit enhancement agreement is for a fixed term of 15 years and, upon maturity of the credit facility,
the Authority will either refinance the bond issue or obtain another credit enhancement. The Authority
has entered into three swap contracts with respect to the bonds. The swap instruments are at 3.87% on a
notional amount of $25 miltion, 3.459% on a notional amount of $11 million and 3.609% on a notional
amount of $10 million. The Authority will receive a swap payment equal to the BMA for the respective
period. At June 30, 2005 the fair market value of the swaps was $912 thousand less than the notional
amount.

NOTE 7 - BOND POOL REFINANCE AND PROPERTY PURCHASE

In June 2005, the Authority paid off the bonds associated with the 1995 Revenue Bond Pool, the 1996
Revenue Bond Pool and the Woodside East Revenue bonds; issued variable rate bonds referred to as
the 2005 bond pool; and purchased a 118-unit apartment complex, Bellepark East, iocated in the
Bellevue/Crossroads area.
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A summary of the transactions follows:

Source Use Net
DEBT:
Debt acquired $ 46,290,000 3 $ 46,290,000
Debt repaid 36,508,519 (36,508,519)
Net increase in bond obligation 46,290,000 36,508,519 9,781,481
BOND RESERVES:
Released 17,394,216 17,394,216
Used for:
Purchase of Bellepark East 10,280,000 (10,290,000)
2005 bond issuance costs 1,114,987 (1,114,987)
2005 bond reserve funding 3,065,313 (3,065,313)
Interest expense and other 1,114,851 (1,114.851)
NET FUNDS PROVIDED TO AUTHORITY $ 63,684,216 $ 52,093,670 $ 11.590,546

NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS

Substantially all the Authority's full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the
following statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement
Systems, under cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution
retirement plans. The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary
government of the State of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFR) that includes financial statements and required suppiementary information for each plan. The
DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing to: Department of Retirement Systems, Communications Unit,
P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA 98504-8380. The following disclosures are made pursuant to GASB
Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government Employers.

A) PLAN DESCRIPTION

PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans for
membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a combination defined
benefit/defined contribution plan. Membership in the system includes: elected officials; state employees;
employees of the Supreme, Appeals, and Superior courts (other than judges currently in a judicial
retirement system); employees of legislative committees; community and technical colleges, college and
university employees (not in national higher education retirement programs); judges of district and
municipal courts; and employees of local governments. PERS participants who joined the system by
September 30, 1977, are Plan 1 members. Those who joined on or after October 1, 1977 and by either,
February 28, 2002 for state and higher education employees, or August 31, 2002 for local government
employees, are Plan 2 members unless they exercise an option to transfer their membership to Plan 3.
PERS participants joining the system on or after March 1, 2002 for state and higher education
employees, or September 1, 2002 for local government employees have the irrevocable option of
choosing membership in either PERS Plan 2 or PERS Plan 3. The option must be exercised within 90
days of employment. An employee is reported in Plan 2 until a choice is made. Employees who fail to
choose within 90 days default to PERS Plan 3. PERS defined benefit retirement benefits are financed
from a combination of investment earnings and employer and employee contributions. PERS retirement
benefit provisions are established in state statute and may be amended only by the State Legislature.

Plan 1 retirement benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service. Plan 1
members are eligible for retirement at any age after 30 years of service, or at the age of 60 with five years
of service, or at the age of 55 with 25 years of service. The annual pension is 2 percent of the average
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final compensation per year of service, capped at 60 percent. The average final compensation is based
on the greatest compensation during any 24 eligible consecutive compensation months. If qualified, after
reaching the age of 66 a cost-of-living allowance is granted based on years of service credit and is
capped at 3 percent annually.

Plan 2 retirement benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligibie service. Plan 2
members may retire at the age of 65 with five years of service, or at the age of 55 with 20 years of
service, with an allowance of 2 percent of the average final compensation per year of service. The
average final compensation is based on the greatest compensation during any eligible consecutive 60-
month period. Plan 2 retirements prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement is at age
55 or older with at least 30 years of service, a 3 percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an actuarial
reduction will apply. There is no cap on years of service credit; and a cost-of-living allowance is granted
(indexed to the Seattle Consumer Price Index), capped at 3 percent annually.

Plan 3 has a dual benefit structure. Employer contributions finance a defined benefit component, and
member contributions finance a defined contribution component. The defined benefit portion provides a
benefit calculated at 1 percent of the average final compensation per year of service. The average final
compensation is based on the greatest compensation during any eligible consecutive 60-month period.
Plan 3 members become eligible for retirement if they have: at least ten years of service; or five years
including twelve months that were earned after age 54; or five service credit years earned in PERS Plan 2
prior to June 1, 2003. Plan 3 retirements prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. if retirement is
at age 55 or older with at least 30 years of service, a 3 percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an
actuanal reduction will apply. There is no cap on years of service credit; and Plan 3 provides the same
cost-of-living allowance as Plan 2. The defined contribution portion can be distributed in accordance with
an option selected by the member, either as a lump sum or pursuant to other options authorized by the
Employee Retirement Benefits Board.

There are 1,168 participating employers in PERS. Membership in PERS consisted of the following as of
the latest actuarial valuation date for the plans of September 30, 2003:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 65,362
Terminated Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 20,001
Active Plan Members Vested 100,469

Active Plan Members Non-vested

B) FUNDING POLICY

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates, Plan 2
employer and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 employer contribution rates. Employee
contribution rates for Plan 1 are established by statute at 6 percent for state agencies and local
government unit employees, and 7.5 percent for state government elected officers. The employer and
employee contribution rates for Plan 2 and the employer contribution rate for Plan 3 are developed by the
Office of the State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. All employers are
required to contribute at the level established by the Legislature. PERS Plan 3 defined contribution is a
non-contributing plan for employers. Employees who participate in the defined contribution portion of
PERS Plan 3 do not contribute to the defined benefit portion of PERS Plan 3. The Employee Retirement
Benefits Board sets Plan 3 employee contribution rates. Six rate options are available ranging from 5 to
15 percent; two of the options are graduated rates dependent on the employee's age. The methods used
to determine the contribution requirements are established under state statute in accordance with
chapters 41.40 and 41.45 RCW.
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The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of cument-year covered payroll, as of
December 31, 2005, were as follows:

SN BERDIRIANY L s PERSPIaNAET
Employer* 2.44% 2.44%**

Employee 6.00%

* The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currently set at 0.19%.
** Plan 3 defined benefit portion only.
*** Variable from 5.0% minimum to 15.0% maximum based on rate selected by the PERS 3 member.

Both the Authority and the employees made the required contributions. The Authority’s required
contributions for the years ending December 31 were as follows:

En v RS I ;it ﬁﬁ & ‘ .._
2005 $27,780
2003 $19,398
2003 $18,031 $144.434 T

_NOTE 9 -TAX CREDIT PROPERTIES

The tax credit program is the result of Federal legisiation, which allows investors certain tax incentives for
investing in low-income housing. Investors also are allowed to deduct any losses passed through to them
from the partnerships. Under terms of the tax code, the buildings must continue to serve the targeted
population for 15 years. The Authority has the option to purchase them at the expiration of this
compliance period.

The Authority currently is a general partner in the following tax credit partnerships: Cascadian (Bellevue),
Woodridge (Riverton), Fairwood (Renton), Laurelwood (Federal Way), the Rural Preservation projects
(Enumclaw and North Bend), Windsor Heights (Sea Tac), Heritage Park (Bothell), Colonial Gardens
(Shoreline), Alpine Ridge (Bothell), Somerset Gardens (Bellevue), Overlake Station (Redmond),
Southwood Square (Kent), Arbor Heights (White Center), Harrison House (Kent) and Green River
(renamed Valley Park ) (Auburn).

Typically, at the time of closing, the Authority will earn a developer’s fee for its role in bringing the project
to fruition. Developer fees are paid primarily from avaitable cash flows and development proceeds. Under
the various partnership agreements, any outstanding developer fees are generally required to be paid
within 10 to 15 years of the project's placed-in-service date and may accrue interest on unpaid balances.
Certain tax credit projects also pay a management fee and sometimes a construction management fee to
the general partner. These fees are reflected in operating income and totaled $1,589,050 in fiscal year
2005.

The Cascadian, Woodridge Park and Fairwood Limited Partnerships were financed as a direct sale of
property to the partnerships. The Authority borrowed the funds to purchase the projects, ient the funds to
the partnerships that then purchased the buildings. The Authority carries the related debt on its books,
offset by notes receivable from the partnerships. The partnerships make afl payments on the bonds and
other acquisition debt although the Authority remains contingently liable for them. Both the debt interest
expense and an offsetting amount of interest income are reflected on the Authority's books and totaled
$1,044 279 for the fiscal year.

The financing for the remaining tax credit partnerships was structured as direct financing leases from the
Authority to the partnerships. Upon issuance of the bonds, the Authority purchases the projects. It
retains ownership of the buildings, and leases them to the partnerships under terms of a long term
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financing lease, which is treated as a sale for tax purposes. Payments from the partnerships are
sufficient to pay the outstanding bonds, but the Authority remains contingently liable for their payment.
Both the debt interest expense and an offsetting amount of interest income are reflected on the
Authority's books and total $4,443,157 for the fiscal year.

Although the bonds are the primary source of funds for the purchase of the developments, other funding
is usually required. Lines of credit, both taxable and non-taxable, are secured by the Authority to pay
some of the acquisition costs and most of the rehabilitation costs. These lines are retired primarily using
proceeds from the sale of Low Income Housing Tax Credits to the limited partners usually within two to
three years of the partnership's inception. They are also accounted for as direct financing leases. The
Authority also may receive grant funds or other loans to assist in purchasing the properties and in
preserving affordability within the projects. Because of limitations posed by the Internal Revenue Service,
all such funds are lent to the partnerships. These advances are accounted for as part of the financing
lease if the proceeds are used for purchasing the property and are accounted for as notes receivable
from the parinerships if the proceeds are used for rehabilitating the property. A summary of the
Authority's long-term debt, including debt pertaining to the tax credit partnerships, is reflected in Note 5.
A summary of notes receivable and investments in direct financing leases with the partnerships is
reflected in Note 3.
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Summarized partnership information for the year ended December 31, 2004 is as follows;

Property Name Cascadian Woodridge Fairwood Rural Laurelwood
Park Housing Gardens
Year Acquired 1994 1995 1995 1997 1997
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1863372 $1,093341 $ 818030 §$ 710,249 $ 560,196
Receivables and other 200,758 128,333 112,500 101,105 68,486
Capita! assets, net 8,361,537 4,928,489 5,714,924 5,250,461 4,566,322
Total Assets 10,425,667 6,150,163 6,645,454 6,061,815 5,195,004
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 629,962 644,174 357,351 172,325 343,827
Long-term liabilities 7,889,805 5,142,768 4,836,123 4,281,943 3,156,128
NET ASSETS 1,805,900 363,221 1,451,980 1,607,547 1,695,049
Total Liabilities & Net Assets  §$10,425667 $6,150,163 $6,645454 $6,061,815 $ 5,195,004
REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:
OPERATING REVENUES $ 1794433 $1334414 $1,150237 $ 720,863 $ 657,375
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 226,845 239,464 191,418 167,967 117,178
Operating and maintenance 640,211 532,196 500,148 293,696 310,701
Depreciation 245,851 228,510 182,187 230,558 217,331
Total Operating Expense 1,112,907 1,000,170 873,753 692,221 645,210
Total Operating Income 681,526 334,244 276,484 28,642 12,165
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 51,019 23,806 29,576 8,971 9,824
Interest and other (319,553) (317,558) (158,029) (166,300)
(619,716)
Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses) (295,747) (287,982) (149,058) (156,476)
(568,697)
Total Net Income (Loss) 112,829 38,497 (11,498) (120,416) (144,311)
Contributions (distributions) - - - - -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 112,829 38,497 (11,498) (120,416) (144,311)
Beginning Net Assets 1,793,071 324,724 1,463,478 1,727,963 1,838,360
Total Ending Net Assets $ 1905900 $ 363221 $1451980 §1607,547 $ 1,695,049
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Continued - Summarized partnership information for the year ended December 31, 2004:

Property Name Seatac Alpine Colonial Kona Heritage
(Windsor Ridge Gardens (Somerset) Park
Heights) Village
Year Acquired 1998 1999 1999 1999 1999
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1827977 $ 430,776 $ 728900 $ 1,044666 $ 633,640
Receivables and other 100,358 83,071 110,121 209,917 138,638
Capital assets, net 17,128,432 3,690,656 6,432,990 16,757,125 6,717,020
Total Assets 19,056,767 4,204,503 7,272,011 18,011,708 7,489,298
LIABILITIES .
Current liabilities 732,459 229,114 368,674 856,290 314,084
Long-term liabilities 12,812,056 3,047,010 5,119,708 12,281,851 5,262,661
NET ASSETS 5,512,252 928,379 1,783,629 4,873,567 1,912,553
Total Liabilities & Net Assets $ 19,056,767  $4,204,503 $7,272,011 $ 18,011,708 $ 7,489,298
REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:
OPERATING REVENUES $ 2021609 $ 404659 $ 717340 $ 1,427,307 $ 718,002
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 333,243 64,559 90,903 220,604 118,235
Operating and maintenance 895,833 133,299 243,563 450,863 225,333
Depreciation 589,992 101,278 200,416 430,599 198,811
Total Operating Expense 1,819,068 299,136 534,882 1,102,066 542,379
Total Operating income 202,541 105,523 182,458 325,241 175,623
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 43,124 11,879 15,933 13,756 6,680
Interest and other (169,857) (277,556) (706,390) (249,680)
(557,353}
Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses) (157,978) (261,623) (692,634) (243,000)
(514,229)
Total Net Income (Loss) (52,455) (79,165) (367,393) (67,377)
(311,688)
Contributions (distributions) - - - - -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (52,455) (79,165) (367,393) (67,377)
(311,688)
Beginning Net Assets 5,823,940 980,834 1,862,794 5,240,960 1,979,930
Total Ending Net Assets $ 5512252 § 928,379 $1783629 § 4,873,567 $ 1912553
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Continued - Summarized partnership information for the year ended December 31, 2004:

Property Name Overlake South- Cones Harrison Green GRAND
TOD wood (Arbor House River TOTAL
Housing Square Heights) Apts. Homes
Year Acquired 2000 2001 2003 2004 2004
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1504994 % 726773 % 184,008 $ 293,511 % 34,567 $ 12,455,000
Receivables and other 333,520 132,773 41,391 240,297 45,238 2,046,506
Capital assets, net 38,863,255 8,641,365 10,952,304 9,792,885 6,613,597 154,411,362
Total Assets 40,701,769 9,500,911 11,177,703 10,326,693 6,693,402 168,912,868
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 562,857 301,386 134,807 553,251 249,529 6,450,090
Long-term liabilities 30,520,930 6,551,851 11,959,611 10,102,522 6,613,554 129,578,521
NET ASSETS 9,617,982 2,647,674 (916,715) (329,080) (169,681) 32,884,257
Total Liabilities & Net Assets  $ 40,701,769 $ 9,500,911 §$ 11,177,703 $ 10,326,693 $ 6,693,402 $ 168,912,868
REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:
OPERATING REVENUES $ 2482883 $ 868,768 $ 610,236 $ 137,345 % 70,213 $ 15,115,664
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 450,222 127,511 177,785 94,386 51,698 2,672,018
Operating and maintenance 721,689 253,109 294,240 140,352 48,516 5,683,749
Depreciation 1,109,892 257,168 432,989 134,545 68,310 4,628,437
Total Operating Expense 2,281,803 637,788 905,014 369,283 168,524 12,984,204
Total Operating Income 201,060 230,980 (294,778) (231,938) (98,311) 2,131,460
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 1,880 18,194 212 - - 234,854
Interest and other (1,394,104) (362,680) (277,567) (92,142) (71,370) (5,739,855)
Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses) (1,392,224) (344,486) (277,355) (92,142) (71,370) (5,505,001)
Total Net fncome (Loss) (1,191,164) (113,506) (572,133) (324,080) (169,681) (3,373,541)
Contributions (distributions) 14,734,449 (5,000) - (5,000} - 14,724,449
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 13,543,285 (118,506) (572,133) (329,080) (169,681) 11,350,908
Beginning Net Assets (3,925,303) 2,766,180 (344,582) - - 21,533,349
Total Ending Net Assets $ 9617982 $ 2647674 § (916,715) $ (329080) $ (169,681) $ 32,884,257
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NOTE 10 - SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Following are details of selected financial statement line items.

Other Revenue:

Portabiiity administrative fee from other authorities
Development fees, tax credit properties

Insurance proceeds
Other

Current Receivables:
Grantor: HUD
Grantor; Other

Building Better Futures: construction services
Current portion of notes and financing leases
Interest: Notes and financing lease

Interest: Investments
Tenants '
Other

Other Current Assets:
Prepaid insurance and other
Inventories, net
Moblie homes held for sale

Noncurrent Receivables:
Notes and financing leases
Noncurrent interest

Other Noncurrent Assets:
Unamortized bond issuance costs
investment in tax credit properties
Other

Other Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Accrued wages, benefits and payroll taxes

Accrued compensated absences

Accrued interest, tax credit properties

Accrued interest, other properties

Interest due Hud, bond defeasance

Tenant security deposits

Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) escrow

Prepaid rent and other revenue
Contract retention

Due HUD and other housing authorities
Interfocal agreement payable to city

Other

Other Noncurrent Liabilities:
Payment in lieu of taxes
Deferred revenue
Noncurrent interest
Other

$ 1,082,142

1,589,050
1,443,423

960,766

1,977,173
486,468
528,990

2,070,185

1,547,412

100,864

579,303

372,387

455,257
316,071
97,628

129,748,933

1,039,663

2,305,473
586,405

108,144

2,563,247
1,254,047
1,132,198
1,062,273
923,655
314,436
1,317,740
277,977
298,924
792,253
307,336
373,542

194,195

746,284
669,783
319,287

2,383

$ 5075381

$ 7,662,782

$

868,956

$130,788,596

$

3,000,022

$ 10,791,822

$

1,737,738
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NOTE 11 - CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The Authority has issued debt instruments for the purpose of providing capital financing for
specific non-governmental corporations that are not part of the Authority’s financial reporting entity. in
general, the Authority issues such conduit debt, but the Authority is not responsible for the payment of the
original debt. That debt is secured solely by payments received by the Authority from the various non-
governmental corporations, and by the Deeds of Trust to the underiying properties. Owners of the debt
have no recourse to any other revenues of the Authority.

L_

Non-governmental Project Description Date of June 30
Corporation Issue Balance
Original Issue
Amount
Baptist Rest Home Refinancing of an existing 82 unit building known as Fred Lind [May 1, 1997 $3.,995,000
Association Manor, located in Seattle, WA
The Valley Group Acquisition and renovation of an existing 90 unit apartment June 6, $1,880,000
complex known as Forest Village Apartments located in 1990
Auburn, WA,
Downtown Action to Acquisition and renovation of an existing 18 unit apartment March 11, $680,000
Save Housing complex known as Garden Grove Apartments in Bellevue, WA 1994
Auburn North Purchase of land and construction of a 296-unit complex for  |December $11,445,000
Associates Limited elderly or disabled, low-income persons in Auburn 1, 1997
Partnership Washington, known as Auburn Court Apartments.
Manufactured Housing [Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 93-unit mobile home park in {December $2,400,000
Community the city of Redmond, Washington, known as Avon Villa Mobile |2, 1997
Preservationists Home Park.
Seaview Apartments Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 72-unit multifamily December $2,335,000
Limited Partnership development in Des Moines, Washington. 1, 1998
St. Andrews Housing  [Acquisition of a 59-unit apartment comblex located on Mercer |October 20, $3,066,774
Group Island, Washington, known as Elisworth House. 1999
Vashon Island Financial assistance to construct 40-unit assisted living and  |September $6,775,000
Community Care 30-bed skilled nursing facility on Vashon Island to be known {1, 2001
as Vashon Community Care Center.
Evergreen Court Acquisition and rehabilitation of 111-unit Washington Court September $6,703,849
Associates Ltd assisted living in Bellevue to be rehabilitated into a 82-unit 7, 2001
complex known as Evergreen Court
Angie Lake Apartments |Financial assistance to construct 80-unit independent living, |November 5,000,000
senior housing facility located in SeaTac. 14, 2002
Radcliffe Place, LLC Provide financing to construct 135 unit senior housing facility jDecember 10,097,800
located in Kent know as Radcliffe Place Senior Apartments 22, 2004
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NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to perils commonly associated with the ownership and rental of real property.
Bodily injury to individuals; property damage by fire and forces of nature; loss of assets from theft and
employee dishonesty; and liability for public officials’ and employees' conduct are handied through a
combination of purchased commercial insurance, voluntary self-insurance, participation in a risk-sharing
pool or group, and contractual risk transfer via indemnification agreements.

For Public Housing, the Authority secures third-party liability insurance mainly through the Housing
Authority Risk Retention Pool (HAARP), a public entity risk-sharing pool. The General Liability limit,
including Washington Stop-Gap or Employer's Liability, is $3,000,000 occurrence basis, and the Errors &
Omissions limit that includes Employment Practices Liability is $3,000,000 claims-made basis with a 10%
deductible of the final claim amount. Contractor’'s Pollution Liabiity limit is $1,000,000 claims-made basis
with a $10,000 per claim self-insured retention provided through Everest indemnity Insurance Company.
Automobile Liability insurance is $5,000,000 total limits provided through North Pacific Insurance
Company. Property insurance including Rental Income coverage through HARRP has a standard limit of
$3,000,000 replacement cost basis, with higher limits available upon request. Property deductible options
are $1,000, $5,000, and $25,000. The Authority has secured Fidelity coverage through- HARRP for
$100,000 per occurrence for all employees, and $500,000 for 54 employees with greater exposure.
Fidelity coverage deductible options are the same as those offered for Property deductibles.

Bond Financed Projects are covered for property insurance through HARRP, supra. The general liability
is covered through the Housing Authority Risk Retention Group (HARRG) with $5,000,000 per occurrence
limit. Additionaily, liability sub-limits are provided for fire damage and athletic sports, at $50,000 and
$250,000, respectively.

Tax Credit Partnership properties are covered for general liability with total limits of $7,000,000
occurrence basis provided by Great American Insurance ($1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000
general aggregate) on the primary level, and $5,000,000 aggregate limit on the umbreila level, with a
$10,000 self-insured retention. Property insurance for building values on replacement cost basis are
provided with a $25,000 deductible. Contents and Business Income including Extra Expense are covered
according to reported values.

No closed claims are known to have exceeded the applicable limits of insurance secured from any of the
mentioned providers.

NOTE 13-OTHER RELATED PARTIES

In September 2002 the Authority joined with Puget Sound Educational Services District (PSESD), Kent
Youth and Family Services (KYFS) and the Center for Career Alternatives (CCA) in the formation of
Building Better Futures (BBF), a 501 (c)(3)-2 not-for-profit charitable organization. The purpose of BBF is
to facilitate fund raising for the construction of two new community facilities at Springwood Apartments, a
public housing complex owned by the Authority in Kent, WA. The total cost of the campaign is estimated
to be $6.8 million. The newly constructed buildings will provide services, which benefit the four supported
organizations, including Head Start classrooms, after schoo! programs, job preparation and training and
health care. The Authority has applied the provisions of GASB 39 “Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units” and determined that while the funds raised by BBF benefit the
Authority, they are not significant to it and thus BBF does not meet the criteria for inclusion as a
component unit.
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Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A
A Proprietary Fund of the Housing Authority of the County of King
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
At June 30, 2005

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,105,498
Accounts recetvable 122,167
Other current assets 132,131
Total current assets 10,359,796
Restricted assets: :
Cash; tenant security deposits 314,563
Replacement reserves 652,325
Investments; bond reserves 3,293,005
4,259,893
Capital assets, net 24,033,237
Other assets 931,217
Total Assets 39,584,143 -
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 159,430
Accrued interest payable 756,301
Current portion of long-term debt 675,000
Total current liabilities 1,590,731
Tenants' security deposits 314,563
Long-term debt, net
Notes payable 492,157
Bonds payable 27,573,027
Total liabilities 29,970,478
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets (4,706,947)
Restricted 3,293,005
Unrestricted 11,027,607
Total Net Assets 9,613,665
Total Liabilities and Net Assets § 39,584,143

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A
A Proprietary Fund of the Housing Authority of the County of King
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

OPERATING REVENUES
Rent $ 5507393
Other 1,003,767
Total Operating Revenues 6,511,160
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 437,059
Payroll 694,377
Utilities 836,510
Operating and maintenance 1,563,648
Insurance ] 91,801
Depreciation . 584,441
Amortization 43,169
Collection losses 12,619
Property management 171,263
Total Operating Expenses : 4,434 887
Net Operating Income 2,076,273

NONOPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSE

HUD contributions 450,459
Investment income ’ 473,042
Interest expense {1,567,403)
Net Nonoperating Expense (643,902)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,432,371
NET ASSETS, beginning of year 8,181,294
NET ASSETS, end of year S 9,613,665

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A
A Proprietary Fund of the Housing Authority of the County of King
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

i

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from tenants
Receipts from homeowners
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating subsidies from HUD
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bond principal payments
Bond interest payments
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net deposits to reserves
Investment income
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables and other current assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 6,543,586
50,574
(3,012,264)
(668,542)

T 3.913.354

450,830

450,830

(640,000)

(2,288,988)
(2,928,988)

(118,955)
463,863

344,908

780,104

9,639,957

10420061

2,076,273
584,441
43,169

84,679
124,792

$ 2913354
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) GENERAL

The Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A (the Fund) were issued in September
1998, by the Housing Authority of the County of King (the Authority) to refinance five muitifamily housing
projects comprised of 573 units and three mobile home parks comprised of 321 spaces. The projects are
Walnut Park Apartments (140 units), Auburn Square Apartments (160 units), Woodland North Apartments
(105 units), Parkwood Apartments (90 units), Hidden Village Apartments (78 units), Vantage Glen Mobile
Home Park (164 spaces), Rainier View Mobile Home Park (31 spaces) and Tall Cedars Mobile Home
Park (126 spaces). The eight projects (the Projects) are owned by the Authority and are located
throughout King County, Washington. These financial statements represent only the accounts of the
Fund and are not intended to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of
the Authority taken as a whole.

(b) ACCQUNTING METHOD

The accrual method of accounting is used for financial statement purposes. The Authority has elected
under Statement No. 20 issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) not to apply
statements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) after November 30, 1989 unless
specifically adopted by GASB.

(c) INCOME TAXES

The Authority is a non-taxable public agency. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is refiected in
the accompanying income statements.

(d) ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(e) ECONOMIC CONCENTRATIONS

The Projects are located in King County, Washington. Changes in the economic or other conditions in
that geographical area or the demand for housing could affect future operations.

(f) CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash consists of FDIC insurable deposits with original maturities of less than three months. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash. Investments include deposits with original maturities exceeding three months, securities and other
assets that are held primarily for the purpose of obtaining income or profit. All bond reserves and
restricted other reserves are reported as investments.
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(9) CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are valued at historical cost in the land, structures, and equipment accounts. Al fixed
assets with a value greater than $5,000 and a useful life of over one year are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method and useful lives of twelve to forty-eight years for structures and
three to ten years for equipment.

(h) COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Regular Authority employees accrue sick leave and annual leave based on the number of years of
service. The annual leave accumulated by employees represents a liability for future payment and is
accrued in the year earned. Sick leave is not currently accrued and is payable only upon the eventual
retirement of the employee. It is not considered material.

NOTE 2 - INVENTORIES

The materials inventories consist of expendable supplies purchased primarily for use in maintenance of
the rental units. These inventories are valued using a moving weighted average cost. inventory items are
expended using the perpetual method which is adjusted annually based on a physical count.

The mobile home inventory represents homes held for sale to eligible senior citizens under the Home
Ownership Program. The seniors purchase the homes and lease the underlying fand from the Authority.
The buyers are obligated to sell the mobile home back to the Authority for the original purchase price net
of adjustments for improvements or deterioration.

NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The Fund is restricted in its cash deposits and reserves to those allowed for Federal funds and programs
by HUD. In general, deposits must be made with qualified financial institutions whose deposits are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Deposits that are in excess of the
$100,000 insured amount must be continuously and fully secured by the pledging or setting aside of
identifiable U.S. Government securities as prescribed by HUD.

The Public Deposit Protection Act in effect in the State of Washington set up a multiple financial institution
collateral pool to insure public deposits. This protection is in the form of securities pledged as collateral
to the Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC) by all qualified depositories. In 1994, the Authority
received a waiver from HUD that enabled it to make deposits in excess of $100,000 in qualified public
depositories because HUD determined adequate safeguards exist against the loss of Public Housing
Authority funds.

All investments of the Fund consist of highly liquid money market investments, participating interest
earning contracts, debt securities and an investment in a Local Government Investment Pool. Although
the Pool is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), it is the policy of the Pool
to adhere to SEC Rule 2(a)(7) of the Investment Company Act of 1940. The rule includes requirements
of portfolio diversification, divestiture considerations and required actions if the market vailue of the
portfolio deviates more than .5 percent from amortized cost. Government pools that adhere to the SEC
rufe can report their investments at amortized costs if the remaining maturities of the debt securities are
90 days or less. Because money market instruments and participating interest-eaming contracts that
mature within one year or less of the date of their acquisitions and 2a7-like pools may be reported at
amortized cost, it is the policy of the Authority to report these investments at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value. Market value of the unrestricted debt security instruments did not deviate
significantly from cost and no adjustment to fair market value was made. All required reserves are fully
funded.
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Cash and investments are categorized as either (1) insured or registered, and held by the Authority or its
agent in the Authority’'s name, (2) uninsured and unregistered, with securities heid by the counter party’s
trust department or agent in the Authority's name, or (3) uninsured and unregistered, with securities held
by the counter party, or by its trust department or agent but not in the Authority's name. As of June 30,
2005 all investments were held in category (1) or are not classified since the investments are not
evidenced by securities that exist in physica! or book entry form.

Certain cash deposits and investments are classified as restricted assets if their use for general operating
purposes is legally or contractually prohibited. Restricted cash and investments held by the Authority
include tenant security deposits and debt service. Cash and investments at June 30 are categorized as
follows.

. Unrestricted Restricted Total
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Category 1:
Depository accounts $ 426,355 § 314,563 § 740,918
Investment contract - West LB 3,172,715 - 3,172,715
Uncategorized:
Cash on hand 4,284 - 4,284
Washington State Local Government
Investment Pool 6,502,144 - 6,502,144
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,105,498 314,563 10,420,061
INVESTMENTS:
Category 1t
Repurchase agreements ' - 3,291,272 3,291,272
Certificate of Deposits - 450,000 450,000
Uncategorized:
U.S. Treasury - Money Market . 204,058 204,058
Total Investments 3,945,330 3,945,330

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $ 10,105498 $§ 4259,893 § 14,365,391

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The components of land, structures and equipment at June 30, 2005 and the capital asset activity for the
fiscal year follow.

Beginning Disposals,
Balance Additions Transfers  Ending Balance
Land $ 6,299,523 $ - $ - $ 6,299,523
Buildings and improvements 25,322,880 - 25,322,880
Personal property 580,904 (2,009) 578,895
Total fixed assets 32,203,307 - (2,009) 32,201,298
Accumulated depreciation 7,585,629 584,441 (2.009) 8,168,061
NET FIXED ASSETS $ 24,617,678 $ (584,441) § - $ 24,033,237
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NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes

Deferred loans were obtained from the State of Washington and the City of Bellevue to acquire Hidden
Village Apartments. The amount due the State of Washington is $292,157 and is repayable commencing
in the year 2024 for a twenty-year term. Interest will not accrue until the year 2024 and the rate thereafter
will be 5%. The amount due the City of Bellevue is $200,000 payable commencing in the year 2012 for a
thirty-year term with interest at the rate of 5% commencing as of that date.

Series 1998A Bonds

In September 1998, the Authority issued its Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A
with principal amounts totaling $32,955,000. The Authority is required to make, and has made, all
payments required under the trust indenture. The bonds mature in varying amounts through July 1, 2028
and have stated interest rates which vary from 3.85% to 5.25% per annum. The bonds were issued at a
discount of $480,155. The discount is amortized as interest expense over the life of the debt. The
unamortized is reported as a reduction to the outstanding bonds payable. The amortized discount
charged to interest expense for this fiscal year totaled $4,448. The bonds are secured with a deed of
trust on the Projects’ rental property, equipment and net operating income. Principal payments are due
as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest
2006 5 675,000 § 1,508,233
2007 700,000 1,480,800
2008 735,000 1,448,313
2009 765,000 1,413,598
2010 805,000 1,375,125
2011-2015 4,700,000 6,212,185
2016-2020 6,110,000 4,846,414
2021-2025 8,005,000 3,030,563
2026-2030 6,970,000 751,275
TOTAL $ 29,465,000 § 22,066,504
Unamortized original issue discount (63,410)

Unamortized deferred defeasance (1,153,563)

BALANCE OF OUTSTANDING DEBT $ 28,248,027 $ 22,066,504
Due in one year or less 3 675,000

Due in over one year $ 27,573,027

The bond proceeds paid the cost of refunding all of the Authority's outstanding revenue bonds which had
been previously issued to acquire the Projects. The purpose of the advanced refunding was to
consolidate the issues, reduce the overall interest rate, allow for a fonger maturity and permit cross
collateralization of the Projects.

Deferred Defeasance

GASB Statement No. 23 states that in an advanced refunding of debt, the difference between the
reacquisition price of the new debt and the net carrying amount of the old debt be deferred and amortized
as a component of interest expense, a non-cash transaction, in a systematic and rational manner over
the original remaining life of the old debt or the new debt whichever is shorter. The advanced refunding
resulted in a deferred defeasance loss of $1,827,791 in September 1998. The deferred defeasance loss
of $1,153,563 at June 30 is reported on the balance sheet as a reduction from the new debt liability.
Amortization of deferred defeasance for the year was $37,444 and is included with interest expense.
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Deferred defeasance is amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Amortization
2006 $ 42,324
2007 46,132
2008 48,573
2009 44,433
2010 47,992
2011-2015 291,161
2016-2020 402,093
2021-2025 230,854
2026-2030 -

$ 1,153,563

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLANS

Substantially all the Authority's full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the
following statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement
Systems, under cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution
retirement plans. The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary
government of the State of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFR) that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The
DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing to; Department of Retirement Systems, Communications Unit,
P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA 98504-8380. The following disclosures are made pursuant to GASB
Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government Employers.

A) PLAN DESCRIPTION

PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans for
membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a combination defined
benefit/defined contribution plan. Membership in the system includes: elected officials; state employees;
employees of the Supreme, Appeals, and Superior courts {(other than judges currently in a judicial
retirement system); employees of iegislative committees; community and technical colleges, college and
university employees (not in national higher education retirement programs); judges of district and
municipal courts; and employees of local governments. PERS participants who joined the system by
September 30, 1977, are Plan 1 members. Those who joined on or after October 1, 1977 and by either,
February 28, 2002 for state and higher education employees, or August 31, 2002 for local government
employees, are Plan 2 members unless they exercise an option to transfer their membership to Plan 3.
PERS participants joining the system on or after March 1, 2002 for state and higher education
employees, or September 1, 2002 for local government employees have the irrevocable option of
choosing membership in either PERS Pian 2 or PERS Plan 3. The option must be exercised within 90
days of employment. An employee is reported in Pian 2 until a choice is made. Employees who fail to
choose within 90 days default to PERS Plan 3. PERS defined benefit retirement benefits are financed
from a combination of investment earnings and employer and employee contributions. PERS retirement
benefit provisions are established in state statute and may be amended only by the State Legislature.

Plan 1 retirement benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service. Plan 1
members are eligible for retirement at any age after 30 years of service, or at the age of 60 with five years
of service, or at the age of 55 with 25 years of service. The annual pension is 2 percent of the average
final compensation per year of service, capped at 60 percent. The average final compensation is based
on the greatest compensation during any 24 eligible consecutive compensation months. [f qualified, after
reaching the age of 66 a cost-of-living allowance is granted based on years of service credit and is
capped at 3 percent annually.
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Plan 2 retirement benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service. Plan 2
members may retire at the age of 65 with five years of service, or at the age of 55 with 20 years of
service, with an allowance of 2 percent of the average final compensation per year of service. The
average final compensation is based on the greatest compensation during any eligible consecutive 60-
month period. Plan 2 retirements prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement is at age
55 or older with at least 30 years of service, a 3 percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an actuarial
reduction will apply. There is no cap on years of service credit; and a cost-of-living allowance is granted
(indexed to the Seattle Consumer Price Index), capped at 3 percent annually.

Plan 3 has a duat benefit structure. Employer contributions finance a defined benefit component, and
member contributions finance a defined contribution component. The defined benefit portion provides a
benefit calculated at 1 percent of the average final compensation per year of service. The average final
compensation is based on the greatest compensation during any eligible consecutive 60-month period.
Plan 3 members become eligible for retirement if they have: at least ten years of service; or five years
including twelve months that were earned after age 54; or five service credit years earned in PERS Plan
2 prior to June 1, 2003. Plan 3 retirements prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement
is at age 55 or older with at least 30 years of service, a 3 percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an
actuarial reduction will apply. There is no cap on years of service credit; and Plan 3 provides the same
cost-of-living aliowance as Plan 2. The defined contribution portion can be distributed in accordance with
an option selected by the member, either as a lump sum or pursuant to other options authorized by the
Employee Retirement Benefits Board.

There are 1,168 participating employers in PERS. Membership in PERS consisted of the following as of
the latest actuarial valuation date for the plans of September 30, 2003:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 65,362
Terminated Plan Members Entitied to But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 20,001
Active Plan Members Vested 100,469
Active Plan Members Non-vested 54,081

9

B) FUNDING POLICY

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates, Plan 2
employer and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 employer contribution rates. Employee
contribution rates for Plan 1 are established by statute at 6 percent for state agencies and local
government unit employees, and 7.5 percent for state government eiected officers. The employer and
employee contribution rates for Pian 2 and the employer contribution rate for Plan 3 are developed by the
Office of the State Actuary to fully fund Pian 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. All employers are
required to contribute at the level established by the Legislature. PERS Plan 3 defined contribution is a
non-contributing plan for employers. Employees who participate in the defined contribution portion of
PERS Plan 3 do not contribute to the defined benefit portion of PERS Plan 3. The Employee Retirement
Benefits Board sets Plan 3 employee contribution rates. Six rate options are available ranging from 5 to
15 percent; two of the options are graduated rates dependent on the employee's age. The methods used
to determine the contribution requirements are established under state statute in accordance with
chapters 41.40 and 41.45 RCW.

The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current-year covered payroli, as of
December 31, 2005, were as foliows:

©__PERS®land . SERS?Blan’ PERE'Plan
Employer* 2.44% 2.44% 2.44%**
Employee 6.00% 2.25% e

* The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currently set at 0.19%.
** Plan 3 defined benefit portion only.
*** \/ariable from 5.0% minimum to 15.0% maximum based on rate selected by the PERS 3 member.
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Both the Authority and the employees made the required contributions. The Authority's required
contributions for the years ending December 31 were as follows:

3005 T $27.780
2004 $20.895 $163.272 "$19.308
2003 $18.031 $144,434 $15.531

NOTE 6 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to all typical perils associated with the ownership and rental of real estate
properties. A risk management program is currently in place which identifies potential areas of exposure
then puts in place procedures to mitigate, transfer, or insure against loss. All common perils relating to
property, liability, and employee dishonesty are covered by insurance subject to appropriate deductibles.
insurance for property, loss of rents and public officers’ liability is underwritten by the Housing Authority
Risk Retention Pool (HARRP), a housing authority insurance pool. In fiscal year 2005, general liability
insurance was procured for Auburn Square Apartments, Parkwood Apartments, Walnut Park Apartments,
and Woodland North Apartments from the Housing Authority Risk Retention Group (HARRG), a housing
authority risk retention pool located in Cheshire, CT. HARRG offered broader coverage to the Properties’
management firms, thus more effectively transferring risk. Commercial carriers insure all other common
perils not covered by HARRP such as business auto, fiood where applicable, computer coverage,
construction bonds, and other miscellaneous policies. Insurance coverage limits are as follows:

General liability per occurrence (includes excess) $ 5,000,000
Property blanket loss per occurrence/all risk/replacement cost 3,000,000
Loss of rents- business income 19,593,534

In the opinion of the Authority, the financial status of HARRP, HARRG and the commercial carriers with
which the Authority had policies during the year is adequate to accept the risk transfer for the coverage
invoived.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal Assistance Received Directly Through a Federal Agency or
Indirectly Through a State Agency or Local Government
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Federal  Other CURRENT
CFDA ID YEAR
GRANTOR PROGRAM TITLE Number Number EXPENDITURES
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, RURAL HOUSING SERVICE-DIRECT PROGRAMS
RURAL RENTAL HOUSING LOANS-RAINIER | 10.415 Loan $ 448,626
RURAL RENTAL HOUSING LOANS-RAINIER [ 10.415 Loan 625,677
RURAL RENTAL HOUSING LOANS-SI VIEW 10.415 Loan 185,615
TOTAL FOR 10.415 - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 1,259,919
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD)-DIRECT PROGRAMS
SECTION 8 NEW CONSTRUCTION
NORTHLAKE HOUSE 14.182 WA19-0049-002 235,887
NORTHWOOD 14,182 WA19:8023-006 202,609
BURIEN PARK 14.182 WA 19-8023-007 615,283
EMERSON MANOR 14.182 S 0056 172,525
HOMESTEAD APT 14.182 S 0058 131,888
TOTALS FOR 14.182 1,358,192
SECTION 8 SPECIAL ALLOCATION
KING COUNTY - HIDDEN VILLAGE 14.195 WA19M000184 378,292
KING COUNTY - PARKWAY 14.195 WA 19M000203 450,459
KING COUNTY - SPIRITWOOD 14.195 WAI9M000182 887,206
KING COUNTY - NEWPORT 14.195 WAI9M000179 129,954
TOTAL SUBSIDY 1,845,911
FHA LOAN - SPIRITWOOD 14.195 Loan 2,806,897
FHA LOAN - NEWPORT APTS 14.195 Loan 408,014
FHA LOAN - PARKWAY 14.195 Loan 1,706,891
TOTAL INSURED MORTGAGES 4,921,802
TOTALS FOR 14.195 6,767,713
PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING
KING COUNTY - OPERATING SUBSIDY 14.850 WA00200305] 7,779,842
KING COUNTY - SUPPORT SERVICE COORDINATOR 14850 ° WA00200305J 270,563
TOTAL KING COUNTY 8,050,405
OLYMPIA - OPERATING SUBSIDY 14.850 WA00202505]) 78,596
TOTAL FOR 14.850 8,129,001
HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS 14.871 5023V 56,706,489
TOTALS FOR 14.871 56,706,489
SECTION 8 MODERATE REHABILITATION
TITUSVILLE 14,856 S 0023K 64,936
TOTALS FOR 14.856 ________M_
PUBLIC HOUSING CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM
CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM  FFY 2001 14.872 WA 19P00250101 291,093
CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM  FFY 2002 14.872 WAT9P00250102 973,380
CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM  FFY 2003 14.872 WA 19P00250103 1,204,004
CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM  FFY 2004 14.872 WA 19P00250104 2,284,449
TOTALS FOR 14.872 4,752,927
PUBLIC HOUSING REVITALIZATION OF SEVERLY DISTRESSED PUBLIC HOUSING
HOPE V! 14.866 WA 19URDO0021101 8,655,722
TOTALS FOR 14.866 8,655,722
MOVING TO WORK INITIATIVE MTWTGWA0002 18,491
MULTIFAMILY HBOUSING SERVICE COORDINATOR
SENIOR HOUSING 14.191 WA19HS00003 56,292
SENIOR HOUSING 14.191 WA 19HS02005 89,400
TOTALS FOR 14.191 145,692
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal Assistance Received Directly Through a Federal Agency or

Indirectly Through a State Agency or Local Government

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Federal  Other CURRENT
CFDA ID YEAR
GRANTOR PROGRAM TITLE Number Number EXPENDITURES
RESIDENT OPPORTUNITY AND SELF SUFFICIENCY
RESIDENT SERVICE DELIVERY SPRINGWOOD CAREER DEVELOPMENT CENTER 14.870 WAOORSF002P0083 36,938
PARK LAKE CAREER DEVELOPMENT CENTER FFY 2002 14.870 WAO2RSF002P0084 125,726
N & E OUTREACH COLL 14.870 WAOIRSF002P0079 185,971
HOMEOWNER PROGRAM  FFY 2002 14.870 WAO2RHS002P0022 118,247
NEIGHBORHOOD NETWORKS - AUBURN 14.870 WAO02RNNO02P0063 31,235
NEIGHBORHOOD NETWORKS - KENT 14.870 WAO2RNNO50A003 41,664
TOTALS FOR 14.870 539,781
TOTAL DIRECT-U.S DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 87,138,945
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD)-INDIRECT PROGRAMS
PASS THROUGH KING COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT _
CDBG FLOAT LOAN FOR GREENBRIDGE PROJECT 14.218 360,570
HOUSING REPAIR - KING CO 2003 14.218 C03461 160,597
PASS THROUGH CITY OF BELLEVUE
HOUSING REPAIR-BELLEVUE 2003 14.218 C-30 39,392
HOUSING REPAIR-BELLEVUE 2004 14.218 C-40 387,890
HOUSING REPAIR-BELLEVUE 2005 14.218 CDBG 187 42,926
TOTALS FOR 14218 991,375
PASS THROUGH KING COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
CDBG FOR WILEY CENTER RENOVATION AT GREENBRIDGE 14.219 D34096D 395,550
CDBG CITY OF BELLEVUE 14.219 C4s 30,000
TOTALS FOR 14219 425,550
TOTAL INDIRECT-U.S.DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 1,416,925
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 88,555,869

U.S DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

PASS THROUGH WASHINGTON DEPT OF COMMUNITY TRADE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS  FFY 2003

WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS  FFY 2004

WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS  FFY 2005
TOTALS FOR 81.042 -U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN AND HEALTH SERVICES

PASS THROUGH WASHINGTON DEPT OF COMMUNITY TRADE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
93.568
93.568

FFY 2004
FFY 2005

LOW INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE
LOW INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE

81.042
81.042
81.042

TOTALS FOR 93.568 -U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN AND HEALTH SERVICES

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE
PASS THROUGH EMFPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT
AMERICORP PROJECT FFY 2005

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

94.006
TOTALS FOR 94.006-CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE

F03-446-413 BPA
F04-434-413 DOE
F05-434-413 DOE

F04-431-413
F05-431-413

ESD 05-027-G

3

60,689
393,687
30,748
485,124

196,650
445,801
642,451

54,904
54,904

90,998,267

The Schedule of Financial Assistance is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the King County Housing Authority’s financial

statements. (See Note 1 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.)

NOTE 2 - PROGRAM COSTS

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal portion of the program costs. Actual program costs, including

The Authority’s portion, may be more than shown.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AND LOCAL AWARDS

Assistance Received Through a State Agency, Local Gavernment or Private Organization

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

CURRENT
ID YEAR
GRANTOR PROGRAM TITLE Number EXPENDITURES
STATE OF WASHINGTON
OFFICE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS FFY 03 503-498-413 $ 377,539
WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PUGET SOUND ENERGY FUND FFY 03 003-439-413 PSE 480,250
WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PUGET SOUND ENERGY FUND FFY 05 005-439-413 PSE 291,062
TOTALS FOR OFFICE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 1,148,851
OPPORTUNITY COUNCIL
WASHINGTON CONSUMERS ENERGY FUND FFY 05 TANNER_KCH 860
TOTALS FOR OPPORTUNITY COUNCIL 860
TOTALS FOR STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 1,149,711
OTHER
BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF KING COUNTY
GREENBRIDGE FACILITY CONSTRUCTION 100,000
BOEING EMPLOYEES CREDIT UNION
GREENBRIDGE COMMUNITY SERVICES 29,669
HOUSING ACCESS SERVICE PROGRAM ’
VOUCHER HOLDER ASSISTANCE 95,403
TOTAL STATE AND LOCAL ASSISTANCE $ 1,391,269

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Schedule of Financial Assistance is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the King County Housing
Authority’s financial statements. (See Note | in the Notes to the Financial Statements.)

NOTE 2 - PROGRAM COSTS

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal portion of the program costs. Actual program
costs, including The Authority’s portion, may be more than shown.
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Appendix C

										Area Median Income								Primary Income Source				Family type						Race / Ethnicity										Number of Bedrooms																Act Bdrm

		Block Grant		Category		Hsehlds		Avg Annual Income		0-30%		30-50%		50-80%		>80%		Employed		TANF		Disabled		Elderly		Family		White		Black		Naitve American		Asian		Hispanic		0		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		0		1		2		3		4		5		6		7

				General Voucher		5651		$14,287		4618		916		104		13		1566		881		1755		677		3219		3144		1832		85		351		239		4		1790		1638		1745		402		59		11		2		4		1803		1623		1744		403		61		11		2

				Port-outs		494		$13,933		401		81		12		0		118		91		139		58		297		218		212		9		35		20				145		159		146		34		10								242		79		26		4

				Project-Based		280		$6,093		266		9		5				69		98		77		30		173		197		44		4		22		13				107		172		1										1		144		160		143		36		10

				Subtotal		6425		$13,903		5285		1006		121		13		1753		1070		1971		765		3689		3559		2088		98		408		272		4		2042		1969		1892		436		69		11		2		5		2189		1862		1913		443		71		11		2

		Non-Block Grant		Mainstream		351		$11,630		304		42		4		1		182		41		227		101		23		197		123		5		19		7				244		75		29		3										107		171		2

				Port-ins		1715		$8,164		1699		16						568		314		719		416		580		710		779		28		142		56		1		781		910		20		3										786		895		29		5

				Subtotal		2066		$8,753		2003		58		4		1		750		355		946		517		603		907		902		33		161		63		1		1025		985		49		6		0		0		0		0		893		1066		31		5		0		0		0

				Grand Total		8491		$12,650		7288		1064		125		14		2503		1425		2917		1282		4292		4466		2990		131		569		335		5		3067		2954		1941		442		69		11		2		5		3082		2928		1944		448		71		11		2

										Area Median Income								Primary Income Source				Family type						Race / Ethnicity										Number of Bedrooms

		Block Grant		Category		Hsehlds		Avg Annual Income		0-30%		30-50%		50-80%		>80%		Employed		TANF		Disabled		Elderly		Family		White		Black		Naitve American		Asian		Hispanic		0		1		2		3		4		5		6		7

				General Voucher		88%		$14,287		82%		16%		2%		0%		28%		16%		31%		12%		57%		56%		32%		2%		6%		4%		0%		32%		29%		31%		7%		1%		0%		0%		0%		28%		25%		27%		6%		1%		0%		0%

				Port-outs		8%		$13,933		81%		16%		2%		0%		24%		18%		28%		12%		60%		44%		43%		2%		7%		4%		0%		29%		32%		30%		7%		2%		0%		0%		0%		12%		14%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%

				Project-Based		4%		$6,093		95%		3%		2%		0%		25%		35%		28%		11%		62%		70%		16%		1%		8%		5%		0%		38%		61%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		2%		2%		2%		1%		0%		0%		0%

				Subtotal		100%		$13,903		82%		16%		2%		0%		27%		17%		31%		12%		57%		55%		32%		2%		6%		4%		0%		32%		31%		29%		7%		1%		0%		0%

		Non-Block Grant		Mainstream		17%		$11,630		87%		12%		1%		0%		52%		12%		65%		29%		7%		56%		35%		1%		5%		2%		0%		70%		21%		8%		1%		0%		0%		0%		0%		5%		8%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%

				Port-ins		83%		$8,164		99%		1%		0%		0%		33%		18%		42%		24%		34%		41%		45%		2%		8%		3%		0%		46%		53%		1%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		4%		1%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%

				Subtotal		100%		$8,753		97%		3%		0%		0%		36%		17%		46%		25%		29%		44%		44%		2%		8%		3%		0%		50%		48%		2%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		43%		52%		2%		0%		0%		0%		0%

				Grand Total		100%		$12,650		86%		13%		1%		0%		29%		17%		34%		15%		51%		53%		35%		2%		7%		4%		0%		36%		35%		23%		5%		1%		0%		0%		0%		36%		34%		23%		5%		1%		0%		0%																								0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%
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								Household Type								Race / Ethnicity

		Wait List Type		Households		Avg Annual Income		Disabled		Elderly		Family		Unknown		White		Black		Native American		Asian		Hispanic		Unknown

		General Voucher		2500		$11,064		575		185		1712		28		947		1021		108		249		130		45

		Private Housing - PBS8		1588		$8,994		342		165		1081				792		397		36		246		792		6

		Grand Total		4088		$10,260		917		350		2793		28		1739		1418		144		495		922		51

								Household Type								Race / Ethnicity

		Wait List Type		Households		Avg Annual Income		Disabled		Elderly		Family		Unknown		White		Black		Native American		Asian		Hispanic		Unknown

		General Voucher		2500		$11,064		23%		7%		68%		1%		38%		41%		4%		10%		5%		2%

		Private Housing - PBS8		1588		$8,994		22%		10%		68%		0%		50%		25%		2%		15%		50%		0%

		Grand Total		4088		$10,260		22%		9%		68%		1%		43%		35%		4%		12%		23%		1%

		Note:  KCHA's Section 8 waiting list reopened April 26 - May 9, 2006 during which time more than 10,000 families completed the application process.  To accurately project characteristics of applicants during FY 2007, data shown reflects households placed on the waiting list as of June 30, 2006, following "lottery" assignment of 2500 available positions.
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Appendix F

		SERVICES AND PROGRAMS



		Program Name & Description (including location, if appropriate)

		Services Provided

		Access (Development office/PHA main office/other provider name)

		Eligibility 

(Public housing or Section 8 participants or both or other)



		Academy of Language:  Translation & interpretation services to support programs and meet language needs of residents.

		All KCHA sites

		Academy of Languages or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Section 8, and Preservation Residents



		Auburn Food Bank:  Food Bank Services located at Burndale Homes, also serving Firwood Circle, Green River Homes.

		Burndale Homes, Firwood Circle and Green River Homes

		Auburn Food Bank or PHA Staff

		Public Housing,  Section 8 Participants, and Other Area Residents



		Bellevue Boys and Girls Club:  Computer Activity Centers and Youth Service Programs; Summer Lunch Program



		Eastside Terrace, Hidden Village, and Spiritwood Manor

		Bellevue Boys and Girls Club or PHA Staff

		Public Housing and Preservation Residents



		Bellevue Community College:  Job skills training and career development assistance.

		Eastside Terrace, Pickering Court, College Place, Spiritwood Manor, and Hidden Village 

		Bellevue Community College or PHA Staff

		Preservation Residents



		Boys and Girls Club of King County:  Late Night and Weekend Youth Recreation Programs. 

		Park Lake Homes I and II

		Boys and Girls Clubs of King County or PHA Staff

		Public Housing,  Section 8 and other area residents





		Boys and Girls Clubs of King County:  Youth Recreation, Summer Lunch Program and Other Services.

		Park Lake Homes, Firwood Circle, Green River Burndale, Springwood, Valli Kee, Cascade Homes Evergreen Court, and King’s Court



		Boys and Girls Clubs of King County, Neighborhood House, Kent Youth & Family Services or PHA Staff

		Public Housing, Section 8, and other area residents



		Cascadia Community College:  Job skills training and career development assistance.

		Avondale Manor, Forest Grove, Kirkwood Terrace, Juanita Court, Juanita Trace, Wells Wood and Cedarwood



		Cascadia Community College or PHA staff

		Public Housing Residents and other area residents



		Program Name & Description (including location, if appropriate)

		Services provided

		Access (Development office / PHA main office / other provider name)

		Eligibility

(Public housing or Section 8 participants or both or other)



		Center for Career Alternatives:  ESL, Job Preparation and Placement Assistance. 

		Kent Family Center Springwood 

		Center for Career Alternatives or PHA staff

		Public Housing Residents and Kent Area Section 8 Participants



		Center for Human Services: Homework Assistance, Tutoring Services & Summer Youth Programs.  Also, provide family programs.

		Ballinger Homes

		Center for Human Services or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Center for Multicultural Health:  ESL and Citizenship classes.

		Ballinger Homes

		Center for Multicultural Health or PHA staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Christ Free Community Clinic: 

Basic health care services and health care referrals

		Gustaves Manor

		Christ Free Community Clinic or PHA staff

		Public Housing and Other Low-income Area Residents



		City of Auburn Police Department:  Community Policing Services 

		Burndale Homes, Firwood Circle and Green River Homes

		City of Auburn Police Department:  Community Policing Services or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents



		City of Bellevue Police Department:  Community Policing and Outreach 

		Spiritwood Manor, College Place, Eastside Terrace and Hidden Village

		City of Bellevue Police Department or PHA Staff

		Public Housing and Preservation Residents



		City of Kent: Senior Activity Center: Exercise Program

		Harrison House

		City of Kent hired the instructor

		Harrison House Apartments LLC



		City of Shoreline Departments of Parks and Recreation:  Provide Art Series, Art Studio, Arts and Crafts Workshop and Teen Recreation Trips.

		Ballinger Homes

		City of Shoreline Departments of Parks and Recreation, PHA Staff, or Center for Human Services Staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Consolidated Food Management:  Meal Program 

		Harrison House

		Consolidated Food Management or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Des Moines Area Food Bank:  Provides food assistance to residents. 

		Riverton Terrace

		Des Moines Area Food Bank Staff or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents



		El Centro de la Raza:  homeownership services

		Public housing complexes

		Urban League, El Centro de la Raza, IDHA, SHA and KCHA staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Program Name & Description (including location, if appropriate)

		Services Provided

		Access (Development office/PHA main office/other provider name)

		Eligibility

 (Public housing or Section 8 participants or both or other)



		Faith In Action Program:  Volunteer Chore Services for residents. 

		Eastridge House

		Interfaith Volunteer Program or PHA staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Federal Way Youth and Family Services:  Family support programming. 

		Kings Court and Evergreen Court

		Federal Way Youth and Family Services or PHA staff

		Public Housing Residents and Other Area Residents



		Girl Scouts of America:  Provide services:  creative living, helping people, trail activities (outdoors) homework assistance, emergency literacy and clean up and closing activity.

		Wells Wood, Kirkwood Terrace, Springwood, Valli Kee & Cascade

		Girl Scouts of America or PHA staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Hairdresser at Harrison House:  Alvina Voegel

		Harrison House Apt. LLC, Burien Park, Boulevard Manor

		

		Harrison House Apt. LLC, and Public Housing Residents



		Highline Community College:  Adult Education and E.S.L. Services within Career Development Center and a Computer Education Center.

		Park Lake Homes I and II

		Highline Community College or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents and Section 8 Participants, and Other Area Residents



		Highline Food Bank:  Food assistance 




		Boulevard Manor

		Highline Food Bank Staff or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents and Other Area Residents.



		Highline West Seattle Mental Health:  On site Supportive and Case Management Services.

		Sunnydale

		Highline West Seattle Mental Health or PHA staff

		Public Housing Residents or Other Area Residents



		HOPELINK:


Transportation services to Food Banks, essential shopping and other destinations. 

		Mixed Population Developments and Park Lake Homes.  Sites include 2,070 units

		King County Housing Authority Support Services Coordination Program, Transportation Program, or other PHA Staff

		Public Housing and Section 8 New Construction Residents



		International District Housing Alliance (IDHA):  homeownership services

		Public housing complexes

		Urban League, El Centro de la Raza, IDHA, SHA and KCHA staff

		Public housing residents



		Kent Food Bank:  Provide food assistance to residents.

		Springwood




		Kent Food Bank or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents and Section 8 Participants, and Other Area Residents





		Program Name & Description (including location, if appropriate)

		Services Provided

		Access (Development office/PHA main office/other provider name)

		Eligibility 

(Public housing or Section 8 participants or both or other)



		Kent Youth and Family Services: Computer Center, youth recreation services and summer lunch program



		Springwood Apartments, Valli Kee and Cascade Homes

		Kent Youth and Family Service or PHA staff

		Public Housing Residents and Other Area Residents



		King County Housing Authority AmeriCorps 

Program Adult Education Services:  ESL Classes, 

Civic Engagement Program, and other educational activities for residents. 

		

Senior and mixed population developments

		King County Housing Authority 


AmeriCorps Program or other PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents



		King County Housing Authority AmeriCorps Program Adult Education Services:  Basic Computer Classes 

		Youngs Lake

		King County Housing Authority AmeriCorps Program or other PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents



		King County Housing Authority Family Self Sufficiency Program:  Case Management and Service Coordination to FSS Program Participants.

		Section 8 voucher holders located throughout King County 

		King County Housing Authority staff  & YWCA contracted staff

		Section 8 



		King County Housing Authority Support Services Coordination Program:  Community Building, Outreach, Information and Referral, and Advocacy Services.

		Mixed Population Developments. 

Sites include 1,337 units

		King County Housing Authority Support Services Coordination Program or other PHA staff

		Public Housing and Section 8 New Construction Residents



		King County Housing Authority Family Services Program  Housing Stability, relocation, emergency financial assistance, support service referrals, landlord advocacy.

		Mixed Population Developments and Park Lake Homes.  Sites include 2,070 units

		King County Housing Authority Support Services Coordination Program, Transportation Program, or other PHA Staff

		Public Housing and Section 8 New Construction Residents



		King County Library:  Mobile Library Services 

		Mixed Population Developments.  Sites include 1,337 units

		King County Library or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents





		Program Name & Description (including location, if appropriate)

		Services Provided

		Access (Development office/PHA main office/other provider name)

		Eligibility 

(Public housing or Section 8 participants or both or other)



		King County Sheriff’s Department:  Community Policing Services 

		Ballinger Homes, Cascade Apartments and Park Lake Homes



		King County Sheriff’s Department or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Redmond Boys 

and Girls Club:  Youth Programs, Homework Assistance and  Summer Lunch Program.

		Avondale Manor

		Redmond Boys and Girls Club or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Lighthouse:


Late night activities for at risk teens

		Springwood, Cascade Homes and Valli Kee Homes

		PHA Staff, Kent Youth and Family Services Staff, Kent Police and King County Sheriff Department

		Public Housing Residents and Section 8 Participants, and Other Area Residents



		Literacy Source:  ESL Services 

		Northridge House / Northridge II

		ESL Services

		Public Housing Residents



		Neighborhood House:  Tutoring Services and Summer Lunch Program.

		Burndale Homes, Firwood Circle, Green River Homes, and Park Lake Homes

		Neighborhood House or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Neighborhood House:  The Voice Newspaper Provided to Public Housing and Preservation Program Residents.

		More than 2,300 copies distributed each month

		Neighborhood House or PHA Staff

		Public Housing and Preservation Program Residents



		Neighborhood House:  Case Management, Family Support Services, and Coordination of the White Center Helpline.

		Park Lake Homes, Green River Homes, Burndale Homes and Firwood Circle

		Neighborhood House or PHA Staff

		Public Housing and Section 8 Residents, and Other Area Residents



		New Futures:  Provides after-school programs and family advocacy services to residents.

		Arbor Heights Apartments and

 Windsor Heights

		New Futures or PHA Staff

		Tax Credit Properties and Other Area Residents



		Puget Sound Educational Service District:  Head Start/Early Childhood Education Services.

		Park Lake Homes I and II and Kent Family Center Springwood

		Puget Sound Educational Service District or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Renton Technical College: ESL Program

		Kent Family Center Springwood

		RTC Staff and PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Program Name & Description (including location, if appropriate)

		Services Provided

		Access (Development office/PHA main office/other provider name)

		Eligibility 

(Public housing or Section 8 participants or both or other)



		Salvation Army: Emergency Assistance Activity Programming, Homework and Youth Recreation Activities.

		Juanita Trace and Juanita Court

		Salvation Army or PHA Staff

		Public Housing Residents and Other Area Residents



		Seattle King County Department of Public Health:  WIC Clinic – Pre and Post Natal Care, women and children services.

		Kent Family Center Springwood

		WIC or PHA Staff 

		Public Housing and Section 8 Residents, and Other Area Residents



		Senior Services:


Transportation services to Food Banks, essential shopping and other destinations. 

		Mixed Population Developments and Park Lake Homes.  Sites include 2,070 units

		King County Housing Authority Support Services Coordination Program, Transportation Program, or other PHA Staff

		Public Housing and Section 8 New Construction Residents



		Senior Services:


Nutrition and Wellness Programs.

		Mixed Population Developments. Sites include 1,267 units

		King County Housing Authority Support Services Program, Senior Services, or other PHA staff

		Public Housing and Section 8 New Construction Residents



		Shoreline Community College: Job skills training and career development assistance.

		Ballinger Homes and Green Leaf

		Shoreline Community College or PHA staff

		Public Housing Residents



		South King County Multi-Service Center:  ESL and Citizenship Services 

		Southridge House

		South King County Multi-Service Center or PHA staff

		Public Housing Residents



		Urban League:  Homeownership assistance to residents 

		Public housing complexes

		Urban League, El Centro de la Raza, IDHA, SHA and KCHA staff

		Public Housing Residents 



		Visiting Nurse Services of the Pacific Northwest:  Health and Wellness Clinic 

		Mixed Population Developments.  Sites include 1,267 units

		Visiting Nurse Services of the Pacific Northwest or PHA staff

		Public Housing and Section 8 New Construction Residents



		Washington State University Cooperative Extension Food Sense:  Provides Community Garden and nutrition curriculum for youth and parents.

		Cascade Homes, Park Lake Homes I and II, Springwood, Valli Kee, and Windsor Heights

		

		Public Housing and Section 8 Residents, and Other Area Residents



		White Center Food Bank:  Food Assistance 

		Park Lake Homes and Yardley Arms

		White Center Food Bank or PHA staff

		Public Housing and Section 8 Residents, and Other Area Residents





		Program Name & Description (including location, if appropriate)

		Services Provided

		Access (Development office/PHA main office/other provider name)

		Eligibility 

(Public housing or Section 8 participants or both or other)



		Youth Eastside Services:  Counseling Services and Youth Activities Programming.

		Spiritwood Manor

		Youth Eastside Services or PHA staff

		Section 8 Participants



		YWCA of Seattle / King County / Snohomish County:  Coordination of Employment and Education Services at Park Lake Career Development Center.

		Park Lake Homes I and II 

		YWCA of Seattle / King County / Snohomish County or PHA staff

		Public Housing and Section 8 Residents, and Other Area Residents



		YWCA of Seattle / King County / Snohomish County:  Family Self Sufficiency Services

		

Section 8 voucher holders located throughout King County

		YWCA of Seattle / King County / Snohomish County or PHA staff

		Section 8 Participants



		YWCA of Seattle / King County / Snohomish County:  Program Coordination and Housing Search Assistance for Housing Access and Services Program for disabled Section 8 participants 

		500 Allocation and Mainstream Program Vouchers

		YWCA of Seattle / King County / Snohomish County or PHA staff

		Section 8 Participants



		YWCA of Seattle / King County / Snohomish County:  Provide Career Development and job assistance 

		Coronado Springs and neighborhood residents in White Center

		YWCA of Seattle / King County / Snohomish County or PHA staff

		Public Housing and Section 8 Residents, and Other Area Residents
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Board of Commissioners

NANCY HOLLAND.YOUNG, Vice Chair KING COUNTY

bORES BROWN
HOUSING AUTHORITY

Executive Director:

STEPHEN J. NORMAN

June 16, 2006

Dear RAC Member;

As you may be aware, the King County Housing Authority is a participant in the Department
of Housing and Urban Development's (HUD’s) Moving to Work (MTW) demonstration
program. As an MTW participant, the Housing Authority is provided with a bit of flexibility to
develop programs and practices designed to:

Expand program, location and housing choice for residents;

Increase client self-sufficiency;

Increase program efficiency and streamline and simply operations; and,
Preserve and increase affordable housing opportunities.

Included on the Agenda for this month’s RAC meeting, is a review of the KCHA's FY 2007
| - Moving to Work (MTW) Annual Plan. The Plan serves as the framework for KCHA activity
during the next fiscal year (FY 2007) that begins July 1, 2006 and ends June 30, 2007.

Enclosed, for review prior to the RAC meeting, you will find a copy of the current Draft MTW
Plan for FY 2007. In addition enclosed is a summary of main items from the Plan that are
scheduled for review during the year. Please note, this is a DRAFT only. A final Plan will
be developed based upon comments received during the RAC meeting and upon those of
staff who are still reviewing the draft.

You will be provided with an opportunity to comment on the Draft Plan during the RAC
meeting. In addition, you may submit written comments regarding the Plan and are invited
to attend the Public Hearing that is currently scheduled for August 11, 2006. An updated
Draft Plan will be available, upon request, prior to the public hearing.

I look forward to discussing the Authority’s MTW Annual Plan for FY 2007 with each of you.
Should you have any questions regarding the materials provided, please contact me at 206-
574-1100.

600 ANDOVER PARK WEST ¢ SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98188-2583
PHONE (206) 574-1100 ¢ FAX (206) 574-1104
EQUAL HOUSING OPPORTUNITY





KING COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY

MAKING TRANSITION WORK
FY 2007 Annual Plan

MAJOR POLICY/PROGRAM INITIATIVES

Section 8

e Comprehensive Review: New Leased Housing Program
¢ Development of New Rent Policy

o Implementation of Revised FSS Program

Public Housing

e Review, Analysis and Implementation of New Rent Policy that
considers the potential for:

o New/Revised Self-Sufficiency Incentives

o Revision or Elimination of Income Disregards, definition of
Income and Allowances, etc.

o Bi-Annual Rent Reviews for Households on Fixed Income

o Revision of potential changes to the definitions of Annual
Income, and allowances and the procedures for verification
of household data.

¢ Continued Implementation of Site-Based Management in All
Areas

e Energy and Water Conservation Measures — including review and
implementation of changes to the Utility Allowance system and
implementation if measures to encourage energy conservation.





Board of Commissionevrs TS
et (WPKING COUNTY
DELORES BROWN

> DommENcaTo HOUSING AUTHORITY

Executive Director:

STEPHEN J. NORMAN

PUBLIC NOTICE

The King County Housing Authority (KCHA) announces the availability of
its draft Making Transition Work (MTW) Plan for fiscal year 2007, which
begins on July 1, 2006. The MTW program is a HUD demonstration
program that allows high-performing housing authorities to make
program and policy changes to (1) increase the housing choices low-
income families have, (2) help residents achieve self-sufficiency, and (3)
increase the cost-effectiveness of federal housing programs. As an MTW
participant, KCHA is required to develop an Annual Plan. The MTW

| - Annual Plan outlines and identifies those policies that the housing
authority plans to change during the coming fiscal year. KCHA will hold
a public hearing to review its draft MTW Annual Plan for FY 2007, on
August 11, 2006, at 7:00 P.M. at the Kent Family Center located at,
13111 S.E. 274t Street, Kent, Washington. The draft Plan will be
available for review beginning June 27, 2006, during normal business
hours at KCHA’s Administrative Offices (600 Andover Park West,
Tukwila, Washington). The draft plan can be e-mailed to interested
members of the public upon request by calling Judi Jones, Housing
Management Analyst at (206) 574-1100. In addition, written comments
regarding the MTW plan can be submitted prior to August 10, 2006 by
mail to the following address: KCHA MTW Plan, Attn: Judi Jones, 600
Andover Park West, Tukwila, Washington 98188.

600 ANDOVER PARK WEST ¢ SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98188-2583
PHONE (206) 574-1100 « FAX (206) 574-1104
EQUAL HOUSING OPPORTUNITY





dhe Seattle Times
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RePResENTING THE Seattle Post-Intelligencer
PO Box 70, Seattle, WA 98111

KC HOUSING AUTHORITY — . e
. PN ones

600 ANDOVER PARK WEST
SEATTLE, WA 98188

Re: Advertiser Account #68446906
Ad #: 717484500

Affidavit of Publication
3490288 / 1

STATE OF WASHINGTON
Counties of King and Snohomish

The undersigned, on oath states that he/she is an authorized representative of The Seattle Times Company, publisher of
The Seattle Times and representing the Seattle Post-intelligencer, separate newspapers of general circulation published
daily in King and Snohomish Counties, State of Washington. The Seattle Times and the Seattie Post-Intelligencer have
been approved as legal newspapers by orders of the Superior Court of King and Snohomish Counties.

The notice, in the exact form annexed, was published in the regular and entire issue of said paper or papers and
distributed to its subscribers during all of the said period.

\
The Seattle Times ! 07/03/06
Agent Xary ¢ b att signature LY BQ‘:&@ Q %;\;;ﬁ;
) \\\\\\L CH"””
¢\\ e \\:\\\\ I//
Subscribed and sworn to before me on 1 /A/r Ly ’2@\9?\:\ 5 “""’ /P'I’/ 9
ATE =V T oide, %1, 97
Vs A Lon Een
/ A s = z Z
(NOTARY SIGNATURE) Notary Public in and for the State of WaShiggton, Jg/Sld{ﬂg at__is,eam
// //0 A %\::,: 5
V /// -?)%: /”ﬁ:\?\{:\‘\g\;? . ,\5
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Ad TEXT:

- The Seattle Times

%

RePRESENTING THE Seattle Post-Intelligencer
N‘ dvertiser Account #68446906 Ad # 717484500

PUBLIC NQTICE

The King County Housing
*Authority (KCHA)

announces the availability ot its
dratt Making

Transition Work (MTW) Plan for
fiscal year 2007,

which begins on July 1, 2006.
The MTW program is

a HUD demonstration program
that allows

high-performing housing
authorities to make

program and policy changes to
(1) increase the

housing choices low-income-
familles have, (2)

help residents achieve self-
sufficiency, and:(3)

increase the cost-effectiveness
of federal

housing programs. As an MTW
participant, KCHA is

required to develop an Annual
Plan. The MTW

Annual Plan outlines and
identifies those

policies that the housing
authority plans to

change during the coming
«fiscal year. KCHA will

hold a public hearing to review
its draft MTW

Annual Ptan for FY 2007, on
August 11, 2006, at

7:00 P.M. at the Kent Family
Center located at,

13111 S.E. 274th Street, Kent,
Washington. The

dratt Plan will be available for
review beginning

June 27, 2006, during normal
business hours at

KCHA's Administrative
*Oftfices (600 Andover Park
West, Tukwila, Washington).
The draft pian can be

e-mailed to interested members
of the public upon

request by calling Judi Jones,
Housing Management

Analyst at (206) 574-1100. In
addition, written

comments regarding the MTW
plan can be submitted

prior to August 10, 2006 by mail
to the following

*address:

KCHA MTW Plan, Attn: Judi
Jones, 600

Andover Park West, Tukwiia,
Washington 98188.
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Telephone Sales - See
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new agents. Call Stephen at
206-325-6000 Landmark Group
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Sesking independent, mctivated
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Warehouse Forklift & Driv-
er positions - ail shifts, Call
Remedy! 206-242-8018

Waorehouse Helper - Befle-
vue. Raom for advence-
ment. Benefits 425-853-4080

Warehouse - Produce Quality
Assuronce and Receiving
Clerk. www.sysceseattle.cont
WAREHOUSE - Will Train.
$8.50 on hour. Must work
weekends. Call 206 763-8573
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The King County Housing
Authority (KCHA) announces
the ovailability cof iis draft
Making  Transition  Work
(MTW) Plan for fiscal year

Fantastic Soms - Wonderful
franchise opp. now avaliable!
Call Now - 80g-789-4142

2007, which begins on July 1,
2006, The MTW progrom is o
HUD demonstrafion program
that allows high-performing

1/04).
$1,060

Franchisor.

FRANCHISE - For ather fran-
chise opporfunities please see
Classification 307,

*xk JANFKING #

is the #1 Commercial Cleaning
(Entrepreneur

Jani-King offers froi

ta §20.800 in initial busi-

housing autharities to make
progrom and policy chunges to
(1) increase the housing choic-
es fow-income famiiies have,
(2) belp residenfs achieve self-
sufficiency, and (3) increase
the cost-effectiveness of federal
housing progroms. As on MTW
participant, KCHA is required
to develop an Annual Pian, The

m

SERGIO RAMOS and “JANE

the said SERGIO

ness offerings. GUARANTEED
FINANCING AVAIL. Call for
info and video.  425-485-5567
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on Kono Coost of Howaii,
over 20+ yrs service. 80k net,
$175K. Cash only, principals
only. BD8-322-0115

Janitorial Franchise: nvest-
ment req’d. Coverail of Wash-

McMurry & Swift tnc

Business Brokers - Since 1978

www.mcmurryswitt.com
206-285-6161

Printing/Gruphic Fronchise:
Owner Retiring!! A Full Ser-
vice Center w/accounts, Ng Exp
Nec., Company Troining, Sup-
port, Low invest. 800-645-3006

Restouran}, Bar- Planned mini-
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{-5, 5.W. Wash. 360-736-3033
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$3000 invest. 206-387-0444
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enrrepreneurs 1o purchose
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Australia and South America.
Get started for os little as
$10,000. For detailed info
pieose coll foll free 877-620-
B135 or 904-448-5727. Visit
our  we site at  www,

heolithclubconsultant.cam

307 Franchises

CLEANING - QpenWorks for
you. Commercial cleaning at
its Best! 425 827-0550 Ext 303

y )
300 Finance/Business

§ | INVESTOR WANTED to ex-

310 Partnerships
& Investments

pand Award Winning non-pro-
fit progrom. 206-250-2454
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352 Financial Services
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Annvities, efc. Liberty Note
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SALES/Tefephone - See
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ing in Seattle for warehouse,
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SURVEYING Party Chiefs/ Tedh
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255 Sales Careers

draft MTW Annual Plan for FY

MTW Annual Plan ovtlines and
identifies those policies that the
housing authority plans to
change during the coming
fiscal year. KCHA will hoid o
public hearing to review ifs

2007, on August 11, 2006, ot 7:00
af the Kent Family Center
tocated at, 13111 274th
Street, Kent, Washington. The
draft Plan will be available for
review beginning June 27, 2005,
during normal business hours

at K s Administrative
Offices (600 Andaver Park
West, Tukwilo, Woshington),

The drafi plan con be e-muoiled
to interested members of the
public upon request by colling
Judi Jones, Housing Manage-
ment Analyst af (206) 574- 1100
{n addition, written commeants
regarding the MTW plan can be
submitted prior to August 10,
2006 by mail to the fallowing
oddress: KCHA MTW Plan,
Attn: Judi Jones, 600 Andover
Park West, Tukwilo, Woshing-
ton 98188,

382 Bid Requests

Cily of SenTac
SeaTac City Hall
4800 South 186th Street
SeoToc, WA 98188
206.973.4800

Legal Notic:
June 28, 2006,

NOTICE OF
ORDINANCE ADOPTED
BY THE SEATAC CiTY COUNCIL

Following is o summary_of
QOrdinances adopted by the City
of SeoTac City Council on the
27th day of June, 2004:

ORDINANCE NO. 06-1016

AN ORDINANCE amending
the 2006 Annual City Budget for
miscelloneous  items  and
authorizing the poyment of o
Totol Excess Compensation
Benefit invoice from the State
of Washington Department of
Retirement Systems. Effective
five {5) days affer passage and
publication.

ORDINANCE NO. 06-1017

AN GORDINANCE declaring
public use and necessity for
lond and property to be con-
demned os required for the con-
struction of o new Fire Station
46, ond outhorizing payment
therefore from the City’s 306-
Municipal Facilities CiP Fund.
Effective five (5) dovs offer
possage and publicotion.
ORDINANCE NO. 06-101

AN ORDINANCE quthorizing
the King _County Divisian of
Records, Elections, and Licens-
ig Services to produce, publish
ond distribute o {ocal Voters”
Pomphlet for the September 19,

Agents, Distributors 302 2006 Electian, and agreeing to
Bid Requests i 382 358 Money to Lend pay the City’s share of the costs
Business Opportunifies 304 of such Local Voters’ Pamph-
Business Opportunity iet, Eftective five (5) doys after
FSemlrE:rs(Guntcjonce 305 7 acauisition & Commercial )| 22 5%¢ and publication.

orm Equipm i

& Services azplf Goans on R.E. $4DK fo S50 1 K1 L et o1 e ity Clerkce
Financial Services 352, I} WF ost funding & closinasll li 5,0 "Seorac City Hall, 4600
Franchises 307||l | Chesrertiela Mortoage \I{ oo Tgith  Street, SeaTac,
Hearing Nafices 386 |\ J06-464-8770 or 877352788 )| S0 o 08186, 206,975 4805,
Investments B4 N’ |A copy will be mailed upan
Juvenile Hearings 388| CASH in 48 Hours 12% Any Busi | request.
;\-lfugghil#ecgs"cﬁotors 380 ness/Investment Loan secured

oo 324 by Real Estate. 206-522-9105. | 77y0miih L. Cary, Cify Clerk Cary, Ciiy Clerk

Materials Handling & Published in the Seatile Times:
Construction Equipment 326 WE MOVED 1T!1 o sﬁggggx{jgfy_g_mém s
"Suppites o Il M REAL ESTATE LOANS.

uppiies o - H
Mlsce)laneous Business/ Are now under REAL ESTATE 386 Heanng Notices
%ﬂamme‘i"cial %quipment ggg (Classes 588 & 589) soemtc———

oney to Len
Now Progig NOTICE OF PUBLIC

Development 308 6 ING ON THE BUDGET
Office Furnifure & 366 Wanted to Borrow | notice is hereby siven that the

Equipment 332 Board of Directors at Highline
Paortnerships & - School District No. 401, King

Investments 3i0{Lean Needed 30 - 38% return In) county, Woshingtan, will meet
Printing Machinery & 18 months, 20 - 25% return Per {in"the Board Room of the Edu-

Equipment 3341 vear. Secured by real estate. | cational Resources ond Admin-
Public Notices 81 206-257-8282. istrative Center, 15675 Ambaum
Request for Proposal 384, Boulevard Southwest, Seattie .
Rectnurnnt Eavioment 33

Wushmgton. on Monday, July
400~ o far the our

SUMMONS BY PUBLICATION
NG. 06211844 SEA

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT
OR THE STATE OF

WASHINGTON IN AND FOR

THE COUNTY OF KING
IRENE NEWTON, Plaintiff, v

B K.
B ESTATE SALE COMING! B
Al Details Sec 415 July 7 onll

BAILEY 4-6 DAY BB

417 Jewelry

DOE* RAMOS, husbopd ond
wife, individually and the mar-
ital  community composed
thereot, Detendants,
The State of Washington fo
RAMOS, ond
"JANE DOE" RAMOS, hus-
band ond wife, individually and
the marital community com-
posed thereof:
You ore hereby summoned to
oppear Wwithin 60 days aoffer the
date of the first publication of th«s
summons to wif within 60
after the 9th doy of June, 2006, un
defend the above entitied action in
the above entitled nome of court,
ond to answer the Complaint of
the Plaintiff, IRENE NEWTON,
and serve a copy of your Answer
undersigned _attorney for
Dlmnhﬂ. lRENE NEWTON, at his
affice below stated; ond in case of
your failure to do so, judament
will be rendered aguinst you ac-
cording fo the demand of the com
plaint, which has been filed with
the clerk of said court. This law-
suit related fo the motor vehicle
collision of Apri} 24, 2003, at which
time SERGIO RAMOS caused g
moftor vehicie collision with a vehi-
cle operaied by IRENE NEW-
TON. As a proximate result of the
negligence of SERGIO RAMOS,
IRENE NEWTON hos sustained
personal iniuries. as weli as other
domages that are set forth more
ﬂ lly in the Complaint.

C

tnnitt Inc. P.S.

Sinnf t
3641 N. Peari Street
Tacomo, WA 98407

Phone: 253-75%-7755

SUPERIOR COURT
OF WASHINGTON
FOR KING COUNTY

NO. 06-2-036B1-6SEA
SUMMONS
JOHN GUARINO, an individual;
ond RYAN SMITH, an individual,
Plointitfs,
vs.

BRENT J. NELSON g
KATHERINE A, NELSON, etal,

Defendonts

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON TO:
Brent J. Nelson ond
Kotherine A. Nelson

You are hereby summoned to
appear within sixty days affer
the date of the first publication
of this summons, to wit, within
sixty days after the 5th day aof
June, 2006, and defend the
above entitied aciion in the
above entitied court, and
answer the comploint of fhe
plaintitts John Guarino and
Ryon Smith, and serve o copy
of yaur answer upan the under-
signed attorneys for plaintiffs
John Guarina and Ryan Smith,
at their attorneys office below
stated; and in case of your foil-
ure 50 to do, judgment will be
rendered ogainst you according
to the demond af the complaint,
which has been filed with the
clerk of said caurt. The com-
plaint alleges, amony other
things, thot you made transfers
of interests in property, inctud-
ing but not limited o, two deeds
of trust encumbering your resi-
dence, which ore voidabie as
fraudulent transfers, and thot
you are lioble to the plointiffs
for the value af olf property so
transferred.
BUCKNELL STEHLIK SATD
& STUBNER, LLP

2003 Western Avenue, Suite 400
Seottle, King County,
Washington 98121

Diamond-1.1ct Canary (untrea-

ted) VST $5000 206-355-9332

Digmond Ring - T Kt, Valued at

$2800 MUST SELL $1800
(206) 280-46642

Diamonds Bil? Bling! Soli-
taire 5,05 CT ring, (1, |2),bezelset
in platinum. asersd s $25K

oba, Beauﬂful Tennis Brucelet 3

50ct, 7" opprsd $8.5K,
Pt O |

418 Stamps & Coins

BUYING ALL U.S, COINS
PAYING HIGHEST CASH
DON'T SELL FOR LESSI!
Collector 206-852-2026

US STAMPS - Singles, plate
blocks, envelopes & post-
cards Over 95% uncancelled.
Over $70,000 catalogue pnce
Willsell for $15,000 firm, (360
415-0193, Bremerion.

CAMERAS AND
OPTICAL GOODS

421 Camera
Equipment & Repair

Comcorder digitol 8, Sony, al-
most new. $175/obo;
scott 206-232-5652, 6-10p

CLOTHING

426 Bahy/
Children’s Rems

Childs Playscape 4-5 y/o, poid
$900 sel! $450 206-354-8035
UNDERMILL BED -Dailthouse
loft style, 7'x 7Ve’ x 4V2’, $400.
(425) 30]-9858

427 Clothing, Women's
O]

Designer Wedding Drass
and Veil, Size 12. $700.
{425) 641-1548

ELECTRONICS

431 Compister/
Software/Accessories

*kdk LAPTOPS dkdok
Buy - Sell - Repair
Seattle Laptop Inc 206 784-42)5
Chedp Laptop $200. 206-200-3160

Comuputer $500 (206) 246-2878
Computer/Manlitor/Printer -
2 yedars old, $450. (425) 741-9425
WANTED-Compufer Software
Microsoft/Adobe/Macromedia
» gftw re,t'ifo% ignces
ayment in
W 425-890-4729 I.é;
Wanted Software - CASH!! MS
& Adobe software 206-818-6148

Wanted Seftware - Tap $$§$ for
Microsoft Software 206-399-7495

433 Compurter

400 Merchandise

Antiques
Appliances, Household

440
471

Auctions

AL

o thaean

Services/Repair

Refurbished Loptops & Repair
services at Harddrives North-
west. 425-644~6474, hdnw.cam

437 TV, Radio,
Home Stereos

THEATER SEATS- 21 avoilo-
ble, $450 obo. 509-670-3954

HOUSEHOLD GOODS/
EQUIPMENT

440 Appliances,
Houcahald






ﬁ Northwest Asian Weekly/
Seattle Chinese Post, Inc.

Tel: (206) 223-0623 « Fax: (206) 223-0626 + Email: billing@nwasianweekly.com + Web Site: www.nwasianweekly.com
Check payable to

| - |
Accounts Payable D Seattle Chinese Post, Inc.
King County Housing Authority CE\VE‘ g CZ).MB%);”%‘TGQV& S.
600 Andover Park W 006 Seattle, WA 98114
Seattle WA 98188 WL el :

e ANoRITY
71312006  invoice number 9417793 poust Terms Net 10 days. A late charge of 5% per month will be made on past due accounts.

574-1200 574-1223 574-1101
Title: Public Notice

King County Housing Authonity
Position Number: 46746

Onginating Dept.:
PO number@
V/6th page a 71172006 pEL12 247.00

From: Chervl Southwick
A tearsheet 1s required with billing,

N—uote
Subtotal 247 .00
Sales Tax at 0 % 0.00
Total $247.00
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Appendix D

								Household Type						Race / Ethnicity												Number of Bedrooms

		Wait List Type		Households		Avg Annual Income		Disabled		Elderly		Family		White		Black		Native American		Asian		Hispanic		Other		1		2		3		4		5

		Regional		1190		$8,456		290		90		810		545		393		27		155		62		8		523		438		177		40		12

		Site-based		1822		$9,047		362		343		1117		834		435		33		407		103		10		854		613		284		64		7

		Sound Families		39		$8,559		1				38		26		11		1		0		1				2		28		7		2

		Grand Total		3051		$8,810		653		433		1965		1405		839		61		562		166		18		1379		1079		468		106		19

								Household Type						Race / Ethnicity												Number of Bedrooms

		Wait List Type		Households		Avg Annual Income		Disabled		Elderly		Family		White		Black		Native American		Asian		Hispanic		Other		1		2		3		4		5

		Regional		39%		$8,456		24%		8%		68%		46%		33%		2%		13%		5%		1%		44%		37%		15%		3%		1%

		Site-based		60%		$9,047		20%		19%		61%		46%		24%		2%		22%		6%		1%		47%		34%		16%		4%		0%

		Sound Families		1%		$8,559		3%		0%		97%		67%		28%		3%		0%		3%		0%		5%		72%		18%		5%		0%

		Grand Total		3051		$8,810		21%		14%		64%		46%		27%		2%		18%		5%		1%		45%		35%		15%		3%		1%

		Note:  To accurately project  applicant characteristics during FY 2007, data shown reflects the status of the waiting list as of June 30, 2006, following implementation of substantial revisions to KCHA's Waiting List and Tenant Selections systems designed to allow greater housing choice, including revisions to Local Preferences and implementation of  Site-based and Regional Waiting List systems.
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Public Housing Waiting List Demographics
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Appendix A 

																Income Group (As % of Area Median Income)								Primary Income Source				Household Type						Race / Ethnic Group										Unit Size (# of Bedrooms)

		Area		Development Name						Households		Avg Years in PH		Avg Annual Income		30%		50%		80%		>80%		Employment		TANF		Disabled		Elderly		Family		White		Black		Native American		Asian		Hispanic		1		2		3		4		5

		Count of UNIT				Count of UNIT

		Area		Development Name		Area		PNAME		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		White		Black		American Indian		Asian		Hispanic		1		2		3		4		5

		North		BALLINGER HOMES		1		BALLINGER HOMES		110		6.5		$16,915		89		14		6		1		61		17		11		20		79		54		18		1		35		2		10		40		40		14		6

				GREEN LEAF				GREEN LEAF		27		8.9		$17,888		18		7		1		1		15		2		7		4		16		16		7				4						22		5

				Subtotal		1 Total				137		7.0		$17,107		107		21		7		2		76		19		18		24		95		70		25		1		39		2		10		62		45		14		6

		East		AVONDALE MANOR		2		AVONDALE MANOR		20		6.1		$20,679		14		4		1		1		12		3		3		0		17		13		2				2		3				4		10		6

				BELLEVUE 8				BELLEVUE 8		8		4.1		$18,307		5		2		1				3		0		0		0		8		5		2				1								8

				CEDARWOOD				CEDARWOOD		25		6.7		$10,343		21		4						10		1		5		5		15		17		2				5		1				22		3

				COLLEGE PLACE				COLLEGE PLACE		51		6.4		$13,332		42		8		1				21		6		11		9		31		29		6				16						37		14

				EASTSIDE TERRACE				EASTSIDE TERRACE		50		8.1		$14,983		39		3		7		1		22		8		7		11		32		27		10				11		2		8		32		10

				FOREST GROVE				FOREST GROVE		25		5.1		$15,160		21		1		1		2		12		4		2		4		19		15		1				6		3				18		7

				JUANITA COURT				JUANITA COURT		30		4.3		$17,357		24		3		2		1		15		8		5		3		22		18		2				9		1				25		5

				JUANITA TRACE				JUANITA TRACE		30		8.2		$17,952		21		5		3		1		14		4		8		4		18		17		3		1		8		1				25		5

				JUANITA TRACE II				JUANITA TRACE II		9		4.3		$9,267		9								3		0		2		0		7		4		2				2		1				4		5

				KIRKWOOD TERRACE				KIRKWOOD TERRACE		28		5.8		$12,207		25		2				1		14		3		5		4		19		15		5				5		3				22		6

				WELLSWOOD				WELLSWOOD		30		6.2		$11,673		24		5		1				7		8		13		4		13		25		1		1		1		2				25		5

				Subtotal		2 Total				306		6.4		$14,580		245		37		17		7		133		45		61		44		201		185		36		2		66		17		8		214		78		6

		Southwest		CAMPUS COURT		3		CAMPUS COURT		13		7.9		$15,501		12		1						6		0		3		4		6		2		7				4								13

				PARK LAKE HOME SITE I				PARK LAKE HOME SITE I		99		9.3		$14,305		78		15		6				43		8		18		30		51		34		15		1		48		2		7		72		20

				PARK LAKE HOMES SITE II				PARK LAKE HOMES SITE II		161		8.3		$14,422		136		22		3				59		13		39		44		78		37		43		2		78		1		43		36		67		15

				SHOREHAM APTS				SHOREHAM APTS		18		7.8		$12,259		17		1						11		2		2		0		16		4		7				7								18

				VICTORIAN WOODS				VICTORIAN WOODS		18		6.6		$17,864		14		2		2				11		6		1		2		15		5		8				5								18

				RIVERTON TERRACE (Fam)				RIVERTON TERRACE (Fam)		28		5.4		$19,318		22		3		3				15		1		8		6		14		4		14				10						16		5		5		2

				Subtotal		3 Total				337		8.2		$14,905		279		44		14				145		30		71		86		180		86		94		3		152		3		50		124		141		20		2

		Southeast		CASCADE APTS		4		CASCADE APTS		106		3.7		$13,273		92		12		2				47		20		16		20		70		67		21				13		5		8		52		46

				GLENVIEW HEIGHTS				GLENVIEW HEIGHTS		10		6.4		$15,170		9		1						6		1		3		1		6		5		3				2						6		4

				SPRINGWOOD				SPRINGWOOD		317		3.3		$12,288		289		25		3				138		98		19		33		265		158		115		4		29		10				118		154		45

				VALLI KEE				VALLI KEE		114		5.3		$15,323		96		15		3				44		17		30		19		65		62		38		4		8		2		18		26		50		20

				VISTA HEIGHTS				VISTA HEIGHTS		30		5.0		$20,725		19		9		2				25		2		3		4		23		18		11		1										30

				YOUNG'S LAKE				YOUNG'S LAKE		27		4.3		$23,088		17		9		1				25		1		0		2		25		23		3				1						4		23

				Subtotal		4 Total				604		3.9		$13,983		522		71		11				285		139		71		79		454		333		191		9		53		17		26		206		307		65

		South		BURNDALE HOMES		5		BURNDALE HOMES		49		5.6		$16,426		39		8		2				25		7		6		8		35		41		1				6		1		3		16		21		6		3

				EVERGREEN COURT				EVERGREEN COURT		30		5.0		$15,782		24		3		3				11		6		9		5		16		17		7				4		2				22		8

				FIRWOOD CIRCLE				FIRWOOD CIRCLE		50		4.8		$15,602		42		7		1				24		6		7		7		36		35		10				4		1		4		16		20		8		2

				GREEN RIVER HOMES				GREEN RIVER HOMES		58		6.7		$15,216		46		10		1		1		18		10		17		13		28		39		9				8		2		8		30		16		4

				KING'S COURT				KING'S COURT		30		7.0		$17,634		23		4		3				17		3		3		8		19		20		2				7		1				21		9

				PICKERING COURT				PICKERING COURT		29		5.5		$14,340		21		6		2				14		6		4		5		20		21		1		1		2		4		4		16		9

				Subtotal		5 Total				246		5.8		$15,796		195		38		12		1		109		38		46		46		154		173		30		1		31		11		19		121		83		18		5

		All FAMILY Developments				Grand Total				1630		5.8		$14,822		1348		211		61		10		748		271		267		279		1084		847		376		16		341		50		113		727		654		123		13

																Income Group (As % of Area Median Income)								Primary Income Source				Household Type						Race / Ethnic Group										Unit Size (# of Bedrooms)

		Area		Development Name						Households		Avg Years in PH		Avg Annual Income		30%		50%		80%		>80%		Employment		TANF		Disabled		Elderly		Family		White		Black		Native American		Asian		Hispanic		1		2		3		4		5

		Count of UNIT				Count of UNIT

		Area		Development Name		Area		PNAME		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		White		Black		American Indian		Asian		Hispanic		1		2		3		4		5

		North		BALLINGER HOMES		1		BALLINGER HOMES		110		6.5		$16,915		81%		13%		5%		1%		55%		15%		10%		18%		72%		49%		16%		1%		32%		2%		9%		36%		36%		13%		5%

				GREEN LEAF				GREEN LEAF		27		8.9		$17,888		67%		26%		4%		4%		56%		7%		26%		15%		59%		59%		26%		0%		15%		0%		0%		81%		19%		0%		0%

				Subtotal		1 Total				137		7.0		$17,107		78%		15%		5%		1%		55%		14%		13%		18%		69%		51%		18%		1%		28%		1%		7%		45%		33%		10%		4%

		East		AVONDALE MANOR		2		AVONDALE MANOR		20		6.1		$20,679		70%		20%		5%		5%		60%		15%		15%		0%		85%		65%		10%		0%		10%		15%		0%		20%		50%		30%		0%

				BELLEVUE 8				BELLEVUE 8		8		4.1		$18,307		63%		25%		13%		0%		38%		0%		0%		0%		100%		63%		25%		0%		13%		0%		0%		0%		100%		0%		0%

				CEDARWOOD				CEDARWOOD		25		6.7		$10,343		84%		16%		0%		0%		40%		4%		20%		20%		60%		68%		8%		0%		20%		4%		0%		88%		12%		0%		0%

				COLLEGE PLACE				COLLEGE PLACE		51		6.4		$13,332		82%		16%		2%		0%		41%		12%		22%		18%		61%		57%		12%		0%		31%		0%		0%		73%		27%		0%		0%

				EASTSIDE TERRACE				EASTSIDE TERRACE		50		8.1		$14,983		78%		6%		14%		2%		44%		16%		14%		22%		64%		54%		20%		0%		22%		4%		16%		64%		20%		0%		0%

				FOREST GROVE				FOREST GROVE		25		5.1		$15,160		84%		4%		4%		8%		48%		16%		8%		16%		76%		60%		4%		0%		24%		12%		0%		72%		28%		0%		0%

				JUANITA COURT				JUANITA COURT		30		4.3		$17,357		80%		10%		7%		3%		50%		27%		17%		10%		73%		60%		7%		0%		30%		3%		0%		83%		17%		0%		0%

				JUANITA TRACE				JUANITA TRACE		30		8.2		$17,952		70%		17%		10%		3%		47%		13%		27%		13%		60%		57%		10%		3%		27%		3%		0%		83%		17%		0%		0%

				JUANITA TRACE II				JUANITA TRACE II		9		4.3		$9,267		100%		0%		0%		0%		33%		0%		22%		0%		78%		44%		22%		0%		22%		11%		0%		44%		56%		0%		0%

				KIRKWOOD TERRACE				KIRKWOOD TERRACE		28		5.8		$12,207		89%		7%		0%		4%		50%		11%		18%		14%		68%		54%		18%		0%		18%		11%		0%		79%		21%		0%		0%

				WELLSWOOD				WELLSWOOD		30		6.2		$11,673		80%		17%		3%		0%		23%		27%		43%		13%		43%		83%		3%		3%		3%		7%		0%		83%		17%		0%		0%

				Subtotal		2 Total				306		6.4		$14,580		80%		12%		6%		2%		43%		15%		20%		14%		66%		60%		12%		1%		22%		6%		3%		70%		25%		2%		0%

		Southwest		CAMPUS COURT		3		CAMPUS COURT		13		7.9		$15,501		92%		8%		0%		0%		46%		0%		23%		31%		46%		15%		54%		0%		31%		0%		0%		0%		100%		0%		0%

				PARK LAKE HOME SITE I				PARK LAKE HOME SITE I		99		9.3		$14,305		79%		15%		6%		0%		43%		8%		18%		30%		52%		34%		15%		1%		48%		2%		7%		73%		20%		0%		0%

				PARK LAKE HOMES SITE II				PARK LAKE HOMES SITE II		161		8.3		$14,422		84%		14%		2%		0%		37%		8%		24%		27%		48%		23%		27%		1%		48%		1%		27%		22%		42%		9%		0%

				SHOREHAM APTS				SHOREHAM APTS		18		7.8		$12,259		94%		6%		0%		0%		61%		11%		11%		0%		89%		22%		39%		0%		39%		0%		0%		0%		100%		0%		0%

				VICTORIAN WOODS				VICTORIAN WOODS		18		6.6		$17,864		78%		11%		11%		0%		61%		33%		6%		11%		83%		28%		44%		0%		28%		0%		0%		0%		100%		0%		0%

				RIVERTON TERRACE (Fam)				RIVERTON TERRACE (Fam)		28		5.4		$19,318		79%		11%		11%		0%		54%		4%		29%		21%		50%		14%		50%		0%		36%		0%		0%		57%		18%		18%		7%

				Subtotal		3 Total				337		8.2		$14,905		83%		13%		4%		0%		43%		9%		21%		26%		53%		26%		28%		1%		45%		1%		15%		37%		42%		6%		1%

		Southeast		CASCADE APTS		4		CASCADE APTS		106		3.7		$13,273		87%		11%		2%		0%		44%		19%		15%		19%		66%		63%		20%		0%		12%		5%		8%		49%		43%		0%		0%

				GLENVIEW HEIGHTS				GLENVIEW HEIGHTS		10		6.4		$15,170		90%		10%		0%		0%		60%		10%		30%		10%		60%		50%		30%		0%		20%		0%		0%		60%		40%		0%		0%

				SPRINGWOOD				SPRINGWOOD		317		3.3		$12,288		91%		8%		1%		0%		44%		31%		6%		10%		84%		50%		36%		1%		9%		3%		0%		37%		49%		14%		0%

				VALLI KEE				VALLI KEE		114		5.3		$15,323		84%		13%		3%		0%		39%		15%		26%		17%		57%		54%		33%		4%		7%		2%		16%		23%		44%		18%		0%

				VISTA HEIGHTS				VISTA HEIGHTS		30		5.0		$20,725		63%		30%		7%		0%		83%		7%		10%		13%		77%		60%		37%		3%		0%		0%		0%		0%		100%		0%		0%

				YOUNG'S LAKE				YOUNG'S LAKE		27		4.3		$23,088		63%		33%		4%		0%		93%		4%		0%		7%		93%		85%		11%		0%		4%		0%		0%		15%		85%		0%		0%

				Subtotal		4 Total				604		3.9		$13,983		86%		12%		2%		0%		47%		23%		12%		13%		75%		55%		32%		1%		9%		3%		4%		34%		51%		11%		0%

		South		BURNDALE HOMES		5		BURNDALE HOMES		49		5.6		$16,426		80%		16%		4%		0%		51%		14%		12%		16%		71%		84%		2%		0%		12%		2%		6%		33%		43%		12%		6%

				EVERGREEN COURT				EVERGREEN COURT		30		5.0		$15,782		80%		10%		10%		0%		37%		20%		30%		17%		53%		57%		23%		0%		13%		7%		0%		73%		27%		0%		0%

				FIRWOOD CIRCLE				FIRWOOD CIRCLE		50		4.8		$15,602		84%		14%		2%		0%		48%		12%		14%		14%		72%		70%		20%		0%		8%		2%		8%		32%		40%		16%		4%

				GREEN RIVER HOMES				GREEN RIVER HOMES		58		6.7		$15,216		79%		17%		2%		2%		31%		17%		29%		22%		48%		67%		16%		0%		14%		3%		14%		52%		28%		7%		0%

				KING'S COURT				KING'S COURT		30		7.0		$17,634		77%		13%		10%		0%		57%		10%		10%		27%		63%		67%		7%		0%		23%		3%		0%		70%		30%		0%		0%

				PICKERING COURT				PICKERING COURT		29		5.5		$14,340		72%		21%		7%		0%		48%		21%		14%		17%		69%		72%		3%		3%		7%		14%		14%		55%		31%		0%		0%

				Subtotal		5 Total				246		5.8		$15,796		79%		15%		5%		0%		44%		15%		19%		19%		63%		70%		12%		0%		13%		4%		8%		49%		34%		7%		2%

		All FAMILY Developments				Grand Total				1630		5.8		$14,822		83%		13%		4%		1%		46%		17%		16%		17%		67%		52%		23%		1%		21%		3%		7%		45%		40%		8%		1%
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																Income Group (As % of Area Median Income								Primary Income Source				Household Type						Race / Ethnic Group										Unit Size (# of Bedrooms)

		Area		Development Name		Area		Development Name		Households		Avg Years in PH		Avg Annual Income		30%		50%		80%		>80%		Employment		TANF		Disabled		Elderly		Family		White		Black		Native American		Asian		Hispanic		Studio		1		2

										Households		Avg Years in PH		Avg Annual Income		Income Group (As % of Area Median Income								Primary Income Source				Household Type						Race / Ethnic Group										Unit Size (# of Bedrooms)

		Count of UNIT				Count of UNIT

		Area		PNAME		Area		PNAME		Total		Total		Total		30%		50%		80%		>80%		Employment		TANF		Disabled		Elderly		Family		White		Black		Native American		Asian		Hispanic		0		1		2

		North		BRIARWOOD		1		BRIARWOOD		69		8.3		$8,740		69								1		0		23		45		1		48		5				12		4				69

				NORTHRIDGE I				NORTHRIDGE I		70		7.9		$9,215		68		1		1				3		0		32		38				47		4				18		1		42		27		1

				NORTHRIDGE II				NORTHRIDGE II		70		8.3		$10,111		63		7						2		0		21		49				49		3		2		16						69		1

				PARAMOUNT HOUSE				PARAMOUNT HOUSE		69		6.7		$9,370		65		3		1				2		1		30		38		1		49		2				16		2		36		32		1

				THE LAKE HOUSE				THE LAKE HOUSE		70		7.7		$9,323		68		2						2		0		21		48		1		50		4				15		1				70

				Subtotal		1 Total				348		7.8		$9,354		333		13		2				10		1		127		218		3		243		18		2		77		8		78		267		3

		East		CASA JUANITA		2		CASA JUANITA		78		7.9		$8,502		77				1				3		3		22		56				57		4				14		3				78

				EASTRIDGE HOUSE				EASTRIDGE HOUSE		40		7.2		$9,009		40								1		0		14		26				34		1				5						39		1

				FOREST GLEN				FOREST GLEN		40		7.3		$8,552		39		1						5		1		16		23		1		29		3				7		1				40

				Subtotal		2 Total				158		7.6		$8,643		156		1		1				9		4		52		105		1		120		8				26		4				157		1

		Southwest		BOULEVARD MANOR		3		BOULEVARD MANOR		69		5.3		$8,933		66		1		2				2		0		34		33		2		32		25				10		2				69

				BRITTANY PARK				BRITTANY PARK		43		4.9		$8,653		40		3						3		0		21		18		4		29		8				5		1				43

				MUNRO MANOR				MUNRO MANOR		58		6.9		$8,822		55		3						2		1		31		27				39		8				4		7				58

				YARDLEY ARMS				YARDLEY ARMS		67		6.4		$8,411		64		3						1		1		28		38		1		39		6				20		2				67

				RIVERTON TERRACE (Mixed)				RIVERTON TERRACE (Mixed)		30		7.7		$8,351		29		1						3		1		9		18		3		11		11				8						30

				Subtotal		3 Total				267		6.2		$8,667		254		11		2				11		3		123		134		10		150		58				47		12				267

		Southeast		MARDI GRAS		4		MARDI GRAS		61		8.9		$9,063		59		2						0		1		2		58		1		56		1				4						61

				Subtotal		4 Total				61		8.9		$9,063		59		2						0		1		2		58		1		56		1				4						61

		South		CASA MADRONA		5		CASA MADRONA		69		4.9		$10,910		61		8						4		1		24		44		1		60		2		2		5						69

				GUSTAVES MANOR				GUSTAVES MANOR		35		7.2		$9,015		35								1		1		4		31				29						5		1		4		31

				PLAZA SEVENTEEN				PLAZA SEVENTEEN		70		7.0		$9,337		70								0		0		8		62				65						5						70

				SOUTHRIDGE HOUSE				SOUTHRIDGE HOUSE		80		7.9		$8,608		80								0		1		10		70				31		1		1		46		1				80

				WAYLAND ARMS				WAYLAND ARMS		67		5.7		$8,889		66		1						0		1		17		50				62		2				2		1		36		30		1

				Subtotal		5 Total				321		6.5		$9,365		312		9						5		4		63		257		1		247		5		3		63		3		40		280		1

		All Mixed Population Developments				Grand Total				1155		7.1		$9,086		1114		36		5				35		13		367		772		16		816		90		5		217		27		118		1032		5

																Income Group (As % of Area Median Income								Primary Income Source				Household Type						Race / Ethnic Group										Unit Size (# of Bedrooms)

		Area		Development Name		Area		Development Name		Households		Avg Years in PH		Avg Annual Income		30%		50%		80%		>80%		Employment		TANF		Disabled		Elderly		Family		White		Black		Native American		Asian		Hispanic		Studio		1		2

										Households		Avg Years in PH		Avg Annual Income		Income Group (As % of Area Median Income								Primary Income Source				Household Type						Race / Ethnic Group										Unit Size (# of Bedrooms)

		Count of UNIT				Count of UNIT

		Area		PNAME		Area		PNAME		Total		Total		Total		30%		50%		80%		>80%		Employment		TANF		Disabled		Elderly		Family		White		Black		Native American		Asian		Hispanic		0		1		2

		North		BRIARWOOD		1		BRIARWOOD		69		8.3		$8,740		100%		0%		0%		0%		1%		0%		33%		65%		1%		70%		7%		0%		17%		6%		0%		100%		0%

				NORTHRIDGE I				NORTHRIDGE I		70		7.9		$9,215		97%		1%		1%		0%		4%		0%		46%		54%		0%		67%		6%		0%		26%		1%		60%		39%		1%

				NORTHRIDGE II				NORTHRIDGE II		70		8.3		$10,111		90%		10%		0%		0%		3%		0%		30%		70%		0%		70%		4%		3%		23%		0%		0%		99%		1%

				PARAMOUNT HOUSE				PARAMOUNT HOUSE		69		6.7		$9,370		94%		4%		1%		0%		3%		1%		43%		55%		1%		71%		3%		0%		23%		3%		52%		46%		1%

				THE LAKE HOUSE				THE LAKE HOUSE		70		7.7		$9,323		97%		3%		0%		0%		3%		0%		30%		69%		1%		71%		6%		0%		21%		1%		0%		100%		0%

				Subtotal		1 Total				348		7.8		$9,354		96%		4%		1%		0%		3%		0%		36%		63%		1%		70%		5%		1%		22%		2%		22%		77%		1%

		East		CASA JUANITA		2		CASA JUANITA		78		7.9		$8,502		99%		0%		1%		0%		4%		4%		28%		72%		0%		73%		5%		0%		18%		4%		0%		100%		0%

				EASTRIDGE HOUSE				EASTRIDGE HOUSE		40		7.2		$9,009		100%		0%		0%		0%		3%		0%		35%		65%		0%		85%		3%		0%		13%		0%		0%		98%		3%

				FOREST GLEN				FOREST GLEN		40		7.3		$8,552		98%		3%		0%		0%		13%		3%		40%		58%		3%		73%		8%		0%		18%		3%		0%		100%		0%

				Subtotal		2 Total				158		7.6		$8,643		99%		1%		1%		0%		6%		3%		33%		66%		1%		76%		5%		0%		16%		3%		0%		99%		1%

		Southwest		BOULEVARD MANOR		3		BOULEVARD MANOR		69		5.3		$8,933		96%		1%		3%		0%		3%		0%		49%		48%		3%		46%		36%		0%		14%		3%		0%		100%		0%

				BRITTANY PARK				BRITTANY PARK		43		4.9		$8,653		93%		7%		0%		0%		7%		0%		49%		42%		9%		67%		19%		0%		12%		2%		0%		100%		0%

				MUNRO MANOR				MUNRO MANOR		58		6.9		$8,822		95%		5%		0%		0%		3%		2%		53%		47%		0%		67%		14%		0%		7%		12%		0%		100%		0%

				YARDLEY ARMS				YARDLEY ARMS		67		6.4		$8,411		96%		4%		0%		0%		1%		1%		42%		57%		1%		58%		9%		0%		30%		3%		0%		100%		0%

				RIVERTON TERRACE (Mixed)				RIVERTON TERRACE (Mixed)		30		7.7		$8,351		97%		3%		0%		0%		10%		3%		30%		60%		10%		37%		37%		0%		27%		0%		0%		100%		0%

				Subtotal		3 Total				267		6.2		$8,667		95%		4%		1%		0%		4%		1%		46%		50%		4%		56%		22%		0%		18%		4%		0%		100%		0%

		Southeast		MARDI GRAS		4		MARDI GRAS		61		8.9		$9,063		97%		3%		0%		0%		0%		2%		3%		95%		2%		92%		2%		0%		7%		0%		0%		100%		0%

				Subtotal		4 Total				61		8.9		$9,063		97%		3%		0%		0%		0%		2%		3%		95%		2%		92%		2%		0%		7%		0%		0%		100%		0%

		South		CASA MADRONA		5		CASA MADRONA		69		4.9		$10,910		88%		12%		0%		0%		6%		1%		35%		64%		1%		87%		3%		3%		7%		0%		0%		100%		0%

				GUSTAVES MANOR				GUSTAVES MANOR		35		7.2		$9,015		100%		0%		0%		0%		3%		3%		11%		89%		0%		83%		0%		0%		14%		3%		11%		89%		0%

				PLAZA SEVENTEEN				PLAZA SEVENTEEN		70		7.0		$9,337		100%		0%		0%		0%		0%		0%		11%		89%		0%		93%		0%		0%		7%		0%		0%		100%		0%

				SOUTHRIDGE HOUSE				SOUTHRIDGE HOUSE		80		7.9		$8,608		100%		0%		0%		0%		0%		1%		13%		88%		0%		39%		1%		1%		58%		1%		0%		100%		0%

				WAYLAND ARMS				WAYLAND ARMS		67		5.7		$8,889		99%		1%		0%		0%		0%		1%		25%		75%		0%		93%		3%		0%		3%		1%		54%		45%		1%

				Subtotal		5 Total				321		6.5		$9,365		97%		3%		0%		0%		2%		1%		20%		80%		0%		77%		2%		1%		20%		1%		12%		87%		0%

		All Mixed Population Developments				Grand Total				1155		7.1		$9,086		96%		3%		0%		0%		3%		1%		32%		67%		1%		71%		8%		0%		19%		2%		10%		89%		0%
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_1217401223/MTW FY 07 Funding Alloc Forms.pdf
Operating Fund
Calculation of Operating Subsidy
PHA-Owned Rental Housing

U.S. Department of Housing

and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB Approval No. 2577-0029(exp.10/31/2004)

Section 1
‘* /me and Address of Public Housing Agency/indian Housing Authority: (PHA/IHA) b) Budget Submission to HUD Required
Yes No
Housing Authority of the County of King c) Type of submission
600 Andover Park West Original
Seattle, Washington 98188 [0 revision
d) Number of HA Units Je) Unit Months Available (UMAs) f) Subject FYE g) ACC Number h) Operating Fund Project No. i) DUNS Number
2,876 34,512 06/30/06 ACC # SF-173 WAQ00200306D 02-024-4976
Section 2
Line Requested by PHA HUD Modifications
No. Description (PUM) (PUM)
Part A. Allowable Expenses and Additions
01 Previous allowable expense ievel (Part A line 08 of form HUD-52723 for previous fiscal year) 303.59
02 Part A, Line 01 multiplied by .005 1.50
03 Delta from form HUD-52720-B If applicable (see instructions)
04 "Requested” year units from latest form HUD-52720-A (see instructions) —
05 Add-ons to allowable expense level from previous fiscal year (see instructions)
06 Total of Part A, Lines 01, 02, 03, and 05 305.09
07 Inflation factor 1.030
08 Revised allowable expense level (AEL)(Part A, Line 06 times line 07) 314.24
09 Transition Funding
10 Increase to AEL
11 Allowable utilities expense level from form HUD-52722-A 91.40
12 Actual PUM cost of independent Audit (I1A) (through FYE 6/30/2005 ) 0.75
13 Costs attributable to deprogrammed units 0.97
Total Allowable Expenses and Additions (sum of Part A, lines 08 thru 13) 407.36

Dwelling Rental iIncome

~E

07/01/05 r

01 Total rent rofl as of $ 595,246
02 Number of occupied units as of rent roll date 2,813
Average monthly dwelling rental charge per unit for current budget year
03 (Part B, Line 01 + Line 02) 211.61
04 Average monthly dwelling rental charge per unit for prior budget year 207.05
05 Average monthly dwelling rental charge per unit for budget year 2 years ago 199.05
Three-year average monthly dwelling rental charge per unit
06 ([Part B, Line 03 + Line 04 + Line 05] + 3) 205.90
07 50/50 Income spilit ([Part B, Line 03 + Line 06] + 2) 208.75
08 Average monthly dwelling rental charge per unit (lesser of Part B, Line 03 or Line 07) 208.75
09 Rental income adjustment factor 1.030
10 Projected average monthly dwelling rental charge per unit (Part B, Line 08 times Line 09) 215.02
11 Projected occupancy percentage from HUD-52728 0.93
12 Projected average monthly dwelling rental income per unit (Part B, Line 10 times Line 11) 199.97
Part C. Non-dwelling income
01 Other income 0.59
02 Total operating receipts (Part B, Line 12 plus Part C, Line 01) 200.56
03 PUM deficit or (Income) (Part A, Line 14 minus Part C, Line 02 206.80
Requested by PHA HUD Modifications
{Whole dollars) {Whofe doliars)
Deficit or (income) before add-ons (Part C, Line 03 times Section 1, e) 7,137,082

LS

Previous edition is obsolete for PHA Fiscal Years beginning 1/1/2004 and thereafter

Page 1

form HUD-52723 (1/2001)





Project Number: WA00200306D
Line Requested by PHA HUD Modifications
No. Description {Whole Dollars) (Whole Dollars)
+t D._Add-ons for changes in Federal law or regulation and other eligibility
FICA contributions 391,575
02 Unemployment compensation 33,602
03 Family Self Sufficiency Program 302,701
04 Energy Add-On for loan amortization 135,195
05 Unit reconfiguration
06 Non-dwelling units approved for subsidy 64,106
07 Long-term vacant units
08 Phase Down for Demolitions
Units Elligible for Resident Participation:
09 Occupied Units (Part B, Line 02) 2,813
10 Employee Units
11 Police Units 3
Total Units Eligible for Resident Participation:
12 _{Sum of Part D, Lines 09 thru 11) 2,816
13 Funding for Resident Participation (Part D, Line 12 x $25) 70,400
14 Other approved funding, not listed (Specify in Section 3)
a5 | Total add-ons (sum of Part D, Lines 01, 02, 03, 04, 05, 086, 27, 08, 13 and 14) 997,578
Part E. Calculation of Operating Subsidy Eligibility Before Year-End Adjustments
01 Deficit or (income) before year-end adjustments (Total of Part C, Line 04 and Part D, Line 15) 8,134,660
02 Actual cost of Independent Audit (I1A) 25,736
03 Operating subsidy eligibility before year-end adjustments
(Greater of Part E, Line 01 or Line 02) {If less than zero, enter zero (0)) 8,134,660
3 t F._Calculation of Operating Subsidy Approvable for Subject Fiscal Year (Note: Do not revise after the end of the subject FY)
» Utility Adjustment for Prior years 26,241
02 Additional subject fiscal year operating subsidy eligibility (specify)
03 Unfunded eligibility in prior fiscal years to be obligated in subject fiscal year )
04 HUD discretionary adjustments
05 Other (specify) 0
06 Other (specify)
07 Unfunded portion due to proration (499
08 Net adjustments to operating subsidy (total of Part F, Lines 01 thru 07) 25,742
.& Op_tLraﬂng subsidy approvable for subject fiscal year (total of Part E, Line 03 and part F, Line 08) 8,160,402
HUD Use Only (Note: Do not revise after the end of the subject FY)
10 Amount of operating subsidy approvable for subject fiscal year not funded )
11 Amount of funds obligated in excess of operating subsidy approvable for subject fiscal year
12 Funds Obligated in subject fiscal year (sum of Part F, Lines 09 thru 11)
(Must be the same as line 690 of the Operating Budget, form HUD-52564, for the subject fiscal year}
Appropration symbol(s):
Part G. Memorandum of Amounts Due Huﬁncludiggﬂnounts myment Schedules
01 Total amount due in previous fiscal year (Part G, Line 04 of form HUD-52723 for previous fiscal year)
02 Total amount to be collected in subject fiscal year (identify individual amounts under Section 3) )
03 Total additional amount due HUD (include any amount entered on Part F, Line 11)
(identify individual amounts under Section 3)
" Total amount due HUD to be collected In future fiscal year(s) (Total of Part G, Lines 01 thru 03)
b (Identify individual amounts under Section 3) 0

Previous edition is obsolete for PHA Fiscal Years beginning 1/1/2004 and thereafter

Page 2

form HUD-52723 (1/2001)





Project Number:

WAQ0200306D

Line
No.

Description

Requested by PHA
{Whole Dollars)

HUD Modifications
{Whole Dollars)

-

tH. Calculation of Year-end Adjustment for Subject Fiscal Year
This part is to be completed only after the subject fiscal year has ended

01 Indicate the types of adjustments that have been reflected on this form:
[ utiiity Adjustment [ unit Months Avallable (UMAs)
(Specify under Section 3)
02 Utility adjustment (from form HUD-52722-B)
03 Deficit or (Income) after year-end adjustments (total of Part E, Line 01 and Part H, Line 02)
04 Operating subsidy eligibility after year-end adjustments (greater of Part €, Line 02 or Part H, Line 03)
Part E, Line 03 of latest form HUD-52723 approved during subject FY
05 (Do not use Part E, Line 03 of this revision)
06 Net adjustments for subject fiscal year (Part H, Line 04 minus Part H, Line 05)
07 Utility adjustment (enter same amount as Part H, Line 02)
08 Total HUD discretionary adjustmenst (Part H, Line 06 minus Line 07)
09 Unfunded portion of utility adjustment due to proration
10 Unfunded portion of HUD discretionary adjustment due to proration
11 Prorated utility adjustment (Part H, Line 07 plus Line 09)
12 Prorated HUD discretionary adjustment ( Part H, Line 08 plus Line 10)

Section 3

Remarks (provide part and line numbers)

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.

(18

U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Signature of Authorized HA Representative & Date:

X

Signature of Authorized Field Office Representative & Date:

-

Previous edition is obsolete for PHA Fiscal Years beginning 1/1/2004 and thereafter

Page 3

form HUD-52723 (1/2001)
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HA Calculation of

U.S. Department of Housing OMB Approval No. 2577-0066

Occupancy Percentage and Urban Development (Exp. 09/30/2004)
for a Requested Budget Year (RBY) Office of Public and Indian Housing
“HA/IHA-Owned Rental Housing Performance
bunding System (PFS)
1a. Name and Address of PHA/IHA (include Street Address, City, State, Zip Code) 2a. Contact: {Person who can best answer questions about this submission)
Constance C. Davis

Housing Authority of the County of King 2b. Contract's Phone No.: (include area code)

600 Andover Park West 206-574-1110

Seattle WA 08188 :
3. RBY Beginning 4. Type of Submission: 5. PAS/LOCCS Project No: |6. Report Date: at.a. éource

Date: (mo/daylyyyy) {mo/daylyyyy,
Original WA00200306D Actual Day 0  formHUD-51234
1/1/2006 [ Revision No. I 7/1/2006 [0 Average for Actual Month Rent roll records
Part A. Actual Occupancy Data as of Report Date
8. Units Occupied 2,813
9. Units Available 2,876
10. Actual Occupancy Percentage (Divide line 8 by line 9; muitiply by 100 and round to nearest whole) 98%
Stop 11. If the HA-wide occupancy percentage shown on line 10 is 97% or greater and the HA believes that an average occupancy rate of
& at least 97% is sustainable for the RBY, then check the box below. You have completed the form and do not need to proceed further.
Note
O High Occupancy HA: Occupancy Percentage is > Use 97% as the Projected Occupancy
97% or higher and is sustainable for the RBY Percentage on Part B, Line 11 of form HUD-52723

12. Units vacant as of Report Date (subtract line 8 from line 9 and enter result) I 63
Stop 13. If the result on line 12 is five or fewer vacant units and the HA believes that during the RBY: 1) the inventory (line 9 will not change;
& and, 2) the number of vacant units on line 12 will be vacant for the full RBY, then check the box below. You have completed the
Note form and do not need to proceed further.

[ High Occupancy HA with five or > Use line 10 for the Projected Occupancy
fewer vacant units Percentage on Part B, Line 11 of form HUD-562723

b‘cancies that are beyond the control of the HA to correct. If appropriate, please distribute the number of vacant units reported on line 12 among these

causes. Attach sheet identified with HA name and address, the RBY beginning date, and ACC number. Use the sheet to describe, for each

circumstance; when the circumstance occurred; the location of the units involved; why the circumstance is preventing the HA from occupying, selling,

demolishing, rehabilitating, reconstructing, consolidating or modernizing the vacant units; and the likelihood that these circumstances will be mitigated or

eliminated in the RBY.

14. Units vacant because of litigation (e.g., units that are being held vacart as part of court-ordered or HUD-approved desegregation plan)

15. Units vacant because of Federal, Tribal, or State laws of general applicability. (Note: do not inciude units vacant only because
they do not meet minimum construction or habitability standards. )

16. Units vacant due to changing market conditions

17. Units vacant because of natural disaster

18. Units vacant because of insufficient funding for otherwise approvable CIAP application

19. RMC-managed units vacant because of failure of HA to fund approvable request for Federal modernization funding
(This line for use only by RMCs)

20. Units vacant because of casualty loss and need to settle insurance claims

21. Total Units Vacant Due To Circumstances Beyond The HA's Control (Enter sum of lines 14-20) -

22. Units vacant after adjusting for circumstances beyond the HA's control _(Subtract line 21 from line 12) 63
Stop 23. If the result on line 22 is five or fewer vacant units and the HA believes that during the RBY: 1) the inventory (line 9 will not change;
& and, 2) the number of vacant units on both lines 21 and 22 will be vacant for the full RBY, then check the box below. You have
Note completed the form and do not need to proceed any further.
[ High Occupancy HA with five or fewer vacant units > Use line 10 for the Projected Occupancy
after adjustment for vacancies beyond its control Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723

24. Vacancy Percentage after adjusting for beyond control circumstances

{Divide line 22 by line 9, multiply by 100, and round to nearest whole) 2.19%
Stop 25. ff the result on line 24 is 3% or less and the HA believes that during the RBY: 1) the inventory (line 9) will not change; and, 2) the
& number of vacant units on lines 21 and 22 will be vacant for the full RBY, then check the box below. You have completed the form
Note and do not need to proceed further.
[ High Occupancy HA: 3% or less vacancy rate > Use line 10 for the Projected Occupancy
after adjustment for vacancies beyond control Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723
Mis form replaces forms HUD-52728-A thru -C form HUD-52728 (3/2003)

which have been canceled. Page 10f 3 ref Handbook 7475.13





Part C. Status of Units Undergoing Modernization as of Report Date |f changes occur after the Report Date but prior to submission
of this form, the most current status will be shown.
26. Protected Units Occupied Units Vacant Units
: Number of units that are under modernization construction (contract awarded or force account work started)
b Number of units not under construction contact but included in a HUD-approved modernization budget where
the time period for placing the units under construction (two FFYs after FFY of approval) has not yet expired. 323 60
27. Unprotected Units: Number of units included in a HUD-approved modernization budget where the time
period for placing the units under construction (two FFYs after FFY of approval) has expired.

(a) (b) Avg. No of (c) No of Unit
Part D. Units Estimated to be Available for Occupancy During RBY No. of Units |  Mos. in RBY Mos. (a x b)
28. Units Available as of Report Date (Enter line 9) 2,876 12 34,512

29. Additional Units Available During RBY because of Development/Acquisition of PFS-Eligible projects
30. Units Available During RBY because of Demolition/Disposition/Conversion

Actions Approved By HUD
31. Total (Add lines 28 and 29; subtract line 30)

Part E. Units Estimated to be Occupied During RBY
32. Units Occupied as of Report Date (Enter line 8) 2,813 12 33,756
33. Additional Units Occupied during RBY because of

Development/Acquisition of PFS-Eligible Projects
34. Reoccupancy during RBY of Units Vacated for Circumstances Beyond the HA's Control -
35. Reoccupancy during RBY of Vacant Units in a Funded Modernization Program 16 10 160

34,512

36._Occupied Units in Funded Modernization Program Being Vacated during RBY 323 6 1,938

37. Occupied Units Being Vacated during RBY because of Demolition/Disposition/Conversion
Actions Approved by HUD. If there are occupied units that become vacant after the Report Date
Date but before the start of the RBY because of circumstances and actions beyond the HA's
control, place that number here :I and include in total shown on 37. Attach separate
sheet with same information requested in Part C.

38. Total (Add lines 32-35, subtract lines 36 and 37) 2,506 31,978
Part F. Occupancy Percentage During RBY
39. Total Unit Months of Occupancy (Enter line 38¢) 31,978
40. Total Unit Months Available for Qccupancy (Enter line 31c) 34,512
._Occupancy Percentage for RBY (Divide line 39 by line 40; multiply by 100 and round to nearest whole) 93.00%
2. Average Number of Vacant Units During RBY (Subtract line 39 from fine 40: divide result by 12 and round to nearest whole) 211
Stop 43. If the result on line 41 is 97% or higher or if the result on line 42 is five or less, then check the appropriate box
& below. You have completed the form and do not need to proceed further.
Note [0 a. High Occupancy HA: Occupancy Percentage > Use 97% as the Projected Occupancy
is 97% or higher for the RBY Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723
[J b. High Occupancy HA with five or > Use line 41 as the Projected Occupancy
fewer vacant units Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723
Part G. Vacancy Percentage for RBY Adjusted for Modernization
44. Total Unit Months of Vacancy in RBY  ( Enter fine 40 less line 39) 2,534
45. Total unit Months for Vacant Units in Funded Mod. and Under Construction
or Funded for Construction (Sum the vacant units of lines 26a and b; multiply by 12) 60 12 720
46. If any of the vacant units on lines 26a or b will be reoccupied during the RBY, enter that number
times the average number of months during the RBY these units will be reoccupied. 160
47. If any of the occupied units on lines 26a or b will be vacated during the RBY for mod. construction,
enter that number times the average number of months during the RBY these units will be vacated. 1,938
48. Total Unit Months for Vacant Units In Funded Mod. And Under Construction or
Funded For Construction in RBY (Add line 45; less line 46; plus line 47) 2,498
49. Total Unit Months of Vacancy in RBY Adjusted for Modernization (Enter line 44 less line 48) 36
50. Vacancy Percentage for RBY Adjusted for Modernization
(Divide line 49 by line 40; multiply by 100; and round to nearest whole.) 0.10%
51. Average Number of Vacant Units in RBY Adjusted for Modernization (Divide line 49 by 12; round to nearest whole) 3
Stop 52. If the result on line 50 is 3% or lower or if the resuit on line 51 is five or less, then check the appropriate box
& below. You have completed the form and do not need to proceed further.
Note a. High Occupancy HA: Vacancy Percentage is 3% > Use line 41 as the Projected Occupancy
or less for the RBY after Modernization Adjustment Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723
O b High Occupancy HA: five or fewer vacant > Use line 41 as the Projected Occupancy
units after Modernization Adjustment Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723
is form replaces forms HUD-52728-A thru -C form HUD-52728 (3/2003)

\ﬁich have been canceled. Page 2 of 3 ref Handbook 7475.13





Part H. Vacancy Percentage for RBY Adjusted for Both Modernization and Beyond Control Circumstances
53. Total Unit Months of Vacancy in RBY (Enter line 44)
54. Total Unit Months of Vacancy in RBY Due to Modernization (Enter line 48)
. 5. Total Unit Months of Vacancy in RBY Due to Beyond Control Vacancies
& (Enter line 21 times 12; less any entry made on line 34c)
6. Total Unit Months of Vacancy After Above Adjustments (Enter line 53 less lines 54 and 55)
57. Vacancy Percentage for RBY After Above Adjustments
(Divide line 56 by line 40; multiply by 100; and round to nearest whole.)
58. Average Number of Vacant Units in RBY After Above Adjustments (Divide line 56 by 12; round to nearest whoie)

Stop 59. If the result on line 57 is 3% or lower or if the result on line 58 is five or less, then check the appropriate box
& below. You have completed the form and do not need to proceed further.
Note O a. High Occupancy HA: Vacancy Percentage is 3% » Use line 41 as the Projected Occupancy
or less for the RBY after Modernization Adjustment Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723
O b High Occupancy HA: five or fewer vacant » Use line 41 as the Projected Occupancy
units after Modernization Adjustment Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723

Part I. Adjustment for Long Term Vacancies If the HA estimates that it will have a vacancy percentage of more than 3% for its RBY and more than five
vacant units after adjusting for vacant units undergoing modernization and vacancies beyond its control,

60. Total Long-term Vacancies (Subtract vacant units shown on lines 21, 26a and b from line 12. Analyze remaining
vacancies and identify those units that have been vacant for more than 12 months as of the Report Date.)

61. Unit Months of Vacancy Associated With Long-Term Vacancies (Muitiply line 60 by 12)

62. Total Unit Months Available for Occupancy in RBY Adjusted for Long-Term Vacancies
(Subtract line 61 from line 31(c)) Use this UMA number in all other PFS calculations.
63. Occupancy Percentage for RBY Adjusted for Long-Term Vacancies
(Divide line 38(c) by line 62; multiply by 100 and round to nearest whole)
64. Average Number of Vacant Units in RBY after All Adjustments (Subtract line 60 from line 58)
65. Total Unit Months of Vacancy in RBY after All Adjustments (Subtract line 61 from line 56)

66. Vacancy Percentage for RBY Adjusted for Long-Term Vacancies
(Divide line 65 by line 62; multiply by 100 and round to nearest whole)

Stop 67. If the result on line 63 is 97% or higher or if the resuit on line 64 is five or less or if the result on line 66 is 3% or less,
& then check the appropriate box below. You have completed the form and do not need to proceed further.
‘ote [J a. High Occupancy HA: Occupancy Percentage » Use 97% as the Projected Occupancy Percentage
b is 97% or higher for the RBY after Long-Term on line 17 of form HUD-52723. Use the UMA
Vacancies Adjustment result on line 62 in calculating PFS eligibifity.
O o High Occupancy HA: five or fewer vacant » Use line 63 as the Projected Occupancy Percentage
units after Adjustment for Long-Term Vacancies on line 17 of form HUD-52723. Use the UMA
result on line 62 in calculating PFS eligibility.
O c. High Occupancy HA: Vacancy Percentage » Use line 63 as the Projected Occupancy Percentage
is 3% or lower for the RBY after Long- on line 17 of form HUD-52723. Use the UMA
Term Vacancies Adjustment result on line 62 in calculatinigPFS e@bility.

Part J. Projected Occupancy Percentages for Low Occupancy HAs If the HA cannot determine an acceptable Projected Occupancy Percentage for
the RBY using the above approach, it will use this section. The HA will use the lower of either 97% or that percen

68. Enter 97% if HA has more than 140 units. If 140 or fewer units, determine occupancy percentage based on 5 vacant units,
for RBY. (Take 60 unit months and divide by line 62; multiply by 100 and round to nearest whole. Subtract result from 100%)

69. Percentage Adjustment for Modernization and Beyond Control Vacancies
(Add lines 48 plus 55; divide that sum by line 62; multiply by 100 and round to nearest whole)

70. Projected Occupancy Percentage for Low Occupancy HA
(Take the percentage on line 68 and subtract the percentage shown on fine 69. Use the result as the
Projected Occupancy Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723. Use the UMA resuit on line 62 in calculating PFS eligibility)

This form replaces forms HUD-52728-A thru -C form HUD-52728 (3/2003)
Wich have been canceled. Page 3 of 3 ref Handbook 7475.13
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Operating Fund

Calculation of Operating Subsidy
PHA-Owned Rental Housing

U.S. Department of Housing

and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB Approval No. 2577-0029(exp.10/31/2004)

Section 1

a) w 'd Address of Public Housing Agency/indian Housing Authority: (PHA/IHA)

King County Housing Authority

Yes

b) Budget Submission to HUD Required

[“1 no

c) Type of submission

600 Andover Park West Criginal
Seattle, Washington 98188 [ Revision
d) Number of HA Units e) Unit Months Available (UMAs) f) Subject FYE 9) ACC Number h) Operating Fund Project No. i) DUNS Number
70 840 06/30/06 ACC # S-020 WAD0202506D 02-024-4976
Section 2
Line Requested by PHA HUD Modifications
No. Description {PUM) (PUM)
Part A. Allowable Expenses and Additions
01 Previous allowable expense level (Part A line 08 of form HUD-52723 for previous fiscal year) 211.23
02 Part A, Line 01 multiplied by .005 1.06
03 Delta from form HUD-52720-B If applicable (see instructions)
04 "Requested" year units from latest form HUD-52720-A (see instructions)
05 Add-ons to allowable expense level from previous fiscal year (see instructions)
06 Total of Part A, Lines 01, 02, 03, and 05 212.29
07 Inflation factor 1.030
08 Revised allowable expense level (AEL)(Part A, Line 06 times line 07) 218.66
09 Transition Funding
10 Increase to AEL
11 Allowable utilities expense level from form HUD-52722-A 79.11
12 Actual PUM cost of Independent Audit (1A) (through FYE  FY05 ) 0.39
13 Costs attributable to deprogrammed units
14 Total Allowable Expenses and Additions (sum of Part A, lines 08 thru 13) 298.16
Pa Dwelling Rental income
01 Total rent roll as of l 12/01/05 $ 14,907
02 Number of occupied units as of rent roll date 69
Average monthly dwelling rental charge per unit for current budget year
03 (Part B, Line 01 + Line 02) 216.04
04 Average monthly dwelling rental charge per unit for prior budget year 207.99
05 Average monthly dwelling rental charge per unit for budget year 2 years ago 204.51
Three-year average moniﬁly dwelling rental charge per uni
06 ([Part B, Line 03 + Line 04 + Line 05] + 3) 209.51
07 50/50 Income split ([Part B, Line 03 + Line 06} + 2) 212.78
08 Average monthly dwelling rental charge per unit (lesser of Part B, Line 03 or Line 07) 212.78
09 Rental income adjustment factor 1.03
10 Projected average monthly dwelling rental charge per unit (Part B, Line 08 times Line 09) 219.16
11 Projected occupancy percentage from HUD-52728 97%
12 Projected average monthly dwelling rental income per unit (Part B, Line 10 times Line 11) 212.59
Part C. Non-dwelling incorme
01 Other income
02 Total operating receipts (Part B, Line 12 plus Part C, Line 01) 212.59
PUM deficit or (Income) (Part A, Line 14 minus Part C, Line 02 85.57
Requested by PHA HUD Modifications
{Whole dollars) {Whole dollars)
04 Deficit or (income) before add-ons (Part C, Line 03 times Section 1, e) 71,879

Previous edition is obsolete for PHA Fiscal Years beginning 1/1/2004 and thereafter

Page 1

form HUD-52723 (1/2001)





Project Number: WA00202506D
Line Requested by PHA HUD Modifications
No. Description {Whole Dollars) (Whole Dollars)
Par*~ Add-ons for changes in Federal law or regulation and other eligibility
[0} r FICA contributions 8,755
02 Unemployment compensation
03 Family Self Sufficiency Program
04 Energy Add-On for ioan amortization 4,808
05 Unit reconfiguration
06 Non-dwelling units approved for subsidy
07 Long-term vacant units
08 Phase Down for Demalitions
Units Elligible for Resident Participation:
09 Occupied Units (Part B, Line 02)
10 Employee Units
11 Police Units
Total Units Eligible for Resident Participation:
12 {Sum of Part D, Lines 09 thru 11)
13 Funding for Resident Participation (Part D, Line 12 x $25) 1,725
14 Other approved funding, not listed (Specify in Section 3)
15 Total add-ons (sum of Part D, Lines 01, 02, 03, 04, 05, 06, 07, 08, 13 and 14) 15,288
Part E. Calculation of Operating Subsidy Eligibility Before Year-End Adjustments
01 Deficit or (income) before year-end adjustments (Total of Part C, Line 04 and Part D, Line 15) 87,167
02 Actual cost of Independent Audit (IA) 328
03 Operating subsidy eligibility before year-end adjustments
(Greater of Part E, Line 01 or Line 02) {If less than zero, enter zero (0)) 87,167
Pa Calculation of Operating Subsidy Approvable for Subject Fiscal Year (Note: Do not revise after the end of the subject FY)
01 Utility Adjustment for Prior years 891
02 Additional subject fiscal year operating subsidy eligibility (specify)
03 Unfunded eligibility in prior fiscal years to be obligated in subject fiscal year ( )
04 HUD discretionary adjustments
05 Other (specify) 0
06 Other (specify)
07 Unfunded portion due to proration (17)
08 Net adjustments to operating subsidy (total of Part F, Lines 01 thru 07) 874
09 Operating subsidy approvable for subject fiscal year (total of Part E, Line 03 and part F, Line 08) 88,041

HUD Use Only (Note: Do not revise after the end of the subject FY)

10 Amount of operating subsidy approvable for subject fiscal year not funded )
11 Amount of funds obligated in excess of operating subsidy approvable for subject fiscal year
12 Funds Obligated in subject fiscal year (sum of Part F, Lines 09 thru 11)
(Must be the same as line 690 of the Operating Budget, form HUD-52564, for the subject fiscal year)
Appropration symbol(s):
‘Part G. Memorandum of Amounts Due HUD, Including Amounts on Repayment Schedules
01 Total amount due in previous fiscal year (Part G, Line 04 of form HUD-52723 for previous fiscal year)
02 Total amount to be collected in subject fiscal year (identify individual amounts under Section 3) [{ )
03 Total additional amount due HUD (inciude any amount entered on Part F, Line 11)

(ldentify individual amounts under Section 3)

04H

Total amount due HUD to be collected in future fiscal year(s) (Total of Part G, Lines 01 thru 03)
(Identify individual amounts under Section 3)

Previous edition is obsolete for PHA Fiscal Years beginning 1/1/2004 and thereafter

Page 2

form HUD-52723 (1/2001)





Project Number: WA00202506D
Line Requested by PHA HUD Modifications
No. Description {Whole Dollars) (Whole Dollars)
Pab Calculation of Year-end Adjustment for Subject Fiscal Year
This part is to be completed only after the subject fiscal year has ended
01 Indicate the types of adjustments that have been reflected on this form:
7 utiiity Adjustment 7 unit Months Avallable (UMAs)
(Specify under Section 3)

02 Utility adjustment (from form HUD-52722-B)
03 Deficit or (Income) after year-end adjustments (total of Part E, Line 01 and Part H, Line 02)
04 Operating subsidy eligibility after year-end adjustments (greater of Part E, Line 02 or Part H, Line 03)

Part E, Line 03 of latest form HUD-52723 approved during subject FY
05 (Do not use Part E, Line 03 of this revision)
06 Net adjustments for subject fiscal year (Part H, Line 04 minus Part H, Line 05)
07 Utility adjustment (enter same amount as Part H, Line 02)
08 Total HUD discretionary adjustmenst (Part H, Line 06 minus Line 07)
09 Unfunded portion of utility adjustment due to proration
10 Unfunded portion of HUD discretionary adjustment due to proration
11 Prorated utility adjustment (Part H, Line 07 plus Line 09)
12 Prorated HUD discretionary adjustment ( Part H, Line 08 plus Line 10)

Section 3

Remarks (provide part and line numbers)

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.

(18 U.S.

C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Signature of Authorized HA Representative & Date:

Signature of Authorized Field Office Representative & Date:

| 7

Previous edition is obsolete for PHA Fiscal Years beginning 1/1/2004 and thereafter

Page 3

form HUD-52723 (1/2001)
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HA Calculation of U.S. Department of Housing OMB Appraval No. 2577-0066

Occupancy Percentage and Urban Development (Exp. 09/30/2004)
fora Requested Budget Year (RBY) Office of Public and Indian Housing
P’ "A/IHA-Owned Rental Housing Performance
W~ "g System (PFS)
1a. Name and Address of PHA/IHA (include Street Address, City, State, Zip Code) 2a. Contact: (Person who can best answer questions about this submission)
Constance C. Davis

King County Housing Authority 2b. Contract's Phone No.: (include area code)

600 Andover Park West 206-574-1110

Seattle WA 98188
3. RBY Beginning 4. Type of Submission: 5. PAS/LOCCS Project No: 6. Report Date:  (check one box) 7. Data Source

Date: (mo/day/yyyy) (mo/daylyyyy)
Original WA00202506D Actual Day orm HUD-51234
1/1/2006 [ Revision No 7/1/2005 [3 Average for Actual Month [(“Rent roll records
. ]
Part A. Actual Occupancy Data as of Report Date
8. Units Occupied 68
9. Units Available 70
10. Actual Occupancy Percentage (Divide line 8 by line 9: multiply by 100 and round to nearest whole) 97%
Stop 11. if the HA-wide occupancy percentage shown on line 10 is 97% or greater and the HA believes that an average occupancy rate of
& at least 97% is sustainable for the RBY, then check the box below. You have completed the form and do not need to proceed further.
Note
High Occupancy HA: Occupancy Percentage is > Use 97% as the Projected Occupancy
97% or higher and is sustainable for the RBY Percentage on Part B, Line 11 of form HUD-562723

12. Units vacant as of Report Date (subtract line 8 from line 9 and enter resuilt) l
Stop 13. If the result on line 12 is five or fewer vacant units and the HA believes that during the RBY: 1) the inventory (line 9 will not change;
& and, 2) the number of vacant units on fine 12 will be vacant for the full RBY, then check the box below. You have completed the
Note form and do not need to proceed further.

[0 High Occupancy HA with five or > Use line 10 for the Projected Occupancy
fewer vacant units Percentage on Part B, Line 11 of form HUD-52723

. Distribution of Actual Vacancies By Major Cause Given below are circumstances and actions recognized by HUD as possible causes of
vaCancies that are beyond the control of the HA to correct. If appropriate, please distribute the number of vacant units reported on line 12 among these
causes. Attach sheet identified with HA name and address, the RBY beginning date, and ACC number. Use the sheet to describe, for each
circumstance; when the circumstance occurred; the location of the units involved; why the circumstance is preventing the HA from occupying, selling,
demolishing, rehabilitation, reconstruction, consolidating or modernizing the vacant units; and the likelihood that these circumstances will be mitigated or
eliminated in the RBY.

14. Units vacant because of litigation _(e.g., units that are being held vacant as part of court-ordered or HUD-approved desegregation plan)

15. Units vacant because of Federal, Tribal, or State laws of general applicability. (Note: do not include units vacant only because
they do not meet minimum construction or habitability standards.)

16. Units vacant due to changing market conditions

17. Units vacant because of natural disaster

18. Units vacant because of insufficient funding for otherwise approvable CIAP application

19. RMC-managed units vacant because of failure of HA to fund approvable request for Federal modernization funding
(This line for use only by RMCs)

20. Units vacant because of casualty loss and need to settle insurance claims

21. Total Units Vacant Due To Circumstances Beyond The HA's Control (Enter sum of lines 14-20)

22. Units vacant after adjusting for circumstances beyond the HA's control (Subtract line 21 from line 12)

Stop 23. If the result on line 22 is five or fewer vacant units and the HA believes that during the RBY: 1) the inventory (line 9 will not change;
& and, 2) the number of vacant units on both lines 21 and 22 will be vacant for the full RBY, then check the box below. You have
Note completed the form and do not need to proceed any further.
[ High Occupancy HA with five or fewer vacant units > Use line 10 for the Projected Occupancy
after adjustment for vacancies beyond its control Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723

24. Vacancy Percentage after adjusting for beyond control circumstances
(Divide line 22 by line 9, multiply by 100, and round to nearest whole)

Stop 25. If the result on line 24 is 3% or less and the HA believes that during the RBY: 1) the inventory (line 9} will not change; and, 2) the
& number of vacant units on lines 21 and 22 will be vacant for the full RBY, then check the box below. You have completed the form
Note and do not need to proceed further.
[0 High Occupancy HA: 3% or less vacancy rate > Use line 10 for the Projected Occupancy
after adjustment for vacancies beyond control Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723

bl

This form replaces forms HUD-52728-A thru -C form HUD-52728 (3/2003)
which have been canceled. Page 1 of 3 ref Handbook 7475.13






Part C. Status of Units Undergoing Modernization as of Report Date If changes occur after the Report Date but prior to submission

of this form, the most current status will be shown.
26. Protected Units Occupied Unity _ Vacant Units
- Number of units that are under modernization construction (contract awarded or force account work started)
umber of units not under construction contact but included in a HUD-approved modernization budget where
the time period for placing the units under construction (two FFYs after FFY of approval) has not yet expired.
27. Unprotected Units: Number of units included in a HUD-approved modernization budget where the time
period for placing the units under construction (two FFYs after FFY of approval) has expired.

(a) (b)Avg. Nooff (c) No of Unit
Part D. Units Estimated to be Available for Occupancy During RBY No. of Units | Mos. inRBY|  Mos. (ax b)
28. Units Available as of Report Date (Enter line 9) 12
29. Additional Units Available During RBY because of Development/Acquisition of PFS-Eligible projects
30. Units Available During RBY because of Demolition/Disposition/Conversion

Actions Approved By HUD
31. Total (Add lines 28 and 29, subtract line 30)

Part E. Units Estimated to be Occupied During RBY
32. Units Occupied as of Report Date (Enter line 8) 12
33. Additional Units Occupied during RBY because of
Development/Acquisition of PFS-Eligible Projects
34. Reoccupancy during RBY of Units Vacated for Circumstances Beyond the HA's Control
35. Reoccupancy during RBY of Vacant Units in a Funded Modernization Program
36. Occupied Units in Funded Modernization Program Being Vacated during RBY
37. Occupied Units Being Vacated during RBY because of Demolition/Disposition/Conversion
Actions Approved by HUD. If there are occupied units that become vacant after the Report Date
Date but before the start of the RBY because of circumstances and actions beyond the HA's
control, place that number here [] andinclude in total shown on 37. Attach separate
sheet with same information requested in Part C.

38. Total (Add lines 32-35, subtract lines 36 and 37)

Part F. Occupancy Percentage During RBY

39. Total Unit Months of Occupancy (Enter line 38c)
40 Total Unit Months Available for Occupancy (Enter line 31c)

Jccupancy Percentage for RBY (Divide line 39 by line 40; multiply by 100 and round to nearest whole)
4Z._ Average Number of Vacant Units During RBY (Subtract line 39 from line 40; divide result by 12 and round to nearest whole)

Stop 43. If the result on line 41 is 97% or higher or if the result on line 42 is five or less, then check the appropriate box
& below. You have completed the form and do not need to proceed further.
Note [OJ a. High Occupancy HA: Occupancy Percentage > Use 97% as the Projected Occupancy
is 97% or higher for the RBY Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723
O o High Occupancy HA with five or » Use line 41 as the Projected Occupancy
fewer vacant units Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723

Part G. Vacancy Percentage for RBY Adjusted for Modernization
44. Total Unit Months of Vacancy in RBGY ( Enter line 40 less line 39)

45. Total unit Months for Vacant Units In Funded Mod. and Under Construction
or Funded for Construction (Sum the vacant units of lines 26a and b; multiply by 12) 0

46. If any of the vacant units on lines 26a or b will be reoccupied during the RBY, enter that number
times the average number of months during the RBY these units will be reoccupied.

47. If any of the occupied units on lines 26a or b will be vacated during the RBY for mod. construction,
enter that number times the average number of months during the RBY these units will be vacated.

48. Total Unit Months for Vacant Units In Funded Mod. And Under Construction or
Funded For Construction In RBY (Add line 45; less line 46; plus line 47)

49. Total Unit Months of Vacancy in RBY Adjusted for Modernization (Enter line 44 iess line 48)

50. Vacancy Percentage for RBY Adjusted for Modernization
(Divide line 49 by line 40; multiply by 100; and round to nearest whole.)

51. Average Number of Vacant Units in RBY Adjusted for Modernization (Divide line 49 by 12; round to nearest whole)

Stop 52. If the result on line 50 is 3% or lower or if the result on line 51 is five or less, then check the appropriate box
& below. You have completed the form and do not need to proceed further.
Note O a. High Occupancy HA: Vacancy Percentage is 3% > Use line 41 as the Projected Occupancy
or less for the RBY after Modernization Adjustment Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723
Y High Occupancy HA: five or fewer vacant » Use line 41 as the Projected Occupancy
_ units after Modernization Adjustment Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723
*  mreplaces forms HUD-52728-A thru -C form HUD-52728 (3/2003)

ve been canceled. Page 2 of 3 ref Handbook 7475.13





Part H. Vacancy Percentage for RBY Adjusted for Both Modernization and Beyond Control Circumstances
53. Total Unit Months of Vacancy in RBY (Enter line 44)
54. Total Unit Months of Vacancy in RBY Due to Modernization (Enter line 48)
&~ Total Unit Months of Vacancy in RBY Due to Beyond Control Vacancies
. _{Enter line 21 times 12; less any entry made on line 34c)
56. Total Unit Months of Vacancy After Above Adjustments (Enter line 53 less lines 54 and §5)
57. Vacancy Percentage for RBY After Above Adjustments
(Divide line 56 by line 40; mulitiply by 100; and round to nearest whole.)
58. Average Number of Vacant Units in RBY After Above Adjustments (Divide line 56 by 12; round to nearest whola)

Stop 59. If the result on line 57 is 3% or lower or if the result on line 58 is five or less, then check the appropriate box
& below. You have completed the form and do not need to proceed further.
Note [0 a. High Occupancy HA: Vacancy Percentage is 3% > Use line 41 as the Projected Occupancy
or less for the RBY after Modernization Adjustment Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723
O b High Occupancy HA: five or fewer vacant > Use line 41 as the Projected Occupancy
units after Modernization Adjustment Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723

Part I. Adjustment for Long Term Vacancies If the HA estimates that it will have a vacancy percentage of more than 3% for its RBY and more than
five vancat units after adjusting for vacant units undergoing modernization and vacancies behond its control, the HA will exclude all of its long-term
vacancies (if any) from its count of units available fore occupancy and use this section to determine its projected occupancy percentage.

60. Total Long-term Vacancies (Subtract vacant units shown on lines 21, 26a and b from line 12. Analyze remaining
vacancies and identify those units that have been vacant for more than 12 months as of the Report Date.)

61. Unit Months of Vacancy Associated With Long-Term Vacancies (Multiply line 60 by 12)

62. Total Unit Months Available for Occupancy in RBY Adjusted for Long-Term Vacancies
(Subtract line 61 from line 31(¢)) Use this UMA number in ail other PFS calculations.

63. Occupancy Percentage for RBY Adjusted for Long-Term Vacancies
(Divide line 38(c) by line 62; multiply by 100 and round to nearest whole)
64. Average Number of Vacant Units in RBY after All Adjustments (Subtract line 60 from line 58)
65. Total Unit Months of Vacancy in RBY after All Adjustments (Subtract line 81 from line 56)
66. Vacancy Percentage for RBY Adjusted for Long-Term Vacancies
(Divide line 65 by line 62; multiply by 100 and round to nearest whole)

Stop 67. If the result on line 63 is 97% or higher or if the result on line 64 is five or less or if the result on line 66 is 3% or less,
& then check the appropriate box below. You have completed the form and do not need to proceed further.
» (O a. High Occupancy HA: Occupancy Percentage > Use 97% as the Projected Occupancy Percentage
» is 97% or higher for the RBY after Long-Term on line 17 of form HUD-52723. Use the UMA
Vacancies Adjustment result on line 62 in calculating PFS eligibility.
Y High Occupancy HA: five or fewer vacant > Use line 63 as the Projected Occupancy Percentage
units after Adjustment for Long-Term Vacancies on line 17 of form HUD-52723. Use the UMA
resuit on line 62 in calculating PFS eligibility.
[ c. High Occupancy HA: Vacancy Percentage > Use line 63 as the Projected Occupancy Percentage
is 3% or lower for the RBY after Long- on line 17 of form HUD-52723. Use the UMA
Term Vacancies Adjustment result on line 62 in calculatinig PFS eligibility.

Part J. Projected Occupancy Percentages for Low Occupancy HAs If the HA cannot determine an acceptable Projected Occupancy Percentage for
the RBY using the above approach, it will use this section. The HA will use the lower of either 97% or that percentage based on having five units vacant
for the RBY. Either percentage can be adjusted for vacant units undergoing modernization construction and vacancies beyond its control. Smali HAs of
140 or less will generally want to use a percentage based on five vacant units.

68. Enter 97% if HA has more than 140 units. If 140 or fewer units, determine occupancy percentage based on 5 vacant units,
for RBY. (Take 60 unit months and divide by line 62; muitiply by 100 and round to nearest whole. Subtract result from 100%)

69. Percentage Adjustment for Modernization and Beyond Contro! Vacancies
(Add lines 48 plus 55; divide that sum by line 62; multiply by 100 and round to nearest whole)

70. Projected Occupancy Percentage for Low Occupancy HA
(Take the percentage on line 68 and subtract the percentage shown on line 69. Use the result as the
Projected Occupancy Percentage on line 17 of form HUD-52723. Usae the UMA result on line 62 in calculating PFS eligibility)

This form replaces forms HUD-52728-A thru -C form HUD-52728 (3/2003)
v have been canceled. Page 3 of 3 ref Handbook 7475.13
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@“ENTO/:‘, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

éﬁ < Financial Management Center
@ "lz 2345 Grand Boulevard, Suite 1150
3 o Kansas City, Missouri 64108-2603
II I I 3

$"

HUD Home Page: www.hud.gov
94~ DE\Je\‘ ,

‘APR 2 5 o008

Steve Norman

Executive Director

King County Housing Authority
600 Andover Park West
Seattle, WA 98188

Dear Mr. Norman:

SUBJECT: Budget Documents for Mainstream Program
HA Number: WA002
Program: DV
Fiscal Year End: June 30, 2007

Enclosed are the approved subject documents. These disbursements are specifically
designated to assist persons with disabilities in obtaining affordable housing.

If it appears that your agency is scheduled to receive funds in' excess of actual needs by
more than five percent, please submit a revised requisition (form HUD-52663 only) to reduce
monthly advances.

Shouid you have any questions or need further information, please contact your Financial
Analyst, Jean Baughman, at 414-297-1883, or toll free at 1(888) 404-3893, ext. #1012.

Sincerely,

Eoren e

onna Keller
Deputy Director

Enclosures





- Suggested Format for
Requisition for Partial
Payment of Annual Contributions

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indlan Housing

Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program

ATTACHMENT [

Rental Vouchers

OMB Approval No. 2577-0149 (Exp. )

Ut
da

sporting Burden Tor this collection of information is estimated to average 1.0 hour per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing
‘ces, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate
or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Reports Management Officer, Office of Information Policies .

and Systems, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Washington, D.C. 20410-3600 and to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction
Project (2577-0149), Washington, D.C. 20503. Do not send this completed form to either of these addressees.

1. Date of Reguisition

03/30/06

2. No of Months in 1st FY

3. Project No.
WAOQQ2D S

4. Public Housing Agency (HA) (Name and Address)
King County Housing Authority - Mainstream

5. Housing Program Type (Mark one)
[ (@) Moderate Rehabiltaion

D {b) Rental Certificates

m (c) Rental Vouchers
D (d) New Construction

600 Andover Park West
Seattle, WA 98188

6. HA Fiscai Year Ending Date {Mark one box and complete year)
[] ta) March 31. [X] (b June

D {c) September
10. Unit Months Under Lease

D (d) December

[2007]

11. Average Monthly Housing

7. Number of Units Under Lease

8. Average Monthly Housing

9. Estimatad Number of Unlits

Assistance Payment Per

to Eligible Families as of Assistance Peyment Per Unit to be Under Lease at End Year to Date
Date of Requisition as of Data of Requisition of Requested Year . Unit Year to Date
350
Funds Required
for Requested Year
12, Preliminary Administrative and General Expense
, y
13. Estimated Housing Assistance Payments (Account 4715) M 9 ﬂﬂ 4817000
14. Estimated Ongoing Administrative Fee / é V 4 ‘50 244-860—
15. Estimated Hard-to-House Fee (Existing Housing Certificates and Housing Vouchers Only)
18. Independent Public Accountant Audit Costs (Section 8 Oniy) 1,000
Y/

17. Total Funds Required to End of Requested Year (Sum of Lines 12 through 16) /L'f %Lfg? +:662:066~
18. Payments Previously Approved for the Fiscal Year (applicable only to revised requisition)

19.& ustment to Requisition (Difference of Line 17 and Line 18. Do not use brackets)

AT

) 4862:860-

20. Total Payment Requirement For Requested Year (Line 18 plus or minus adjustments on Ling 19 if revised requisition. Total must equal Line 17)
21, [Jraidin Equal Instaliments (Original Requisition Only) Paid in UnEqual Instaliments
22, Instaliment 1 July2006 |  AuGuST | SEPT | ocT B | DEC
* 165,242 .. il “__155\.2.38“ 155,238.:: ey 155,238 T 155,238 - 155,238
HA Total '
HUD Revision /Jé57/ //éj&7 /fé\%7 /fé%7 /féf)z’7 /f&5?177
instatiment 7 January 2007 FEB MARCH APRIL MA 12
155,238 155,238 - 155,238 155,238 155,238 155,238
HA Total
HUD Revision /fjg}g /\_2_507005 /330??5 074 7:43 07é 7&?3 9?57973
23a. Total (HA) 23b. Total (HUD) 24. Revised Monthly Instaliments
$ 1,862,860 $ / —qg y j Begin Month of:
Housing Assistance Payments Contracts or Housing Voucher contracts

{ Certify that (1) housing assistance payments have been or will be made only in accordance with

in the form prescribed by HUD and in accordance with HUD regulations and requirements; (2) units have been inspected by the HA in accordance with HUD regulations
and requirements; and (3) this requisition for annual contributions has been examined by me and to the best of my knowledge and belief is true, correct and complete.

Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil pen:

Title of Authorized HA Official

Executiye Director, King County Housing Authority

901, 1010, 1012; 31

U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Title of Authmwpbv‘%%l
Financlal Managemem Center

RS

Date

5 anngs

n J. Norman

£

Aue P4 75360
/m%yfuaﬁgfv

/0 0/724

347§ ¥ A0
5981 XA50

2,000 Ao Ly B muniho —

8475330 fo

7,
S mentto

‘T
form HUD-52663 (5/94)
f)Z,ﬁé.O ref Handbook 7420.7





Rental Vouchers

Estimate of Total U.S. Department of Housing
Kequirea Annuai and Urban Development
Contributions Section 8

Housing Assistance Payments Program

ﬁote: OSee Instructions In appropnate program handbooks. OMB No. 2502-0348 (exp. 10/31/85)

1. Public Housing Agency (Name and Address) 2. Project No.
WA002DVEEEZ
King County Housing Authority - Mainstream 3. Submission
600 Andover Park West Origlnal:|Revision No. ]
Seattle, WA 98188 '
4. Annual Contributions Contract No. 5. HUD Field Office 6. HUD Regional Office 7. No. Dwelling Ui8. No. Units Months
WAQ02DV Seattle 350 4,200
9. Housing Program Type (Mark One)
[ (a) New Construction (7 (b) Substantial Rehab (3 (¢) Moderate Rehab {3 (9 exsting Certificates (e) Housing Vouchers
10. PHA Fiscal Year Ending Date (Mark one and complete year)
[ (a)March 31, IX] (b) June 30, D (c) September |:| (d) December
" PHA Estimate (Housing vouchers Only) "PHA Estmate TUB Approved (Housing Vouchers only) TUD Approved
I Maximum Annual Contributions Hou-lng(:)-ymntl PH(Ab )Fu T(C:,ll Houulnq(:)lym'nh PH:\. ;n T;t’d

Maximum Annual Contributions L e e .
™ Commitment 2,269,164 (345548
Prorata Maximum Annual R T

12. Contribuitions Applicable to a
Period in Excess of 12 months

Maximum Annual Contributions
13. for Fiscal Year y

(Line 11 plus Line 12) 2,269,164 /ﬂjﬁy f

Project Account-Estimated or

14. Actual Balance at Beginning of 3 47/ Qé

Requested Fiscal Year
Total Annual Contributions

15. Available - Estimated or Actual ;
(Une 13 plusLine 19) 2,269,164 /7/2794

e /Y

: Do ABA i
Y5 jzju/wé , X/i?g’/,? é«gf 4)
Velgetudute (/799776)

F47/9¢

| hereby certify that no one employee is being paid
mor n 100 % of their salary through this or any

other PH po?mlor ombination thereof.

"é/‘Ste‘ﬁhen J. Norman, Executive Director

Page 1 of 2 HUD-52673 (2-85)
HB 7420.7

Previous Editions Are Obsolete
Forms software only Copyright © 1996 HAB inc. All rights reserved






—
PHA Estimate (Housing Vouchers Only)

Housing Payments PHA Fee
(a)

T Estimate of Reﬁwrea

Annual Contributions

(b}

—
PHA Estimate
Total
(c)

HUD Approved {Housing Vouchers Only)

—
HUD Approved

Housing Payments

(d)

PHA Fes

Tota!
(]

Estimated Annual Housing
Assistance Payments (Form HUD-
52672, Line 15)

1,617,000

Estimated Ongoing
Administrative Fee
(Form HUD-52672, Line 18)

17.

244,860

Estimated Hard-to-House Fee

18.  Form HUD-52672, Line 19)

Estimated independent Public

18. Accountant Audit Costs

1,000

/43000

/64930

/000

stimated Prenmin NS~
trative and General Expense

2. Form HUD-52672, Lines 27 and

Administrative and General

Expense(Form HUD-52672, Lines
27annd AN

21,

Estimated Non-Expendable
Equipment Expense (Form
HUD-52672, Line 32)

22,

Carryover of Non-Expendable
Equipment Expense not
Expended in the

Previous FY Ending:

23

Total Annual Contributions
Required - Regquested Fiscal
Year (Lines 16 through 23)

24

(599430

Deficit at End of Current
Fiscal Year - Estimated or
Actual

1,862,860

Total Annual Contributions

2 Required (Line 24 plus Line 25)

1,862,860

VoL 4714,

Estimated Project Account
Balance at End of Requested
Fiscal Year (Line 15 minus Line 26)

27

406,304

/13494

Provision for Project Account -
Requested Fiscal Year Increase
(decreass)(Line 27 minus

Line 14)

28

406,304

(237957)

lil.  Annuat Contributions Approved

Total Annual Contributions
Approved - Requested Fiscal
Year (Line 26 plus increase, if
any, on Line 28)

29

2,269,164

/599930

30 Source of Total Contributions

Approved - Requested Fiscal Year:
(a) Requested Fiscal Year
Maximum Annual Contributions
Commitment (Line 13 or Line 29,
whichever is less).

2,269,164

130553

(b) Project Account (Line 29
minus Line 30(a))

A33903

—
Signature, Ngfne hnd Titje of Pi pprovingOfficial (and date)

~

Signature, Name and Title of Approvij

Donna Kell

e

Division Director

Stephe? J. Norman, Executive Director Page 2 of 2

0 Fisid Office Officiat

nd dgis)
&
{APR 2 5 2006

~ rinancial Management Centor





U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development

Supporting Data for
Annual Contributions

Rental Vouchers

Estimates Section 8
Housing Assistance Payments Program
Note: See instructions in appropriate program handbooks. OMB No. 2502-0348 (exp. 10/31/86)
. ‘blic Housing Agency (Name and Address) 2. Project No.
WA002D\EE53-
King County Housing Authority - Mainstream 3. Submission
600 Andover Park West Orginal [ JRevisionNo. [ ]
Seattle, WA 98188 4. No. of Dwelling Units 5. No, of Unit Months
350 | 3000 206
Pari  Estimate of Annual Housing Bedroom Size Number of | Monthly Gross Amount Monthly Annual Housing
ASSIStance raymems reguirea oy uwelling vweling xKenviayment raysoie oy Housing unaer Assistance rayments
unns unim sw@anaara ramilty 1oward Assismnce Leasa
Grosa Kent rayments
])VOODQ SO LLntto (a) (b) © &) (o) ® @
’ /4./3//0f 6. 0 BR 634 287 4
LLpnLo 7. 1 BR 245 721 385 336 2,940 087,890
8. 2 BR 75 867 402 465 900 418,500
B, 3 BR 25 1,222 622 600 300 18(/000
DV o005 - /oo,wmlb 10. 4BR | . & 1,486 975 511 60 zQOL‘,eao
. /2/3//0 =11, 5BR R R I 1m R
13, 7 BR v | B nOtl L “UV
DVooos -R00 M 14, TOTAL %Llf ,
15. Total » $
: %4% /i’l/oj jt aa;,ooo
a alculation of Estimated - Unit ublis - roduct of Administrative Fee
Ongoing Administrative Fee months Fair Market Rent Columns (a) x (b) Percent
(a) X (b) = (c} X_(d} = (a)
16. e
17a. VAU
17b. 1 See attached calculation M
18.

‘Calculation of Estimated Hard-to-
House Fee (Existing Housing
Certificates and Housing

Vouchers Only

75

ﬁequested Amount

Preliminary Expense b O PHA Estimates HUD Modifications
PN/, o~ e (a) {b)
Admlr’u\/s\tﬂé{xp'g/n 0_@} ~_AAdministrative Expenses
% 2" Employee Benefit Contributions
l 9\ ﬁw N I 22, Legal Expense
23. Travel Expense
5 0 U 24,  Sundry
25. Office Rent
D q 26.  Accounting and Auditing Fees
j ) Kﬂ 27, Total Administrative Expenses
AO D Non-Expendable 28. Office Equipment
Equipment Expenses 29, Office Furnishings
30. Automotive
31, Other
32.  Total Non-Expendable Equipment Expenses
General Expenses 33, Maintenance and Operation (Non-Expend. Equip. Only)
34. insurance
35. Sundry
36. Total General Expense
Total Preliminary 37. Sum of Lines 27, 32, and 36

\ , Expenses

oot Mty 40P 1934 = 2y PLg

of 478

—
Previous Editions Are Obsolete
ronus suiwale VY WOPYIJINY 1990 ITAD me, Al HYLiw reseveu

00X 478 21454 000

HUD-52672 (2-85)
HB 7420.7
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_1217401008/FY 07 RESOLUTION 5064 with signatures.pdf
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
RESOLUTION NO. 5064

APPROVING THE MAKING TRANSITION WORK ANNUAL PLAN
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2007

WHEREAS, the King County Housing Authority (KCHA) participates in the
Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) Moving to Work Demonstration
Program (MTW) under a 2003 MTW Agreement with HUD; and

WHEREAS, KCHA changed the name of the program to Making Transition Work
(MTW) to better reflect the Authority’s intent and the broader purpose of the Demonstration;

and

WHEREAS, the MTW Agreement authorizes KCHA to design and test new ways of

providing housing assistance and needed services to low-income households; and

WHEREAS, the MTW Agreement requires the Authority to develop an MTW Annual
Plan (the Plan) that includes the Authority’s budget and outlines the MTW initiatives to be

pursued during the year; and

WHEREAS, staff has developed the required MTW Annual Plan covering Fiscal Year
2007 (July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007) in a manner that is responsive to and complies with
the MTW Agreement requirements; and

WHEREAS, in developing the FY 2007 Annual Plan, KCHA provided opportunity for
public input regarding the Plan components, including discussions with the KCHA Resident
Advisory Councils and the provision of a public hearing on August 11, 2006 to receive

comment on the Plan; and





WHEREAS, the Plan envisions a number of significant changes in the operational
policies of the Section 8§ and Public Housing programs which are consistent with the goals of

the Demonstrations and KCHA’s mission; and

WHEREAS, a Board Resolution approving the Plan and certifying that the Plan

complies with MTW Plan requirements must be included when it is submitted to HUD.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING:

1. The Board of Commissioners hereby approves the MTW Plan attached to this resolution
and the accompanying memorandum (“Fiscal Year 2007 Annual Plan”) for
implementation and submission to the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

2. The Board of Commissioners certifies that the Public Hearing Requirement has been
met and authorizes the Housing Authority to submit all required documents in

accordance with the MTW program regulations.

ADOPTED AT A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING THIS 14™ DAY OF AUGUST
2006.

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON

PETER ORSE&Chair
Board of Commigsioners

/.

STEPHEN NORMAN
Secretary/Ireasurer







_1217401054/MTW FY 07 Certifications with signatures.pdf
PHA Certifications of Compliance with MTW Plan Requirements
And Related Regulations
Board Resolution to Accompany the MTW Plan

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the King County Housing Authority
(KCHA) listed below, as its Chair, I approve the submission of the Annual MTW Plan for the
KCHA fiscal year beginning July 1, 2006 (FY 2007), hereinafter referred to as the Plan of which
this document is a part and make the following certifications and agreements with the
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in connection with the submission of
the Plan and implementation thereof:

1.

2.

The KCHA held a public hearing regarding the Plan on August 11, 2006.

The KCHA will carry out the Plan in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, the Fair Housing Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and Title II of
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

As the 2007 Plan includes continued implementation and administration of a site-based

waiting list policy for all of its developments:

» KCHA will regularly submit required data to HUD in an accurate and complete, and
timely manner.

» Administer the site-based waiting list system in a manner that provides full
disclosure to each applicant in the selection of the development in which to reside,
including basic information about the available sites and an estimate of the period of
time the applicant would likely have to wait to be admitted to units of different types
and sizes at each site.

* Adopt site-based waiting lists that will not violate any court order or settlement
agreement or be inconsistent with a pending complaint brought by HUD.

= KCHA will take reasonable measures to assure that such waiting list is consistent
with affirmatively furthering Fair Housing objectives.

» KCHA will provide for review of its site-based waiting list policy to determine if it is
consistent with civil rights laws and certifications, as specified in 24 CFR part 903.7.

The KCHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age
pursuant to the Age Discrimination Act of 1975.

The KCHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41,
Policies and Procedures for the Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for
Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped.

The KCHA will comply with the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban
Development Act of 1968, Employment Opportunities for Low- or Very-Low Income
Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24 CFR Part 135.

The KCHA has submitted with the Plan a certification with regard to a drug-free
workplace required by CFR Part 24, Subpart F.





1

8. The KCHA has submitted with the Plan a certification with regard to compliance with
restrictions on lobbying required by 24 CFR Part 87, together with disclosure forms if
required by this Part, and with restrictions on payments to influence Federal Transactions,
in accordance with the Byrd Amendment and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part
24.

9. The KCHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and
implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable.

10. The KCHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and
women’s business enterprises under 24 CFR 4.105(a).

11. The KCHA will provide HUD or the responsible entity any documentation that the
Department needs to carry out its review under National Environmental Policy Act and
other related authorities. In accordance with 24 CFR Part 58.

12. With respect to public housing the KCHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or HUD
determined wage rate requirements under section 12 of the United States Housing Act of
1937 and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

13. The KCHA will keep records in accordance with 24 CFR 85.20 and facilitate an effective
audit to determine compliance with program requirements.

14. The KCHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act and 24
CFR Part 35.

15. The KCHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of OMB Circular
No. A-87 (cost Principals for State and Local and Indian Tribal Governments) and 24
CFR Part 85 (Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to
State, Local and Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.).

16. The KCHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Plan in a manner
consistent with its Plan and the MTW Agreement executed by the KCHA and HUD and
will utilize funds made available under the Capital Fund Operating Fund and Section 8
tenant-based assistance only for activities that are allowable under applicable regulations
as modified by the MTW Agreement and included in its Plan.

King County Housing Authority WA-002
A name PHA number

?W W%M €/19 /0

kcHa Boarf{ Chair 0 Date





Certification for
a Drug-Free Workplace

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development

‘pplicant Name

King County Housing Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federa! Grant Funding

Public Housing Agency Plan/Public Housing Capital Fund

Acting on behalf of the above named Applicant as its Authorized Official, I make the following certifications and agreements to
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regarding the sites listed below:

I certify that the above named Applicant will or will continue
to provide a drug-free workplace by:

a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the un-
lawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use
of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Applicant's work-
place and specifying the actions that will be taken against
employees for violation of such prohibition.

b. Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to
inform employees ---

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free
workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and
employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees
drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

c. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged
in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement
required by paragraph a.;

d. Notifying the employee in the statement required by para-
graph a. that, as a condition of employment under the grant, the
employee will ---

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her convic-
tion for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the
workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

e. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days
after receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2) from an em-
ployee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, includ-
ing position title, to every grant officer or other designee on
whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federalagency has designated a central point for the
receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification
number(s) of each affected grant;

f. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar
days of receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2), with respect
to any employee who is so convicted ---

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an
employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the
requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfacto-
rily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program ap-
proved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

g. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-
free workplace through implementation of paragraphs a. thru f.

2. Sites for Work Performance. The Applicant shall list (on separate pages) the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the
HUD funding of the program/activity shown above: Place of Performance shall include the street address, city, county, State, and zip code.
Identify each sheet with the Applicant name and address and the program/activity receiving grant funding.)

Check hereD if there are workplaces on file that are not identified on the attached sheets.

| hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.

(18 U.S8.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.8.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official

Stephen Norman

Title
Executive Director

vnature

A

" 8l

form HUD-50070 (3/98)
ref. Handbooks 7417.1,7475.13,7485.1 & .3





Certification of Payments
to Influence Federal Transactions

-

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Applicant Name

King County Housing Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding

Public Housing Agency Plan/Public Housing Capital Fund

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connec-
tion with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
~ttempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a

& :mber of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its
instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this
certification be included in the award documents for all subawards
at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered
into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.

Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may resultin criminal and/or civil penalties.

(18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official

Stephen Norman

Title

Executive Director

Signature

&

-

Date (mm/dd/yyyy)

314 fots

Previous edition is obsolgte

form HUD 50071 (3/98)
ref. Handboooks 7417.1, 7475.13, 7485.1, & 7485.3





Disclosure of Lobbying Activities

Approved by OMB 0348-0046

Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352
(See reverse side for Instructions and Public Reporting burden statement)

& Type of Federal Action

2. Status of Federal Action

3. Report Type

b E a. contract a. bid/offer/application E] a. initial filing
b. grant b. initial award b. material change
c. cooperative agreement c. post-award For Material Change Only
d. loan
e. loan guarantee year (yyyy) quarter
f. loan insurance date of last report (mm/dd/yyyy)
4. Name apd Address of Reporting Entity 5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is Subawardee, enter Name and Address
ane D Subawardee  Tier , if known: of Prime
Congressional District, if known Congressional District, if known
6. Federal Department/Agency 7. Federal Program Name/Description
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Public Housing Agency Plan/PH Capital Fund
CFDA Number, if applicable
8. Federal Action Number, if known 9. Award Amount, if known
$
10a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if different from No. 10a.)
(if individual, last name, first name, Ml) (last name, first name, MI)
% N/A N/A
(attach continuation sheef(s) if necessary)
11. Amount of Payment (check all that apply) 13. Type of Payment (check all that apply)
% D actual D planned D a. retainer
12. Form of Payment (check all that apply) D b. one-time fee
|:J a. cash D c. commission
D b. in-kind; specify: nature D d. contingent fee
value D e. deferred
D f. other (specify)
14. Brief Description of Services Performed or to be Performed and Date(s) of Service, including officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) contacted,
for Payment Indicated in Item 11
{attach continuation sheet(s) if necessary)
15. Continuation sheets attached D Yes No
16. Information requested through this form is authorized by Sec.319,

-

Pub. L. 101-121, 103 Stat. 750, as amended by sec. 10; Pub. L. 104-
65, Stat. 700 (31 U.S.C. 1352). This disclosure of lobbying activities
is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
by the above when this transaction was made or entered into. This
disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information
will be reported to the Congress semiannually and will be available
for public inspection. Any person who fails to file the required
disclosure shall be subject to a civil penaity of not less than $10,000
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

/)—

Signature
Print Name Stephen Norman
Title Executi)/e Director

206-574-1100

14/0Ce

Telephone No.

@)

Date (mm/dd/yyyy)

Federal Use Only:

Authorized for Local Reproduction
Standard Form-LLL (7/97)






Instructions for Completion of SF-LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt
fa covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352, The filing of a form is required
5r each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee

of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or any employee of a Member of Congress in connection with

a covered Federal action. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the impiementing

guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

1.

identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying
activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome
of a covered Federal action.

Identify the status of the covered Federal action.

ldentify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a
followup report caused by a material change to the informa-
tion previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which
the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously
submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered
Federal action.

Enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the
reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known.
Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity
that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward
recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first
subawardee of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but
are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards
under grants.

If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks
“Subawardee”, then enter the full name, address, city, state
and zip code of the prime Federal recipient, Include Congres-
sional District, if known.

Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or
loan commitment. Include at least one organizational level
below agency name, if known. For example, Department of
Transportation, United States Coast Guard.

Enter the Federal program name or description for the cov-
ered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants,
cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments.

Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number avail-
able for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request
for Proposal (RFP) number; Invitation for Bid (IFB) number;
grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan
award number; the application proposal control number as-
signed by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., “RFP-
DE-90-001."

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
16.

For a covered Federal action where there has been an award
or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal
amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity
identified in item 4 or 5.

(a) Enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the
registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 engaged
by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to influence the
covered Federal action.

{(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing ser-
vices, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter
Last Name, First Name, and Middle Initial (M!).

Enter the amount of compensation paid or reasonably ex-
pected to be paid by the reporting entity (item 4) to the
lobbying entity (item 10). Indicate whether the payment has
been made (actual) or will be made (planned). Check all
boxes that apply. If this is a material change report, enter the
cumulative amount of payment made or planned to be made.

Check the appropriate box (es). Check all boxes that apply.
If payment is made through an in-kind contribution, specify the
nature and value of the in-kind payment.

Check the appropriate box (es). Check all boxes that apply.
If other, specify nature.

Provide specific and detailed description of the services that
the lobbist has performed, or will be expected to perform, and
the date(s) of any services rendered. Include all preparatory
and related activity, not just the time spent in actual contact
with Federal officials. Identify the Federal official(s) or
employee(s) contacted or the officer(s), employee(s), or
Member(s) of Congress that were contacted.

Check whether or not a continuation sheet(s) are attached.

The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her
name, title, and telephone number.

Public Reporting Burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions,
searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Please do not
‘urn your completed form to the Office of Management and Budget; send it to the address provided by the sponsoring agency .

*\d comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the
ffice of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, DC 20503.
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